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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

The Honorable County Judge 
and the Commissioners’ Court: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Governmental Activities, the 
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Dallas County, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise Dallas County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated March 23, 2015. Our report includes a reference to another auditor who audited the 
financial statements of the Dallas County Hospital District of Dallas County, which represents all of the 
discretely component unit, as described in our report on Dallas County’s financial statements. This report 
does not include the results of the other auditor’s testing of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Dallas County’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Dallas County’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Dallas County’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Dallas County’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Dallas County’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Dallas County’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

March 23, 2015 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal 
Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by 

OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations 

The Honorable County Judge 
and the Commissioners’ Court: 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  

We have audited Dallas County, Texas’ (Dallas County) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of Dallas County’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014. 
Dallas County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs.  

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Dallas County’s major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Dallas County’s compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
unmodified and modified audit opinions on compliance. However, our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of Dallas County’s compliance. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Equitable Sharing program 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we were unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the compliance of Dallas County with CFDA 16.922- 
Equitable Sharing program as described in finding number 2014-002 for Equipment and Real Property 
Management, because we were unable to obtain a complete listing of equipment. Consequently, we were 
unable to determine whether Dallas County complied with the requirements applicable to that program. 
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As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Dallas County did not comply 
with requirements regarding CFDA 16.922 Equitable Sharing program as described below: 

Finding Compliance
number CFDA number Program (or cluster) name requirement

2014-001 16.922    Equitable Sharing Activities Allowed or
   Unallowed/Allowable Costs

2014-003 16.922    Equitable Sharing Procurement Suspension and
   Debarment

 

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for Dallas County to comply with the 
requirements applicable to that program. 

Qualified Opinion on the Equitable Sharing program 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter related to finding number 2014-002 and the 
noncompliance related to findings number 2014-001 and 2014-003 described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, Dallas County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the Equitable Sharing program 
for the year ended September 30, 2014. 

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs 

In our opinion, Dallas County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major federal programs for 
the year ended September 30, 2014. 

Other Matters 

Dallas County’s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Dallas County’s responses were not subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
responses. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Dallas County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered Dallas County’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Dallas 
County’s internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 



 

 

 
 

 5 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-001, 
2014-002 and 2014-003 to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. We did not identify any significant deficiencies. 

Dallas County’s responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Dallas County’s responses were 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the responses. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular 
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component 
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dallas County, Texas (the County) 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
March 23, 2015, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was 
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

 

April 21, 2015, except for our report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by 
OMB Circular A-133, for which the date is March 23, 2015. 

 



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Texas Department of State Health Services:

Program:
Hansen’s Disease National Ambulatory Care Program:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870514 Hansen’s Disease 2014-00028-00 $ 64,279   —    
870515 Hansen’s Disease 2015-000028-00 6,007   —    

Total Indirect 70,286   —    

Total Program 70,286   —    

Total CFDA NA.000 70,286   —    

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Texas Health and Human Services Commission:

Program:
School Breakfast Program:

Federal:
Pass Through:

51101 Juvenile Department School Breakfast Program 10.553 2003-705 283,293   —    

Total Indirect 283,293   —    

Total Program 283,293   —    

Total CFDA 10.553 283,293   —    

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Texas Health and Human Services Commission:

Program:
National School Lunch Program:

Federal:
Pass Through:

5110-5116 Juvenile Department School Lunch/Snack Program 10.555 057-204 565,114   —    

Total Indirect 565,114   —    

Total Program 565,114   —    

Total CFDA 10.555 565,114   —    

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 848,407   —    

U.S. Elections Assistance Commission:
Program:

Electronic Absentee Systems for Elections:
Federal:

Direct:
230812 EASE Grant 12.217 H98210-12-1-0032 32,110   —    

Total Direct 32,110   —    

Total Program 32,110   —    

Total CFDA 12.217 32,110   —    

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Program:

Community Development Block/Entitlement Grants:
Federal:

Direct:
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 B-08-UC-48-0003 51,397   10,120   
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 B-09-UC-48-0003 87,750   —    
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 B-10-UC-48-0003 122,596   —    
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 B-11-UC-48-0003 241,778   38,539   
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 B-12-UC-48-0003 294,562   138,425   
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 B-13-UC-48-0003 1,287,578   397,090   

Total Direct 2,085,661   584,174   

Total Program 2,085,661   584,174   

Total CFDA 14.218 2,085,661   584,174   

Total CDBG – Entitlement Grants Cluster 2,085,661   584,174   

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Program:

Emergency Shelter Grant Program:
Federal:

Direct:
960012 Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 E11-UC-48-0005 12,877   12,877   
960013 Emergency Solution Grant 14.231 E12-UC-48-0005 122,306   113,981   

Total Direct 135,183   126,858   

Total Program 135,183   126,858   

Total CFDA 14.231 135,183   126,858   

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Program:

Shelter Plus Care:
Federal:

Direct:
290613 Shelter Plus Care 14.238 TX0307L6T001202 206,634   206,634   
290614 Shelter Plus Care 14.238 TX0307L6T001303 17,032   17,032   

Total Direct 223,666   223,666   

Total Program 223,666   223,666   

Total CFDA 14.238 223,666   223,666   
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Program:

HOME Investment Partnerships Program:
Federal:

Direct:
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-10-UC-48-0221 $ 94,203   —    
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-11-UC-48-0221 208,359   —    
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-12-UC-48-0221 322,491   —    
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-13-UC-48-0221 7,500   —    

Total Direct 632,553   —    

Total Program 632,553   —    

Total CFDA 14.239 632,553   —    

City of Dallas:
Program:

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS:
Federal:

Pass Through:
820013 Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS 14.241 13-1564 1,268,952   —    
820113 Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) 14.241 13-1564 88,827   —    

Total Indirect 1,357,779   —    

Total Program 1,357,779   —    

Department of State Health Services:
Program:

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS:
Federal:

Pass Through:
820314 DSHS HOPWA/HIV 14.241 2013-043224-001 26,877   26,877   
820315 DSHS HOPWA/HIV 14.241 2014-002568-00 41,631   41,631   
820414 DSHS Program HIV HOPWA 14.241 2013-043224-001 2   —    

Total Indirect 68,510   68,508   

Total Program 68,510   68,508   

Total CFDA 14.241 1,426,289   68,508   

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Program:

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers:
Federal:

Direct:
800114 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 TX559 30,683,326   —    
805004 Section 8 Voucher Program Admin Fee 467 14.871 TX559 17,127   —    
805105 Section 8 Undesignated Fund Balance 14.871 TX559 10,546   —    
806014 Section 8 – Homeownership Program 467 14.871 TX559 237,115   —    

Total Direct 30,948,114   —    

Total Program 30,948,114   —    

Total CFDA 14.871 30,948,114   —    

Total Housing Voucher Cluster 30,948,114   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

Violence Against Women Act Court Training and Improvement Grants:
Federal:

Direct:
251112 Domestic Violence Court Enhancement 16.013 2011-WC-AX-K011 48,298   —    
251114 Domestic Violence Court Enhancement 16.013 2013-FL-AX-0012 101,513   —    
251214 OVW FY 2013 Domestic Violence Mentor Court Program 16.013 2013-FL-AX-0003 5,558   —    

Total Direct 155,369   —    

Total Program 155,369   —    

Total CFDA 16.013 155,369   —    

Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division:
Program:

Juvenile Accountability Block Grants:
Federal:

Pass Through:
701214 Dallas County Juvenile Drug Court 16.523 JB-12-23630-04 81,012   —    
701215 Dallas County Juvenile Drug Court 16.523 JB-23630-05 6,634   —    
730214 Juvenile Case Management System 16.523 JB-12-XXX-13292-15 57,546   —    
730215 Juvenile Case Management System 16.523 JB-13292-16 6,531   —    

Total Indirect 151,723   —    

Total Program 151,723   —    

Total CFDA 16.523 151,723   —    

Office of Justice Programs/Bureau of Justice Assistance:
Program:

Supervised Visitation, Safe Havens for Children:
Federal:

Direct:
601314 Safe Havens: Supervised Visit & Safe Exchange Program 16.527 2013-FL-AX-K017 104,329   104,329   

Total Direct 104,329   104,329   

Total Program 104,329   104,329   

Total CFDA 16.527 104,329   104,329   
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Justice:
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

Program:
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Allocation to States:

Federal:
Pass Through:

640112 Internet Crimes against Children 16.543 2010-MC-CX-K037 $ 20,793   —    

Total Indirect 20,793   —    

Total Program 20,793   —    

Total CFDA 16.543 20,793   —    

U. S. Department of Justice:
Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division:

Program:
Crime Victim Assistance:

Federal:
Pass Through:

600814 Child Victim’s Assistant 16.575 VA-13-V30-15793-13 55,328   —    
600815 Child Victim’s Assistant 16.575 VA-15793-14 6,624   —    

Total Indirect 61,952   —    

Total Program 61,952   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Dallas Community Supervision and Corrections:

Program:
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State Prisoners:

Federal:
Pass Through:

100414 RSAT Wilmer 16.575 RT-12-A10-14879-15 181,650   —    

Total Indirect 181,650   —    

Total Program 181,650   —    

Total CFDA 16.575 243,602   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division:

Program:
Violence Against Women Formula Grants:

Federal:
Pass Through:

602914 Violence Against Women Formula 16.588 WF-10-V30-26690-01 487,385   —    
602915 Violence Against Women Formula 16.588 WF-26690-02 17,225   —    

Total Indirect 504,610   —    

Total Program 504,610   —    

Total CFDA 16.588 504,610   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

Encourage to Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Program:
Federal:

Direct:
620013 DC Domestic Violence Project 16.590 2012-WE-AX-0015 478,591   —    

Total Direct 478,591   —    

Total Program 478,591   —    

Total CFDA 16.590 478,591   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division:

Program:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program:

Federal:
Pass Through:

700614 Juvenile Residential Drug Treatment Center 16.593 RT-13-A10-14874-16 124,873   —    

Total Indirect 124,873   —    

Total Program 124,873   —    

Total CFDA 16.593 124,873   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

State Criminal Alien Assistance Program:
Federal:

Direct:
47220 SCAAP 2009 16.606 2009-1902 796,272   —    

Total Direct 796,272   —    

Total Program 796,272   —    

Total CFDA 16.606 796,272   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program:
Federal:

Direct:
48050-12 Bulletproof Vest Program FY 12 16.607 2012BOBX11057434 (3,770)  —    

Total Direct (3,770)  —    

Total Program (3,770)  —    

Total CFDA 16.607 (3,770)  —    
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

Prison Rape Elimination Act:
Federal:

Direct:
762013 PREA Implementation Project Grant 16.735 2010-RP-BX-K001 $ 46,549   —    

Total Direct 46,549   —    

Total Program 46,549   —    

Total CFDA 16.735 46,549   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
City of Dallas:

Program:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program:

Federal:
Pass Through:

202011 Justice Assistance Grant FY11 16.738 2011-DJ-BX-2895 130,371   —    
202012 Justice Assistance Grant FY12 16.738 2012-DJ-BX-0199 143,799   —    
202013 Justice Assistance Grant FY13 16.738 2013-DJ-BX-0502 65,733   —    

Total Indirect 339,903   —    

Total Program 339,903   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division:

Program:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program:

Federal:
Pass Through:

100414 RSAT Wilmer 16.738 DJ-11-A10-14879-15 355,311   —    

Total Indirect 355,311   —    

Total Program 355,311   —    

Total CFDA 16.738 695,214   —    

Total JAG Program Cluster 695,214   —    

U. S. Department of Justice
National Institute of Justice

Program:
Forensic DNA Backlog Reduction Program:

Federal:
Direct:

340013 DNA Backlog Reduction Program 16.741 2012-DN-BX-0083 163,420   —    
340014 DNA Backlog Reduction Program 16.741 2012-DN-BX-0083 14,948   —    

Total Direct 178,368   —    

Total Program 178,368   —    

Total CFDA 16.741 178,368   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement:
Federal:

Direct:
340313 Enhancement of Local Crime Lab & Medical Examiner Services 16.742 2012-CD-BX-0072 114,423   —    

Total Direct 114,423   —    

Total Program 114,423   —    

Total CFDA 16.742 114,423   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

Bureau of Justice Assistance
Federal:

Direct:
660614 Wrongful Conviction Review Program 16.746 2013-FA-BX-0005 78,898   —    

Total Direct 78,898   —    
Total Program 78,898   —    
Total CFDA 16.746 78,898   —    

U.S. Department of Justice:
Program:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program:
Federal:

Direct:
202511 National Justice Information Sharing Initiative 16.751 2010-DB-BX-K060 67,700   —    

Total Direct 67,700   —    

Total Program 67,700   —    

Total CFDA 16.751 67,700   —    
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Justice:
Drug Enforcement Agency:
Program:

State and Local Narcotics Control Assistance:
Federal:

Direct:
91001 Confiscated Funds Constable Pct. 4 – Federal 16.922 N/A $ 6,193   —    
91002 Sheriff Federal Asset Sharing 16.922 N/A 528,223   —    
91004 Federal Forfeiture Funds Pct. 2 16.922 N/A 36,131   —    
91005 Federal Forfeiture Funds Pct. 1 16.922 N/A 497   —    
91006 Federal Forfeiture Funds Pct. 3 16.922 N/A 12,185   —    
540 DA Forfeiture – Federal 16.922 N/A 127,643   —    

Total Direct 710,872   —    

Total Program 710,872   —    

Total CFDA 16.922 710,872   —    

U.S. Department of Transportation:
North Central Texas Council of Governments:

Program:
Highway Planning and Construction:

Federal:
Pass Through:

530413 Courtesy Patrol Program 20.205 18-2XXF5001 515,025   —    
530414 Courtesy Patrol Program 20.205 18-4XXF5002 2,746,782   —    
530415 Courtesy Patrol Program 20.205 18-4XXF5002 272,253   —    

Total Indirect 3,534,060   —    

Total Program 3,534,060   —    

Total CFDA 20.205 3,534,060   —    

Total Highway Planning & Construction Cluster 3,534,060   —    

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Texas Department of Transportation:

Program:
State and Community Highway Safety:

Federal:
Pass Through:

530313 STEP Single Year – 2013 Comprehensive 20.600 2013-DallasCo-S-IYG-0064 (4,043)  —    
530314 STEP Single Year – 2013 Comprehensive 20.600 584EGF5166 81,779   —    

Total Indirect 77,736   —    

Total Program 77,736   —    

Total CFDA 20.600 77,736   —    

Total Highway Safety Cluster 77,736   —    

U.S. Department of Energy:
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs:

Program:
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons:

Federal:
Pass Through:

830513 DOE Weatherization 81.042 56130001927 236,135   —    
832013 DOE Weatherization 81.042 56110001902 101,994   —    

Total Indirect 338,129   —    

Total Program 338,129   —    

Total CFDA 81.042 338,129   —    

U.S Department of Education:
Texas Education Agency:

Program:
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies:

Federal:
Pass Through:

750214 Title I Part A Improving Basic Program 84.010 14610101057950 397,642   —    
750914 Title I Part D Subpart 2 Delinquent Programs 84.010 14610103057814 955,089   —    

Total Indirect 1,352,731   —    

Total Program 1,352,731   —    

Total CFDA 84.010 1,352,731   —    

Total Title I, Part A Cluster 1,352,731   —    

U.S. Department of Education:
Texas Education Agency:

Program:
Special Education Grants to States:

Federal:
Pass Through:

750614 Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA) 84.027 146600010578146600 93,569   —    

Total Indirect 93,569   —    

Total Program 93,569   —    

Total CFDA 84.027 93,569   —    

Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 93,569   —    
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Education:
Region 10 Education Services (ESC10):

Program:
English Language Acquisition Grants:

Federal:
Pass Through:

751114 Title III Part A LEP 84.365 14671001057950 $ 3,901   —    

Total Indirect 3,901   —    

Total Program 3,901   —    

Total CFDA 84.365 3,901   —    

U.S. Department of Education:
Region 10 Education Services (ESC10):

Program:
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants:

Federal:
Pass Through:

750314 Title II Part A Teacher and Principal Training and Recruiting 84.367 14694501057950 51,766   —    

Total Indirect 51,766   —    

Total Program 51,766   —    

Total CFDA 84.367 51,766   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
National Assn of County and City Health Officials:

Program:
Medical Reserve Corps. Small Grant Program:

Federal:
Pass Through:

890211 National Association of County and City Health Official Medical R Corp 93.008 MRC#11154 1,133   —    
890212 National Association of County and City 93.008 MRC#12154 1,102   —    
890213 National Association of County and City Health Official Medical R Corp 93.008 MRC # 13 154 1,949   —    
890214 N Assoc. of CO. / City Health Officials Medical Reserve Corp (Donation) 93.008 5MRCSG101005-04-00 8,634   —    

Total Indirect 12,818   —    

Total Program 12,818   —    

Total CFDA 93.008 12,818   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Dallas Area Agency on Aging:

Program:
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers:

Federal:
Pass Through:

840114 Nutrition Transportation 2014 93.044 2013 – 1437 290,183   —    

Total Indirect 290,183   —    

Total Program 290,183   —    

Total CFDA 93.044 290,183   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Dallas Area Agency on Aging:

Program:
Special Programs for Aging Title III Part C Nutrition Services:

Federal:
Pass Through:

840014 Nutrition 2014 93.045 2013-1437 305,882   —    
840314 Congregate Meals 93.045 2013-1437 812,762   —    
840315 Congregate Meals 93.045 2014-1203 1,241   —    

Total Indirect 1,119,885   —    

Total Program 1,119,885   —    

Total CFDA 93.045 1,119,885   —    

Total Aging Cluster 1,410,068   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
CPS – Laboratory Response Network – PHEP:

Federal:
Pass Through:

872014 Bioterrorism Preparedness Lab 93.069 2014-001065-00 168,456   —    
872015 CPS-Laboratory Response Network 93.069 2015-001065-00 6,403   —    
872314 CPS/Bioterrorism Preparedness 93.069 2014-001110-00 1,273,768   —    
872315 Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) 93.069 2015-001110-00 101,786   —    
872514 CPS – Cities Readiness Initiative 93.069 2014-001112-00 363,213   —    
872515 CPS Cities Readiness Initiative 93.069 2015-047015-001 15,867   —    
874314 Bioterrorism Discretionary 93.069 2014-045405 1,002   —    

Total Indirect 1,930,495   —    

Total Program 1,930,495   —    

Total CFDA 93.069 1,930,495   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for Tuberculosis Control Programs:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870714 Tuberculosis 93.116 2014-001403-00 723,237   —    
870715 Tuberculosis 93.116 2015-001403-00 72,863   —    

Total Indirect 796,100   —    

Total Program 796,100   —    

Total CFDA 93.116 796,100   —    

11 (Continued)



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
HIV/Substance Abuse and Mental Health Prevention:

Federal:
Pass Through:

873614 HIV/Substance abuse and Metal Health Prevention 93.243 2014-003152-00 $ 89,492   —    
873615 Substance Abuse & Mental Health Prevention 93.243 (454)  —    

Total Indirect 89,038   —    

Total Program 89,038   —    

Total CFDA 93.243 89,038   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
Immunization Grants:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870814 Immunization Registry 93.268 2014-001068-00 1,537,947   —    
870815 Immunization Registry 93.268 2015-001068-00 53,209   —    
871014 Immunization Registry P.I. 93.268 2014-001068-00 (33,140)  —    
871015 Immunization Registry P.I. 93.268 2015-001068-00 5,987   —    
871514 Adult Safety Net Program Income 93.268 2014-001068-00 (10,283)  —    

Total Indirect 1,553,720   —    

Total Program 1,553,720   —    

Total CFDA 93.268 1,553,720   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Program:
Strengthening Public Health Infrastructure

Federal:
Direct:

890314 Strengthening Public Health Infrastructure 93.292 5U58CD001278-04 167,401   —    

Total Indirect 167,401   —    

Total Program 167,401   —    

Total CFDA 93.292 167,401   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
HIV Prevention Plan to Address Gaps in Dallas Area:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870414 HIV Prevention Plan 93.523 2014-001161-00 206,622   —    

Total Indirect 206,622   —    

Total Program 206,622   —    

Total CFDA 93.523 206,622   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Attorney General of Texas:

Program:
Child Support Enforcement:

Federal:
Pass Through:

31901 IV-D Fees Dist. Clerk 93.563 N/A 735,607   —    
31902 IV-D Fees Constable 93.563 N/A 63,393   —    
31903 IV-D Fees Sheriff 93.563 N/A 25,443   —    
31903 IV-D Fees Child Support 93.563 N/A 1,203,662   —    
31904 Child Support Customer Service 93.563 N/A 18,855   —    
31905 Child Support IV-D Local Rule Incentive 93.563 N/A 88,179   —    

Total Indirect 2,135,139   —    

Total Program 2,135,139   —    

Total CFDA 93.563 2,135,139   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance-State Administered Programs:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870214 TB Refugee 93.566 2014-001035-00 1,334,049   —    
870215 TB Refugee 93.566 2015-001035-00 56,044   —    

Total Indirect 1,390,093   —    

Total Program 1,390,093   —    

Total CFDA 93.566 1,390,093   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs:

Program:
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance:

Federal:
Pass Through:

830014 CEAP Supplement 93.568 58130001961 1,860,570   —    
830113 CEAP 93.568 58130001632 1,982,260   —    
830114 CEAP 93.568 58140001800 1,089,476   —    
830213 LIHEAP Weatherization 93.568 811300001725 1,167,225   —    
830214 LIHEAP Weatherization 93.568 81140001877 744,185   —    

Total Indirect 6,843,716   —    

Total Program 6,843,716   —    

Total CFDA 93.568 6,843,716   —    
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870214 TB Refugee 93.576 2014-001035-00 $ 1,335   —    
870215 TB Refugee 93.576 2015-001035-00 56   —    

Total Indirect 1,391   —    

Total Program 1,391   —    

Total CFDA 93.576 1,391   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
National Association of County & City Health Officials (NACCHO)

Program:
YMCA Pre-Diabetes Project

Federal
Pass Through:

890614 National Association of County & City Health Officials YMCA Pre-Diabetes Project 93.610 2014-070102 20,000   —    

Total Indirect 20,000   —    

Total Program 20,000   —    

Total CFDA 93.610 20,000   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Texas Department of Family and Protective Services:

Program:
Foster Care -Title IV E:

Federal:
Pass Through:

47530 CPS Attorney 93.658 23,357,384    580,078   —    
47760 Child Specific Expense 93.658 23,380,594    26,283   —    

Total Indirect 606,361   —    

Total Program 606,361   —    

Texas Juvenile Justice Department:
Program:

Foster Care – Title IV:
Federal:

Pass Through:
710714 Title IV-E Federal Foster Care Program – Administration 93.658 TJJD-E-057-2014 10,931   —    

Total Indirect 10,931   —    

Total Program 10,931   —    

Total CFDA 93.658 617,292   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
CPS – Laboratory Response Network – HPP:

Federal:
Pass Through:

872814 CPS-LRN – HPP Preparedness and Prevention 93.889 2014-001064-00 11,599   —    

Total Indirect 11,599   —    

Total Program 11,599   —    

Total CFDA 93.889 11,599   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Health Resources and Services Administration:

Program:
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants:

Federal:
Direct:

6550213 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Formula Admin Agency 93.914 H89HA00014-23-00 3,413,359   2,926,867   
6550214 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Formula Admin Agency 93.914 H89HA00014-24-00 5,263,868   4,894,746   
6550313 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Formula Quality Management 93.914 H89HA00014-23-00 151,164   —    
6550314 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Formula Quality Management 93.914 H89HA00014-24-00 182,735   —    
6550613 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Formula 93.914 H89HA00014-23-00 34,352   —    
6550614 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Formula 93.914 H89HA00014-24-00 64,481   —    
6550813 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Supplemental 93.914 H89HA00014-23-02 3,111,997   3,062,294   
6550814 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Part A Supplemental 93.914 H89HA00014-24-00 1,014,022   1,014,022   
6550913 RW TMA 2006 Part A Supplemental 93.914 H89HA00014-23-02 67,967   —    
6551013 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Minority AIDS Initiative Admin Agency 93.914 H89HA00014-23-00 481,238   462,576   
6551014 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Minority AIDS Initiative Admin Agency 93.914 H89HA00014-24-00 584,888   560,786   
6551113 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Minority AIDS Initiative Quality Management 93.914 H89HA00014-23-00 10,314   —    
6551114 RW HIV/AIDS TEA 2009 Minority AIDS Initiative Quality Management 93.914 H89HA00014-24-00 13,652   —    
6551213 RW HIV / AIDS Treatment Extension Act of 2009 MAI Offset 93.914 H89HA00014-23-02 49,789   49,789   
6551313 RW HIV / AIDS Treatment Extension Act of 2009 MAI Offset 93.914 H89HA00014-23-02 28,371   28,371   

Total Direct 14,472,197   12,999,451   

Total Program 14,472,197   12,999,451   

Total CFDA 93.914 14,472,197   12,999,451   
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
HIV Care Formula Grants:

Federal:
Pass Through:

6560014 DSHS PROGRAM: HIV-RYAN WHITE AA 93.917 2014-001459-00 $ 348,799   —    
6560015 DSHS PROGRAM: HIV-RYAN WHITE AA 93.917 2015-001459-00 23,042   —    
6560314 DSHS PROGRAM – HIV-RYAN WHITE SD 93.917 2014-001459-00 3,176,876   3,176,876   

Total Indirect 3,548,717   3,176,876   

Total Program 3,548,717   3,176,876   

Total CFDA 93.917 3,548,717   3,176,876   

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
HIV Prevention:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870315 AIDS Surveillance 93.940 2015-047008-001 20,901   —    
872715 AIDS Surveillance Prenatal 93.940 2015-047015-001 4,586   —    
870614 VD Epidemiology 93.940 2014-001333-00 190,380   —    
874014 Syphilis Elimination Effort Program 93.940 2014-001333-00 52,035   —    
874114 HIV Prevention Special Projects 93.940 2014-001333-00 14,476   —    

Total Indirect 282,378   —    

Total Program 282,378   —    

Total CFDA 93.940 282,378   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
Human Immune Virus/Acquired Immune-Deficiency Syndrome Surveillance:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870314 AIDS Surveillance 93.944 2014-001393-00 271,559   —    
872714 AIDS Surveillance Prenatal 93.944 2015-047015-001 49,482   —    

Total Indirect 321,041   —    

Total Program 321,041   —    

Total CFDA 93.944 321,041   —    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of State Health Services:

Program:
Preventive Health Services Sexually Transmitted Disease Control Grants:

Federal:
Pass Through:

870614 VD Epidemiology 93.977 2014-001333-00 867,287   —    
874014 Syphilis Elimination Effort Program 93.977 2014-001333-00 237,047   —    
874114 HIV Prevention Special Projects 93.977 2014-001333-00 65,948   —    

Total Indirect 1,170,282   —    

Total Program 1,170,282   —    

Total CFDA 93.977 1,170,282   —    
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2014

Amounts
Federal grantor / Federal passed to

pass-through grantor / other grantor / CFDA Grant through
program title / grant title number number Expenditure subrecipients

Social Security Administration:
Social Security Administration:

Program:
Social Security Disability Insurance:

Federal:
Direct:

590013 Social Security Fraud Investigation 96.001 SS06-10-60012 $ 184,207   —    
590014 Social Security Fraud Investigation 96.001 SS06-10-60012 207,270   —    
47750 Social Security Recovery 96.001 N/A 731,600   —    

Total Direct 1,123,077   —    

Total Program 1,123,077   —    

Total CFDA 96.001 1,123,077   —    

Total Disability Insurance/SSI Cluster 1,123,077   —    

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Governors Division of Emergency Management:

Program:
Urban Area Security Initiative:

Federal:
Pass Through:

410713 Urban Areas Security Initiative 97.008 2010-SS-T0-0008 72,828   —    

Total Indirect 72,828   —    

Total Program 72,828   —    

Total CFDA 97.008 72,828   —    

Governors Division of Emergency Management:
Program:

Urban Area Security Initiative:
Federal:

Pass Through:
410714 Urban Areas Security Initiative 97.067 EMW-2013-SS-00045 109,417   —    

Total Indirect 109,417   —    

Total Program 109,417   —    

Total CFDA 97.067 109,417   —    

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Federal Emergency Management Agency:

Program:
Pre – Disaster Mitigation Program:

Federal:
Pass-Through:

410913 Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program 97.047 PL-06-TX-2012-032 49,324   —    

Total Indirect 49,324   —    

Total Program 49,324   —    

Total CFDA 97.047 49,324   —    

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Office of Health Affairs:

Program:
Homeland Security Biowatch Program:

Federal:
Direct:

880113 Homeland Security (BIO WATCH) 97.091 HSHQVC-12-P-00113 32,467   —    
880114 Homeland Security (BIO WATCH) 97.091 ROHB-13-00093 36,355   —    
880115 Homeland Security (BIO WATCH) 97.091 ROHB-14-00077 7,029   —    

Total Direct 75,851   —    

Total Program 75,851   —    

Total CFDA 97.091 75,851   —    
Grand total federal $ 84,733,181   17,283,862   

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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(1) General 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) presents the activity of all 
federal award programs of Dallas County, Texas (the County), except for the federal award programs of the 
Dallas County Hospital District (the District), a component unit of the County, which has been excluded. 
The District issued a separate single audit report for the year ended September 30, 2014. The County’s 
reporting entity is defined in note 1.A to the County’s basic financial statements. 

(2) Basis of Accounting 

The Schedule was prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Federal award revenues are 
reported as intergovernmental revenues in the General Fund and the Special Revenue funds in the County’s 
basic financial statements. 

(3) Immunization Vaccines 

Dallas County is a vaccine provider for the State of Texas Health Department Childhood Immunization 
Grant. The value of vaccines received from the State was $4,487,504 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2014. The vaccines are not awards under the grant and have not been included in the Schedule. 
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Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?    yes  X  no 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weakness(es)?    yes  X  none reported 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?  X  yes    no 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses?    yes  X  none reported 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 
for major programs Qualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) 
of OMB Circular A-133?  X  yes    no 

CFDA
number Name of state program or cluster

16.922 Equitable Sharing Program
Various Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
93.568 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
93.914 HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants

 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B programs: Federal $2,541,995 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

 Federal  X  yes    no 
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Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

None Noted. 



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

September 30, 2014 

 19 (Continued) 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Program name CFDA Expenditures

Equitable Sharing Program 16.922   $ 710,872   
 

Federal Award Number: N/A 

FINDING #2014-001: Activities Allowed or Unallowed/Allowable Costs 

Criteria or Specific Requirement 

Per OMB Circular A-87 (2 CFR Part 225), Attachment A, Paragraph C, to be allowable under Federal awards, 
costs must be necessary and reasonable for the performance and administration of Federal awards and be consistent 
with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to both Federal awards and other activities of the 
governmental unit. In addition, based on the Guide to Equitable Sharing for State and Local Law Enforcement 
Agencies, published by the Department of Justice, a permissible use of the equitably shared funds is law 
enforcement training. 

Condition 

Control 

The County’s policy is to have requests for payment provided to management for review prior to processing. 
However, the underlying support for the transactions included in the payment requests were not submitted as part 
of this review for this program. Thus, resulting in a deficiency in the design of this control. 

Compliance 

During our testwork over activities allowed and allowable costs for this major program, we selected a sample of 
65 expenditures which totaled $561,842. Within our sample, we noted one expenditure for $51,191 related to bar 
dues for attorneys from the County’s District Attorney’s office. Expenditures related to bar dues are not considered 
to be expenditures related to law enforcement training as allowed per the Guide to Equitable Sharing for State and 
Local Law Enforcement Agencies published by the Department of Justice. 

Questioned Costs 

$51,191 – The amount of the dues paid by the County. 

Possible Asserted Cause and Effect 

Management failed to establish and maintain an effective control environment over the allowable costs/allowable 
activities compliance requirement for this major program. 

The effect of this absence of effective control procedures is an increased likelihood of noncompliance and 
questioned costs related to this compliance requirement. 

An important element of this control environment is to ensure that there is proper oversight of the expenditures of 
the program by individuals that are knowledgeable of the program’s requirement and understand, which activities 
or costs are permissible or not under the program. 
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Recommendation 

We recommend the County’s management design and implement control activities to ensure transactions are 
appropriately reviewed prior to processing. 

View of the Responsible Officials 

Funds have been deposited in County accounts where the County’s management will maintain effective control 
activities to ensure transactions are appropriately reviewed prior to processing and allow for more transparency. 
Corrections for past errors have been made.  

It is agreed that State Bar dues are an impermissible use of federal forfeiture funds (they are an appropriate 
expenditure of State Bar dues). The District Attorney’s Office has disbursed a check totaling $153,876 (for three 
years of State Bar dues) from the District Attorney’s state forfeiture account (such an expenditure is authorized 
under Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 59.06 [d-4] [9]) to reimburse the Department of Justice federal forfeiture 
account.  

A control environment has already been put in place to ensure that there is proper oversight of the expenditures of 
the program by individuals that are knowledgeable of the program’s requirements and that understand which 
activities or costs are permissible or not under the programs. Such transactions will be appropriately reviewed prior 
to processing and allow for more transparency. The District Attorney’s Office will maintain an effective control 
environment to ensure the procurement for all goods and services are processed through the County’s Purchasing 
Department in accordance with Dallas County Code and the Guide to Equitable Sharing for State and Local Law 
Enforcement Agencies. 
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Program CFDA Expenditures

Equitable Sharing Program 16.922   $ 710,872   
 

Federal Award Number: N/A 

FINDING #2014-002: Equipment and Real Property Management 

Criteria or Specific Requirement 

Per 2 CFR Section 215.34 (f): 

(1) Equipment records shall be maintained accurately and shall include the following information: 

(i) A description of the equipment. 

(ii) Manufacturer’s serial number, model number, Federal stock number, national stock number, or other 
identification number. 

(iii) Source of the equipment, including the award number. 

(iv) Whether title vests in the recipient or the Federal Government. 

(v) Acquisition date (or date received, if the equipment was furnished by the Federal Government) and 
cost. 

(vi) Information from which one can calculate the percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the 
equipment (not applicable to equipment furnished by the Federal Government). 

(vii) Location and condition of the equipment and the date the information was reported. 

(viii) Unit acquisition cost. 

(ix) Ultimate disposition data, including date of disposal and sales price or the method used to determine 
current fair market value where a recipient compensates the Federal awarding agency for its share. 

(2) Equipment owned by the Federal Government shall be identified to indicate Federal ownership. 

(3) A physical inventory of equipment shall be taken and the results reconciled with the equipment records at 
least once every two years. Any differences between quantities determined by the physical inspection and 
those shown in the accounting records shall be investigated to determine the causes of the difference. The 
recipient shall, in connection with the inventory, verify the existence, current utilization, and continued need 
for the equipment. 
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Condition 

Control 

Management failed to establish an effective control environment to ensure that the population of equipment was 
complete and accurate as of September 30, 2014. 

Compliance 

During our testwork over Equipment for this major program, the engagement team requested but was unable to 
obtain a complete listing of equipment. The listing obtained only included recent purchases and inquiry with 
management regarding the subject matter did not lead to resolution of the matter. 

Questioned Costs 

Undetermined 

Possible Asserted Cause and Effect 

The effect of this absence of effective control procedures is an increased likelihood of noncompliance and 
questioned costs related to this compliance requirement. 

An important element of this control environment is to ensure that there are proper procedures in place for the 
maintenance of equipment and the related records. Proper procedures would include charging knowledgeable 
individuals with the responsibilities of maintaining and tracking the equipment and related records. 

Recommendation 

We recommend the County’s management design and implement control activities to ensure proper records are 
maintained for equipment and that the equipment itself be tracked and accounted for at an appropriately detailed 
level. 

View of the Responsible Officials 

The County maintains a listing of property purchases (capital assets) valued at $5,000 or more in accordance with 
Dallas County Code Section 70.361. The District Attorney’s Office has developed a more complete list (of both 
capital and non-capital assets) of vehicles, equipment, firearms and personal equipment, furniture, computers, 
software, etc. for items seized via forfeiture or purchased with forfeiture funds. The District Attorney’s Office 
management has designed and implemented control activities to ensure proper records are maintained in 
accordance with 2 CFR Section 215.34(f)(1) and Dallas County Code Section 90-373 for equipment/property and 
that the equipment/property itself is accounted for and tracked at an appropriately detailed level. 
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Program CFDA Expenditures

Equitable Sharing Program 16.922   $ 710,872   
 

Federal Award Number: N/A 

FINDING #2014-003: Procurement and Suspension and Debarment 

Criteria or Specific Requirement 

Per 2 CFR Part 215.46, procurement records and files for purchases in excess of the small purchase threshold shall 
include the following at a minimum: 

(a) Basis for contractor selection; 

(b) Justification for lack of competition when competitive bids or offers are not obtained; and 

(c) Basis for award cost or price. 

Per 2 CFR 180.300, an entity shall do the following before entering into a covered transaction with an entity or 
person: 

(a) Checking SAM Exclusions; or 

(b) Collecting a certification from that person; or 

(c) Adding a clause or condition to the contract related to the covered transaction. 

Condition 

Control 

Through inquiry with management, purchases for goods and services for this major program are not processed 
through the County’s Purchasing Department. Therefore, the procurement transactions related to this program were 
not subject to the County’s established control environment. 

Compliance 

During our testwork over Procurement and Suspension and Debarment for this major program, we selected all 
three (3) entities with which the County entered into a covered transaction during the fiscal year. For one of three 
entities selected, the procurement documentation of significant history of the procurement, including the rationale 
for the method of the procurement, selection of the contract type, contractor selection, or rejection, and the basis 
of the contract price did not exist. 

For each of the three entities, there was not any documentation that the County performed the necessary procedures 
to ensure that the entities were not suspended or debarred as described above. We independently performed a 
search for the three entities and determined that they were not suspended or debarred. 
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Questioned Costs 

None 

Possible Asserted Cause and Effect 

The County’s management failed to establish an effective control environment over purchases of goods and 
services related to this major program.  

The effect of this absence of effective control procedures is an increased likelihood of noncompliance and 
questioned costs related to this compliance requirement. 

Recommendation 

We recommend Management establish and maintain an effective control environment to ensure that the 
procurement of all goods and services related to this major program are processed through the County’s Purchasing 
Department. 

View of the responsible officials 

The District Attorney’s Office will maintain an effective control environment to ensure the procurement for all 
goods and services are processed through the County’s Purchasing Department in the future in accordance with 2 
CFR Part 215.46 with particular attention that the necessary procedures are followed to ensure that the entities are 
not suspended or debarred in accordance with 2 CFR 180.300. A control environment has already been put in place 
to ensure that there is proper oversight of the expenditures of the program by individuals that are knowledgeable 
of the program’s requirements and understand which activities or costs are permissible or not under the programs. 
Such transactions will be appropriately reviewed prior to processing.  

Checks and balances have been and are being implemented to ensure that proper procedures will be implemented 
and enforced now and in the future.  
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DALLAS COUNTY 

COUNTY AUDITOR 

 

 

March 24, 2015 

 

 

Honorable District Judges of Dallas County and 

Honorable Members of the Dallas County Commissioners Court: 

 

State law, V.T.C.A. Local Government Code 114.025 and 115.045, requires issuance of an annual financial 

report and an annual independent audit of all matters relating to fiscal affairs of the County. Pursuant to those 

requirements, we hereby release the comprehensive annual financial report of the County of Dallas for the 

fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. 

 

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the County. Consequently, 

management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented 

in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the County has established a 

comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the County’s assets from loss, theft, 

or misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the basic financial statements in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

Accounting requirements for Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Numbers 66, 67 

and 70 were reviewed for implementation in FY2014; however, it was determined none effected the County’s 

financial statements. These statements are explained on page 35 of the Notes. Because the cost of internal 

controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has 

been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the basic financial statements will be 

free from material misstatement. Responsibility for internal controls is shared by Commissioners Court, which 

is the governing body; the County Auditor, (appointed by the District Judges); the Office of Budget and 

Evaluation (appointed by Commissioners Court); and, the County Treasurer (an elected position). We believe 

that the County’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of 

proper recording of financial transactions. We assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial 

report is complete and reliable in all material respects.  

 

The County’s basic financial statements have been audited by KPMG, LLP. The goal of the independent audit 

was to provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements of the County, for the fiscal year ended 

September 30, 2014, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test 

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements; assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation. The independent auditors’ report is presented as the first component of the financial 

section of this report. 

 

Generally accepted accounting principles require a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 

accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). 

The introduction includes this transmittal letter, the County’s organizational chart and a list of principal 

officials. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction 

with it. The financial section also includes government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, 

notes to the financial statements, required supplementary information and the combining and individual fund 

financial statements and schedules in addition to the report of the independent auditors on the financial 
statements and schedules. The statistical section of this report includes selected financial and demographic 

information, which is generally presented on a multi-year basis. 
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PROFILE OF DALLAS COUNTY 

 

The County is located in north central Texas, and is strategically central to the economic region of Texas, 

Louisiana, Arkansas, Oklahoma, and New Mexico, as well as centrally located within the United States. The 

County region was opened for settlement by the Mexican colonization laws and was included in an impresario 

grant before 1836, but actual settlement was delayed until 1841. The first Texas legislature created the County 

from parts of Robertson and Nacogdoches counties on March 30, 1846, and designated the town of Dallas (a 

post office since 1844) as a temporary ―Seat of Justice.‖ The act does not state whom the County’s name 

honors; it probably was George M. Dallas, then vice president of the United States. Two elections were held in 

1850 to fix the city of Dallas as the permanent county seat. The County encompasses an area of 900 square 

miles. The 2010 census reported population for the County of 2,368,139. The County has participated in 

building 36.2 miles of trails for the public. The County is a public corporation and political subdivision of the 

State of Texas. The general governing body of the County is the elected five-member Commissioners Court in 

accordance with Article 5, Paragraph 18 of the Texas Constitution. Commissioners serve four-year staggered 

terms, two members elected every two years. The County Judge is elected at large to serve a four-year term.  

 

The Commissioners Court sets the tax rates, establishes policies for County operations, approves contracts for 

the County and develops and adopts the County budget within the resources as estimated by the County 

Auditor. The Commissioners Court is also responsible for development of policies and orders, approving 

financial commitments and appointment of various department heads. The management and leadership 

provided by members of the Commissioners Court and the elected and appointed officials of other key County 

offices is crucial to the success of the County in financial management and growth. The commissioners serve 

on various boards and committees including the Dallas County Criminal Justice Advisory Board, Bail Bond 

Task Force, the DWI Task Force, North Texas Behavioral Health Authority (NTBHA), Greater Dallas 

Homeless Policy Alliance, Public Employee Benefits Cooperative (PEBC), Prostitute Diversion Initiative 

(PDI) and an alternate for the Regional Transportation Committee, Dallas Convention Visitors Bureau, Dallas 

Zoological Society, New Friends New Life, Methodist Dallas Medical Center, Dallas County Civil Service 

Commission,  Jail Population Committee, Dallas County Juvenile Board, Jail Sanitation and Maintenance 

Committee, Dallas County and  Housing Finance Corporation, Public Health Advisory, Bioterrorism and 

Safety, the Texas Conference of Urban Counties, Behavioral Health Leadership Team, and Civil Service 

Committee. 

 

The County Auditor is appointed according to Texas State Statutes for two-year terms by the District Judges. 

The County Auditor has responsibilities for prescribing the systems and procedures for handling the finances 

of the County, certifying available funds for county budgets, and ―examining, auditing, and approving‖ all 

disbursements from County funds prior to their submission to the Commissioners Court for approval. It is the 

Auditor’s duty under statutory mandates to determine if claims are in conformance to laws governing county 

finance and to audit records of precinct offices that collect funds. The Auditor presents status of audit risk 

assessments to the Finance Committee and publishes final audit reports on the web. The Commissioners Court 

has vested accounts payable and payroll processing functions with the County Auditor. Additionally, the 

County Auditor serves as Chief Financial Officer for federal and state financial award programs; Juvenile 

Programs and Adult Probation Departments. 

 

Financial management controls regarding banking and investment are managed by the County Treasurer, an 

elected position. The Treasurer chairs the County Finance Committee and submits for annual recertification an 

official investment policy. In accordance to Texas state statutes, the County’s investment policy was reviewed 

and certified with recommended updates. Budget authority, control over purchasing transactions, and human 

resource management are assigned to directors appointed by Commissioners Court. Policy and procedures are 

developed according to sound business practices and in strict conformance to federal and local financial 

statutes. 

 

The County provides many services not ordinarily provided by any other entity of government and provides 

additional services in cooperation with other local governmental units. A primary service is the administration 

of justice, which includes the civil and criminal county and district courts, justices of the peace, constables, 
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district attorney, investigators, clerks of the courts, sheriff, jail, security and emergency management, medical 

examiner, crime laboratory and grand jury bailiffs. Other functions performed by the County include the 

construction and maintenance of roads and bridges, either independently or in cooperation with other entities; 

administration of public health services; assistance to indigents; and the provision of juvenile, health, 

education and welfare services involving the care and correction of dependent or delinquent children, as well 

as property tax collections for multiple agencies. 

 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the County’s planning and control. Budget workshops are 

hosted periodically by the Office of Budget and Evaluation with the final budget approved by the 

Commissioners Court in accordance with statutory guidelines. Potential loss of state and federal funds is 

considered in developing the budget. The final budget includes contingency and emergency reserves line 

items. Encumbrances are carried forward to the subsequent year. Unencumbered appropriations for the general 

fund lapse at fiscal year-end. The General fund unassigned reserves are addressed in budget policies, targeted 

at 10.5% of current expenditures, and used to smooth uneven revenue flows. Cost savings initiatives of recent 

years have been positive and pay raises were approved for 2014. The Commissioners Court has committed 

funds for major technology projects and major capital development. Any available budget for these committed 

funds is carried forward annually for those specific purposes. Most appropriated budgets are prepared by fund, 

function, department, and category. Capital expenditures for general operations are approved on a line item 

basis but a multi-year capital improvement plan is utilized to track major capital projects. All budget transfers 

between departments and/or projects must follow statutory approval processes. Budget to actual comparisons 

are provided in this report for each individual government fund for which an appropriated annual budget has 

been adopted. Budgets funded by federal and state financial assistance are authorized individually on 

application and acceptance of awards by order of the Commissioners Court. 

 

Another governmental unit is included in the County’s reporting entity because the County’s governing body 

appoints the board, sets tax rate and operational and financial relationship with the County is significant. 

 
Discretely Presented Component Unit - The Dallas County Hospital District (the District) 

is under the direction of a seven-member board of managers who are appointed by the 

Commissioners Court. Although the Commissioners Court approves the District’s budget, 

sets its tax rate, and approves major contracts, the District is an organization separate from the 

County. These factors dictate the inclusion of the District in the County’s financial 

statements. According to the Texas Constitution, the hospital district, not the County, is 

responsible for the district’s ongoing debt payments regardless of any future 

financial/economic events. The District’s financial data is presented separately to emphasize 

that it is legally separate from the County. The District operates under different statutory and 

constitutional authority. The District also has a separate constitutional tax limitation, the 

independent power of eminent domain and the individual right of ownership of property. The 

District maintains a medical facility, which provides service to indigents residing within the 

District and serves as the major teaching hospital for the University of Texas Southwestern 

Medical School. The hospital is a Level I Trauma Center, a Level III Neonatal Intensive Care 

Unit and a regional burn center. 

 

Local Economy 

 

The Dallas Metropolitan area is headquarters for many Fortune 500 companies representing a diversified 

economy which includes technology, retail, manufacturing, and services. The ongoing industry in Texas is 

growing faster than the national average. Dallas and Fort Worth (DFW) have seen dramatic growth in the 

video game studies and gaming software development jobs. Public transit options continue to expand 

significantly, though in several outlying suburbs, it remains limited. The area also reflects art, fashion, and 

entertainment. It is the site of a district Federal Reserve Bank and Dallas – Fort Worth International Airport. 

Together with the Fort Worth Metropolitan area, DFW comprises the nation’s fourth largest urban economy 

with per capita personal income (PCPI) 105% of national average (U.S. Department of Commerce, BEA). The 

benefits component of compensation costs continued to increase in DFW metropolitan area according to U.S. 
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Bureau of Labor statistics. The local unemployment rate dropped from 6.1% to 5.0%. The area enjoys 

relatively low taxes with no personal or corporate state income tax and maximum state and city sales tax of 

8.25%. 

 

Dallas home prices increased 7.4% in September from a year earlier, according to S&P Case-Shiller Home 

Price Index. Dallas is one of only two cities to see an annual gains increase as of September 2014. 

Construction starts for apartment buildings, offices, and warehouse locations are strong. Research indicates the 

number of Dallas-area homes posted for foreclosure continues to decline. Economic declines noted for the top 

10 employers and taxpayers were noted in banking, telecom, and food industries. The combined appraisal 

value of the 10 largest taxpayers total 3.63% of the County’s total 2012-2013 appraised value. A schedule 

listing the 10 largest taxpayers can be found in statistical sections of this report. The Federal Open Market 

Committee has maintained the target range for federal fund rates at 0% - .25% since December 2008. 

 

County business planning continues to address performance and reliability of jail operations and transportation 

systems and maintains commitment to e-government. Budget initiatives reflect ongoing focus for public safety 

(success with jail certification), transportation funding (cooperative City projects), and inmate health/security 

(overcrowding). Management initiatives and tight budget controls have resulted in strong general fund reserves 

while achieving success with long-term goals and options to provide employee compensation increases. 

Significant budgetary challenges are housing needs for the homeless, insurance/hospital options for the 

employees, and inmate housing/care. Technology planning is focused on development of the automated courts 

system. The County and surrounding cities are focusing on transportation and infrastructure. Walking trails are 

championed for alternate transportation as well as community use areas. In Dallas, approximately 1.8% of 

commuters walk to work.  

 

Long-term Financial Planning – The County’s Strategic Plan (2007 – 2017) adopted in 2007 outlines 

planning and documentation of all County issues. 

 

Financial planning is affected by the adopted strategies: 

 

 Development of a proactive public policy agenda that continues to be friendly to businesses and meets 

the needs of Dallas County stakeholders. 

 Maintenance of a strong, seamless infrastructure, including systems, processes, and programs. 

 Tracking and marketing Dallas County’s natural resources and assets – locally, regionally, statewide, 

and nationally. 

 

The County utilizes a five-year Capital Improvement Plan as a significant budget tool. The Capital 

Improvement Plan consists of those items whose long useful lives distinguish them from recurring operational 

items. The Major Capital Development Fund (MCDF) provides a funding mechanism as an alternative to debt 

financing for major projects. The MCDF receives property tax funding and is used to fund large capital 

projects similar in nature to projects funded by the County through bonds. The MCDF has three categories of 

projects: transportation, parks and open space, and buildings, plus an energy conservation initiative for utility 

costs. Revenue projections are expected to replenish reserves for future use. In accordance with the Major 

Capital Plan, a percentage of assessed taxes is devoted to large scale capital projects. A total of 5.155 (4.5 plus 

.655) cents per hundred for tax rate is committed to combined Debt Service and MCDF.  

 

The Major Technology Fund receives dedicated property taxes and is used to fund long-term objectives related 

to computer technology. A dedicated tax rate of 1.36 cents per $100 valuation remains relatively consistent 

year-to-year. Funded projects include statewide initiatives to develop technology programs, Microsoft 

licensing and various business management systems. 

 

Another property tax funded program, the Permanent Improvement Fund, managed by the Facilities 

Management Department, is largely utilized to maintain the integrity of the County’s buildings.  

 



Risk management and self-insu rance with stop loss policies for medical, workers' compensation, and propeny
continue to be effective. Various actuarial studies are periodically performed to aid in financial planning. Cost
increases incurred by the County for medical claims are significantly less than industry averages. Cost sharing
formulas for establishing the premium are reviewed annually. Focus remains on provid ing high level care for
employees with reasonable rates and offering a Health Savings Account (HSA), but components of the plan are
being addressed for the 2016 effect ive date of the Affordable Health Care Act.

Major initiatives - County programs were addressed emphasizing public safety and transponation while
focusing on minimizing any need for increasing property tax rates, as well as implementin g cost reduction
meas ures. Signifi cant health safety and care issues were addressed with the Ebola care need, flu epidemic, and
mosqu ito control. The public safety emphasis includes a project to add an in-house jail medica l/mental health
facility to the County jails replacing most of the current medical and mental health services, as well as on­
going technology enhancement projec ts for criminal and civil courts. Technology enhancements included
access management contro ls, pannering with other Texas entities to build judicial tracking systems, evaluate
upgrade options for financial systems and justice courts, and expanding e-cornrnerce options, while
maintain ing strong PCI compliance. IT strategies focus onefficiencies and application security.

AWA RDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEM ENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Ac hievement for Excellence in Financial Reponing to Dallas County for its comprehensive annual financial
report (CAFR ) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. The Ceni ficate of Achievement is a prestigious
national award recognizing confo rmance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local
government financial reports, In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governm ent unit must
publish an easily readable and efficient ly organized CAFR , whose conten ts conform to program standards. The
CAFR must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
appli cable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achie vement is valid for a period of one year only. The County has received a Cen ificate of
Achi evement for the last 33 consecutive yea rs (fiscal years ended 1981 through 20 13). We believe our current
report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it
to the GFOA .

The preparation of the CAFR on a timely basis could not have been accom plished without the efficient and
ded icated services of the staff of the County Auditor' s Office. We express our appreciation to all the members
of the office who assisted in and contrib uted to its preparation. Additionally, credit must be given to the
Co unty Treasurer, Directors of the Office of Budget and Evaluation, Human Resources, Purchasing, and
Publ ic Works for verification and review of key elements of the financial report.

We also thank the members of the Commissioners Court and their staff, and all other County officials and
employees who have given their support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the County in a
responsible manner.

Respectfully submitted,

(..'0" ., QJ;,...
Virginia Porter, CPA
Offi ce of County Auditor
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Commissioners Court Administrator 

* Members of the Commissioners Court serve on the following boards and committees: Texas Jail Standards Commission, 
Texas Juvenile Probation Commission,  Dallas County Juvenile Board, National Association of Counties (NACO), Deferred 
Compensation Committee, NACO Large Urban Counties Caucus, Texas Conference of Urban Counties Chair, Texas Asso-
ciation of Regional Councils, IH635 Coordination Committee, North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) 
Board, Dallas Regional Mobility Coalition, Public Health Advisory Board, North Texas Commission, DFW Partners in Mo-
bility, Regional Transportation Council, NCTCOG Air Carrier Policy Council, Loop 9 Policy Advisory Group, Texas 21 
Statewide Transportation Coalition, Mental Health Task Force, Dallas County DWI Task Force, Community Justice Council, 
Dallas County Housing Finance Corporation, Dalhoma Trail Advisory Committee, Dallas County Civil Service Commission, 
and Public Employee Benefit Cooperative Board. 

** The 39 District Judges appoint the County Auditor, the District Court Administrator, and participate in selecting the Directors 
of the Juvenile Department and the Community Supervision and Corrections Department. 

*** CSCD, CPS and Dallas Metrocare Services (formerly Dallas County MHMR) are independent agencies with important 
County programmatic connections. 

 

Commissioners Court* 
County Judge 

County Commissioners (4) 

Boards and Commissions 
Appointed by 

Commissioners Court 

Child Welfare Board 
Dallas Area NorthSTAR Authority (partial) 
Election Advisory Committee 
Historical Commission 
Historical Foundation 
Metrocare Services (MHMR) 
North Central Texas Health Facilities Development 
 Corporation Board 
North Dallas Tollway Authority  (partial) 
Old Red Courthouse, Inc. 
Park and Open Space Board 
Veterans Land Board 
Welfare Advisory Board 
Youth Services Advisory Board 
 

 

Other Elected 
Officials 

County Clerk 
County Sheriff 
County Tax Assessor/Collector 
County Treasurer 
District Attorney 
District Clerk 
Constables (5) 

 
Judiciary 

District Judges (39)** 
County Judges (21) 
Justices of the Peace (11) Hospital District 

Board 

 
 

Juvenile  
Board 

 
 

County Departments and 
Intergovernmental 

Arrangements 

Auditor** 
Budget and Evaluation 
Child Protective Services*** 
Community Supervision and Corrections*** 
Dallas Metrocare Services*** 
Information Technology Services 
District Court Administrator** 
Elections 
Health and Human Services 
Human Resource/Civil Service 
Institute of Forensic Sciences 
Jury Services 
Law Library 
Office of Security and Emergency Management 
Operations Services 
Planning and Development 
Public Defender 
Public Works 
Purchasing 
Road and Bridge Districts 
Texas Cooperative Extension 
Truancy Court 
Veterans Services 

DALLAS COUNTY VOTERS 

Parkland  Hospital Juvenile Department 

COUNTY ORGANIZATION 
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

Principal Officials 
 

As of September 30, 2014 
 
 

Official Title  Incumbent 

County Judge  Clay Lewis Jenkins 
   
Commissioner, Precinct 1  Dr. Theresa Daniel 
   
Commissioner, Precinct 2  Mike Cantrell 
   
Commissioner, Precinct 3  John Wiley Price 
   
Commissioner, Precinct 4  Dr. Elba Garcia 
   
County Auditor  Virginia Porter 
   
County Treasurer  Joe Wells 
   
Assessor-Collector of Taxes  John R. Ames 
   
County Clerk  John Warren 
   
District Attorney  Craig Watkins  
   
District Clerk  Gary Fitzsimmons 
   
Sheriff  Lupe Valdez 
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KPMG LLP 
Suite 3100 
717 North Harwood Street 
Dallas, TX 75201-6585 
 

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, 
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 

 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Honorable County Judge and Commissioners Court 
Dallas County, Texas: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Dallas 
County, Texas (the County), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Dallas County Hospital District for the year ended September 30, 2014, which 
represents all of the assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component unit. Those 
financial statements were audited by another auditor whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our 
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Dallas County Hospital District, are based solely 
on the report of the other auditor. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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 Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Dallas County, Texas, as of September 30, 2014, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis, the 
budgetary comparison schedules, infrastructure assets under modified approach, and the schedules of 
funding progress on pages 13-25 and 90-99 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining financial 
statements, the budget and actual in the supplementary information, and the statistical section are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining financial statements and the budget and actual in the supplementary information are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements and the budget and actual in the supplementary 
information are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
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 Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 23, 2015 
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 

March 23, 2015 
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Primary Governmental Activities 
(Unaudited) 

 
This management discussion and analysis (MD&A) of Dallas County (County) financial performance 
provides an overview of the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. 
The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and the accompanying 
notes to those financial statements. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of 
dollars. The MD&A includes comparative data for the prior year. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

● The government-wide financial position declined $9,700 in net position from the previous year. The 

total net position is comprised of:   

-    13.6)%)  - restricted by external regulators 

-      0.6)%)  - restricted for debt 

-     (9.4)%  - unrestricted net position funds that may be used to meet on-going obligations to 

citizens and creditors (negative due to unfunded OPEB liability) 

-    95.2)%) - amounts invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

● Major factors contributing to change in net position are: 

- pay increases of 2%, approximately $8 million, including benefits  

- increasing liability for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) 

- increasing depreciation expense for major initiatives 

- increasing property tax values  

● Deferred revenue from property taxes based on the 2014 levy embody a flat tax rate and a 6.4% 

increase in the assessed taxable value after qualified exemptions for real and business personal 

property. 

Governmental Funds Financial Statements 

● The County’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $364,017; compared to 

$396,804 of prior year. Components of fund balances are: 

-    0.9%  - non-spendable: inventories and prepaids 

-    1.5% - restricted to major grants 

-  22.7% - restricted to special projects 

-    1.1% - restricted to debt service 

-  47.8% - committed major projects 

-    3.5% - committed special projects 

-    1.8% - assigned general fund 

-  20.7% - unassigned general fund 

● At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $75,533 

or 16.9% of general fund expenditures. This represents a $4,838 decrease compared to the prior fiscal 

period. 

● Tax revenues realized during the period increased, reflecting strong collection experience on taxable 

values which increased 4.1% over prior tax year. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. The 
County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial 
statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains 
other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances in a manner similar to private sector 
business. They present the financial picture of the County from an economic resources measurement 
focus using full accrual basis of accounting. These statements include all assets of the County (including 
infrastructure), as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt). Additionally, certain eliminations have 
occurred in regards to inter-fund activity, payables and receivables. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on the assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources for the County and its component unit. Components of net 
position exclude fiduciary accounts. Increases or decreases in net position contrasted with budgetary 
decisions serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year using full accrual basis of accounting. All changes in net position are reported as soon 
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other business 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges. The governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, highways 
and streets, public welfare, health, judicial, and education. 
 
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories:  governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-
wide financial statements, however, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year. In particular, unrestricted, unassigned, assigned, and committed fund balances may be 
useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information 
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers 
may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 
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The County maintains 27 individual governmental funds (excluding fiduciary funds), 20 special revenue 
funds, two capital project funds, one Debt Service Fund, one Major Grants Fund, one Major Projects 
Fund, one Internal Service Fund and the General Fund.  Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Major Projects Fund, and Major 
Grant Fund which are classified as major funds. Data from the other non-major governmental funds are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 
 
Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide 
financial statements, only in more detail. The Internal Service Fund (a type of proprietary funds) is used 
to report activities that provide supplies and services for other programs and activities – such as the 
County’s self-insurance program (including workers’ compensation) and employee benefits. Because 
these services predominantly benefit government rather than business-type functions, the Internal Service 
Fund is reported with governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government. The County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Assets 
and Liabilities. These activities are excluded from the County’s other financial statements since the 
County cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much 
like that used for proprietary funds. The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in 
these funds are used for their intended purposes. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning infrastructure assets reported using the 
modified approach, pension, and OPEB benefits for the County and its component unit, and general fund 
and major special revenue fund budgetary schedules. 
 
Discretely Presented Component Unit. The Dallas County Hospital District (District) is under the 
direction of a seven-member Board of Managers appointed by the Commissioners Court. Although the 
Commissioners Court approves the District’s budget, sets its tax rate, and approves major contracts, the 
District is an organization separate from the County. These factors dictate the inclusion of the District in 
the County’s financial statements. The County, however, does not have financial responsibility for the 
District’s debt. The District’s financial data is presented separately to emphasize that it is legally separate 
from the County. The District operates under different statutory and constitutional authority. Only the 
dissolution of the District by a vote of the County’s voters would terminate the District’s responsibility to 
provide health care to its indigent eligible residents. The District also has a separate constitutional tax 
limitation, the independent power of eminent domain, and the individual right of ownership of property. 
 
Complete financial statements for the District may be obtained from: 
 
 Parkland Health & Hospital System 
 5201 Harry Hines Boulevard 
 Dallas, Texas  75235 
 Attn:  Elizabeth McMullen 
 Vice President Finance and Controller  
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The County’s net position at September 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows: 
    

Dallas County's Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

      

   

2014 2013 

Increase 

(Decrease) 

Current and other assets $    877,465) $   884,472) $        (7,007) 

Capital assets (net of depreciation) 582,966) 542,472) 40,494) 

 

Total assets 1,460,431) 1,426,944)  33,487) 

   

 

 

 

Deferred outflow of resources 294) 404) (110) 

    

Current and other liabilities 75,752) 73,173) 2,579) 

Long-term liabilities 429,849) 414,729) 15,120) 

 

Total liabilities 505,601) 487,902) 17,699) 

   

 

 

 

Deferred inflow of resources 418,341) 392,963) 25,378) 

    

Net investment in capital assets 511,162) 484,639) 26,523) 

Restricted 76,172) 81,686) (5,514) 

Unrestricted (50,551) (19,842) (30,709) 

 

Total net position $   536,783) $   546,483) $     (9,700) 

 
The current financial reporting model focusing on net position serves as a useful indicator of a 
government’s financial position. Categories of net position are unrestricted, subject to external restrictions 
as to how they may be used, or invested in capital assets less any related outstanding debt used to acquire 
those assets. Considering recent years’ sales of medium term debt, overall debt remains low, consistent 
with strategic planning. Increases of long-term liabilities reflect an increasing other post-employment 
benefit cost (OPEB), albeit with a large actuarial adjustment for the current fiscal year. The County’s 
unrestricted category is impacted by the OPEB liability of $277,079, which is unfunded and asserted as 
not mandated according to Texas statutes. Current year gains for operational decisions partially offset the 
OPEB costs resulting in a $9,700 decrease in net position. 
 
The largest portion of net position reflects investments in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, 
and equipment), less any related and outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. Current activity for 
capital assets reflects increases in construction in progress for major building improvements and 
purchases of machinery and equipment. The County uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although investments in capital assets are 
reported net of related debt and the County’s philosophy is ―pay-as-you-go,‖ it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay any necessary debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
A portion of net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be 
used. Restrictions on net position include statutory requirements, bond covenants, and grantor conditions. 
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Current period activity reflects significant permanent improvement spending for prior commitments. The 
remaining balance of unrestricted net position is negative due to an OPEB liability.  
 
The Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of 
Government Funds on page 30 provides further details of the decrease in net position of $9,700 as 
indicated on page 27.  
 
Governmental activities. Program revenues and expenses are presented net of inter-fund eliminations. 
Key elements for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 
 

Dallas County’s Changes in Net Position 

 

2014 2013 

 Increase 

(Decrease)  

Revenues: 

   Net program revenues: 

   

 

Charges for services $    151,554)  $      154,875)  $           (3,321) 

 

Operating grants and contributions 121,420) 125,456) (4,036) 

General revenues:  

 

 

 

Property taxes 384,097) 370,052) 14,045) 

 

Other taxes 32,943) 25,961) 6,982) 

 

Grants and contributions not restricted 1,622) 2,115) (493) 

 

Investment earnings 2,036) 1,078) 958) 

  

       693,672)   679,537) 14,135) 

     

 

  Expenses:  

  

 

General government 152,854) 156,248) (3,394) 

 

Judicial 156,170) 147,927) 8,243) 

 

Public safety 238,937) 236,798) 2,139) 

 

Highways and streets 25,894) 23,756) 2,138) 

 

Health 49,190) 48,216) 974) 

 

Education 8,158) 9,009) (851) 

 

Public welfare 68,769) 70,960) (2,191) 

 Interest on long-term debt 3,400) 3,683) (283) 

   

703,372) 696,597) 6,775) 

     

 

 

 

Change in net position (9,700)  (17,060)  7,360) 

Net position - beginning 546,483) 563,543)  (17,060) 

Net position - ending $   536,783) $    546,483)  $          (9,700) 
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General Revenues and Program Revenues 
 
General revenues are revenues that are not assigned to support a specific function, but are available to 
provide financial resources as necessary. Included in general revenues are ad valorem taxes, other tax 
related revenues, interest earned from investments, and miscellaneous income.  
 
● Property taxes increased by $14,045 during the year due to increases in taxable assessed valuations 

and increasing new construction taxable assessed valuations. Combined, these factors increased total 
taxable assessed valuations.  

● General revenues include a 10% increase of other taxes collected due to increasing vehicle sales. 
● Program revenues reflect a decrease of $4,036 for public welfare awards, primarily due to a decrease 

in federal funding.  
 
The tax rate assessed for January 1, 2014, valuation date remained flat at 24.31 cents per $100. Taxable 
assessed valuations for that period increased 6.4%. (Property taxes levied prior to year-end are reflected 
as unearned revenue and taxes receivable.)     
 

 
 

 

 
Net functions/program costs include revenue generated from a particular service and costs of the function. 

For FY2014, the net (expense) revenue was ($430,398) compared to ($416,266) in FY2013. Net 

(expense) increased primarily as a result of: 

 

● Salaries increased October 1 with a 2% structure increase. Pension costs increased 6.5% on January 1 

for all salary levels in all functions. 

● General government – Charges for Proprietary Fund services (insurance) are expensed in the 

Governmental Funds financials. Reported loss is generally due to actuarially determined OPEB 
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liability. OPEB annually determined contribution reflected a $13 million decrease for the current year 

due to changes in medical trend rates.  

● Judicial – As noted above, salaries and pension costs including development of improved court 

management systems were the primary reason for the increases in net (expense). 

● Public safety – As noted above, salaries and pension costs including increase of inmate jail related 

costs were reasons for the increase in the net (expense). 

● Public welfare – Federal and state funding was reduced from several agencies. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
As noted, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related 
legal requirements. Fund accounting budget controls and fiscal responsibility are the framework of the 
County’s strong fiscal management and accountability. 
 
Governmental funds. The general government functions are reported in the General, Special Revenue, 
Debt Service, and Capital Project Funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the County’s annual financing and budgeting requirements. In particular, unrestricted, 
unassigned, assigned, restricted, and committed fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The County’s aggregate governmental fund balance decreased $32,787 in the current fiscal year to 
$364,017. However, increases were noted for the Debt Service and Major Project funds. Tax revenues 
increased $12,509 due to increasing property tax values.  
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $75,533 in contrast to $80,371 in the prior year. Total 
fund balance is $85,190. To better manage utility costs and effects of enhanced programs, actual utility 
costs and associated tax revenue of approximately $12,000 was transferred from the General Fund to the 
Major Projects Fund. Increased expenditures were recorded in public safety and were partially offset by 
receipt of higher reimbursement rates for inmates and court activity. As a measure of the General Fund’s 
liquidity, County management has a budgetary target of unassigned fund balance to total fund 
expenditures (excluding other financing uses) of 10.5%. The budget incorporates maximum anticipatory 
spending with expectations that management controls will minimize actual costs. FY2014 reflects 
unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures (excluding other financing uses) at 16.9%. 
 
In FY2014, the Debt Service fund balance increase reflects requirements for principal and interest 
payments due on debt sold in FY2013. Since recent debt issuances included borrowings with maturity 
terms not past 2025, County management anticipates full debt retirement in 2025. 
 
The Major Projects Fund reflects a fund balance of $173,934 compared to $162,241 in FY2013. In 
accordance with formal policy on funding capital improvements, a tax rate decrease of 0.461 cents per 
$100 assessed valuation was approved to offset the increase in Debt Service Fund requirements, and an 
increase of 0.655 cents to fund utility costs transferred from the General Fund. 
 
Major Grants Fund includes federal and Texas awards except HUD Section 8 grants and Academy for 
Academic Excellence (Charter School), which are included in Other Non-Major Governmental Funds.  
 
Other Non-Major Governmental Funds include capital project funds (funded by bond sales), non-major 
grant awards, and other activity for special funds administered by local officials in accordance to statutes. 
These funds continue to be restricted for statutory purposes. Also included in non-major governmental 
funds is a Major Technology fund with balances committed by the governing body. Special Funds total 
fund balance is comprised of $82,495 restricted, and $12,737 committed. The FY2014 balances declined 



 

20 
 

in Non-Major Governmental Funds, reflecting increased capital outlay for energy management projects 
when compared to prior year.      
 
The following table presents the amount of revenues from various sources, as well as increases or 
decreases from the prior year. 

Governmental Funds - Revenues Classified by Source 

 

2014 2013 

Increase 

(Decrease) 

Percent of 

Change 

Property taxes $       383,772  $       371,263  $             12,509) 3.37)% 

Licenses and permits 42,191             39,154  3,037) 7.76)% 

Fines and forfeitures 13,061             14,151  (1,090) (7.70)% 

Investments and rentals 5,947               4,269  1,678) 39.31)% 

Intergovernmental revenues 114,511           125,820  (11,309) (8.99)% 

Charges for current services 125,497           117,558  7,939) 6.75)% 

Miscellaneous 10,350             11,241  (891) (7.93)% 

Total $      695,329  $       683,456  $                11,873 1.74)% 
 
 Property taxes – increased by $12,509 primarily due to a 4.1% increase in the 2013 assessed taxable 

values with a flat tax rate. New construction values totaled $1.841 million, an increase compared to 
the previous year. 

 Licenses and permits – increased $3,037 primarily due to a $1,764 (10%) increase in sales tax 
collections as market demand for vehicles continues to increase.  

 Fines and forfeitures – decreased due to declining collection rate for aged receivables for criminal 
fines as well as continuing decline of traffic program. 

 Intergovernmental revenues – decreased primarily due to $2,000 decline in contributions from other 
legal entities and $9,000 decrease in grant awards. 

 Charges for current services – net increase from several factors: 

- $3,300 increased for legislative change in gross receipt tax for mixed beverages; 

- $3,000 increased for housing additional federal inmates; 

- ($1,750) decreased for clerk fees primarily due to drop in new financing; 

- $2,000 increased for special fund income from newly authorized medical waiver authority; 

- $2,000 increased for special fund for legislative fee for records management. 
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The following table presents expenditures by function compared to prior year amounts. 

 

Expenditures by Function - Governmental Funds 

 

2014 2013 

Increase 

(Decrease) 

Percent 

of 

Change 

Function: 

    General government $   101,451  $  102,684 $   (1,233) (1.20)% 

Judicial 147,613 140,185  7,428) 5.29)% 

Public Safety 233,675 225,436  8,239) 3.65)% 

Highways and streets 24,646 23,244  1,402) 6.03)% 

Health 49,058 48,154  904) 1.88)% 

Public Welfare 67,898 70,475  (2,577) (3.66)% 

Education 8,021 8,888  (867) (9.75)% 

Capital outlays 64,788 54,018  10,770) 19.94)% 

Debt service - principal 25,080 20,075  5,005) 24.93)% 

Debt service - interest 5,886 5,383  503) 9.34)% 

Total $  728,116  $  698,542  $  29,574) 4.23)% 

 

 Salaries were increased with a 2% structure allocation for all functions; health insurance costs 

increased, and retirement benefits percent of contribution increased January 1.  

 General government – In addition to expected increases for salary and benefits, expenditures were 

reduced for technology projects and initiatives.  

 Judicial – Court costs increased for attorney payments; the judicial salary plan was expanded, 

increasing coordinator salaries and expected county-wide salary increases were approved. 

 Public safety – In addition to expected increases for salary and benefits, overtime in jails 

increased more than $500 thousand, and vehicle purchases decreased by $2 million. 

 Highways and streets – Salaries and benefits reflected a high turnover and lower base salaries 

offset by increased contract costs; however, matching costs for construction on city roads 

declined after increasing in the prior year. 

 Health – Salaries and benefits increased for structure raises and health costs; however, overall 

costs were low as vacant positions were held open pending workload reviews.  

 Public welfare – State and federal awards decreased for several agencies. 

 Capital outlays – included expenditures from planned building projects previously placed on hold 

and energy preservation projects. 

 Debt service – Payments increased for short term debt sales in prior year. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The FY2014 legally adopted cash budget was adopted on September 17, 2013, for the General Fund 
totaling $491,040 (prior to including prior period carry forwards) a decrease of $6,960 from FY2013 
budget. Valid encumbrances from prior year are added completing the approved budget. The FY2014 
legally adopted budget for all funds prior to encumbrance rollover totaled $866,499. 
 
Highlights from Dallas County FY2014 Budget include the following: 
 

 The tax rate was set at 24.31 cents per $100 assessed valuation; without a change since tax year 
2010; however, the general fund allocation was reduced 0.655 from 18.27 cents to 17.615 per 
$100 assessed valuation with an offset in the Major Projects Fund, for countywide utility costs. 



 

23 
 

 Salaries increases were approved with a 2% schedule increase; however, step increases for 
programs remained unchanged. Required contribution for the defined benefit plan increased 6.5% 
(10.8% – 11.5%) effective January 2014. 

 A total of 17 positions were deleted with 22 new positions added for a net increase of five 
positions. 

 The budgeted General Fund unassigned reserve balance meets Commissioners Court policy.  

Budgetary variances (refer to pages 90-93) reflect encumbered funds for various products or services not 
yet ordered. Contingencies for juvenile detention and health welfare costs did not materialize and 
purchase of capital assets for facilities were deferred. 
 
DEBT ADMINISTRATION AND CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Long-term debt. At September 30, 2014, the County had limited tax, unlimited tax, and general 
obligation bonds outstanding in the amount of $111,350, net of debt premium of $7,431. According to 
Texas statutes, the County has two debt limits. Bonds issued under Article 3, Section 52b of the Texas 
Constitution total were refunded resulting in zero balance, and bonds issued under Texas Government 
Code Title 9, Chapter 1301.003 total $111,350. The debt limits for the two authorizations are $49,152 
(25% of real property assessed valuation), and $11,463 (5% of assessed valuation of all taxable property); 
therefore, the County has legal debt margins on general obligation debt of $49,152, and $11,355, 
respectively. 
 
The County’s bond ratings are ―AAA‖ from Standard & Poor’s and ―Aaa‖ rating from Moody’s for 
general obligation debt. These ratings have been upheld since 1978 with the latest evaluation in credit 
rating action December 2013; at which time the County’s outlook was rated as STABLE. 
 
The following represents the activity of the long-term debt of the County for FY2014 (refer to page 64 for 
additional information). 

  

Beginning 

Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Governmental Activities: 

    Bonds and Certificates of Obligation $  146,138 $              - $       27,357 $   118,781 

Compensated Absences 26,737 35,354 33,940 28,151 

Other Postemployment Benefits 236,194 45,156 4,271 277,079 

Claims and Judgments 3,500 1,301 1,301 3,500 

Workers’ Compensation 2,160 1,794 1,616 2,338 

 

 $  414,729 $   83,605 $       68,485 $   429,849 

 
Legal counsel and subject experts are contracted to review workers’ compensation claims and other legal 
matters as needed. The FY2014 claims and judgments are for treatment, improper pursuit decisions, and 
noncompliance with proper termination notice. Actual workers’ compensation expenditures decreased 
reflecting costing adjustments certified by new third party administrator and reflected in County 
management’s historical analysis updated annually. The County’s OPEB actuarial study last updated 
October 1, 2013, reflects significantly lower unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) materially due 
to decline in health care trend cost (6.5% from 8.57%). The discount rate for calculating OPEB was 2.5%. 
More detailed information about the County’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note VI to the financial 
statements. 
 
Capital assets. The capital assets of the County are those assets (land, buildings, improvements, and 
machinery and equipment (M&E)), which are used in the performance of the County’s functions. Capital 
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assets also include infrastructure assets – roads and bridges. The County owns and maintains the original 
courthouse constructed in 1892, which has been renovated as a historical treasure. At September 30, 
2014, net capital assets of the governmental activities totaled $582,966, reflecting a net increase of 
$40,494. Depreciation of capital assets (except for infrastructure assets which are reported under the 
modified approach basis) is recognized in the government-wide financial statements. FY2014 
depreciation for buildings, improvements, and M&E totaled $21,860. Depreciation is not recorded for the 
historical treasure, the 1892 Old Red Courthouse, which has a book value of $32,042. 
 
An annual allocation of the tax rate is reserved for fund expenditures related to major capital and major 
technology assets. A tax rate of $0.05155 ($0.045 plus $0.00655) per $100 assessed valuation is split 
between the Debt Service Fund and Major Projects Fund. The rate of $0.00655 was approved for funding 
utility costs county wide. Construction or contract development needs are analyzed during the budget 
cycle and encumbrances/obligations revised. The 2014 allocation reflects transfer of $0.00461 per $100 
assessed valuation from the Major Projects Fund to the Debt Service Fund consistent with ―pay-as-you-
go‖ strategy and requirement for recent debt issues. 
 
The County has elected to use the ―Modified Approach‖ as defined in GASB 34 for reporting 
infrastructure assets which includes 120.146 miles of roads, and 26 bridges and culverts. The FY2014 
assessment revealed the condition of the roads was maintained consistent with County policy, whereas 
99.2% of the County’s roads were rated 2.5 or better on a 4.0 scale, based on the Federal Highway 
Administration Road Pavement Condition Rating (PCR). All of the County’s bridges are in very good 
condition as rated 6.0 or better on a 9.0 scale. 
 
The County expended $1,280 on county road maintenance for the year ended September 30, 2014. These 
expenditures delayed deterioration; however, overall road conditions were not improved. Incurred bridge 
maintenance costs in FY2014 were $409. Additional details on infrastructure assets can be found in 
Required Supplementary Information pages 96 and 97 of this report. 
 

County's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

  

2014 2013 

Governmental Activities: 

  Land $    27,986  $    27,298  

Historical Treasures 32,042 32,042  

Buildings 365,529 366,501  

Machinery and Equipment 22,388 20,681  

Infrastructure 26,671 26,671  

Construction-in-Progress 108,350        69,279  

 

Total $  582,966 $  542,472 
 
Additional information on Dallas County capital assets and debt can be found in Notes V and VI. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
The Dallas County budget is developed annually and intended to provide efficient, effective, and 
controlled usage of the County's resources, as well as a means to accomplish the highest priorities of the 
Dallas County Commissioners. Through the budget, the County Commissioners set the direction of the 
County, allocate its resources, and establish its priorities. The FY2015 Budget meets the key established 
policy directive of the Commissioners Court requiring that the budgeted ending unassigned general fund 
balance be not less than 10.5% of County funded expenditures. 
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The FY2015 budget process was primarily focused on identifying various balancing strategies that impact 
services provided to citizens of Dallas County as minimally as possible. The budget is expected to raise 
more revenue from property taxes than the prior year by $24,211, or an increase of 5.09%. The property 
tax revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax roll is $7,191. 
 
 
Highlights from Dallas County FY2015 Budget include the following: 
 

 The overall tax rate was unchanged from 2014 tax year budget rates (unchanged for five years). 
 Compensation increases for all levels were approved for a 5% merit/schedule increase with step 

increases for approved programs approved. Required contributions for the defined benefit plan 
remained constant at 11.5%. 

 A net increase of 36 positions was approved; 59 added and 23 deleted. 
 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors with a general overview 
of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report, separate report of the County’s component unit, or need any additional 
financial information, contact the appropriate financial office (County Auditor, County Treasurer, or 
Budget Director) at 509 Main Street, Dallas, TX  75202, or visit the County’s website at 
www.dallascounty.org. 
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Primary

Government

Component 

Unit

Governmental

Activities

Hospital

District        

ASSETS
   

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments 406,670$         -$                    

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 433,717           276,918          

Accrued interest 549                   -                      

Due from other government units 33,151             -                      

Inventories 1,892               13,299            

Prepayments and advances 1,486               -                      

Assets limited as to use - investments -                       325,128          

Other noncurrent assets -                       21,276            

Capital assets not being depreciated

     Land 27,986             116,314          

     Construction - in - progress 108,350           1,066,596       

     Infrastructure 26,671             -                      

     Historical treasures 32,042             -                      

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

     Buildings 365,529           217,807          

     Machinery and equipment 22,388             135,412          

       Total capital assets       582,966           1,536,129       

       Total assets 1,460,431        2,172,750       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding 294                   -                      

       Total deferred outflows of resources 294                   -                      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 38,587             202,833          

Accrued interest payable 619                   5,105              

Other current  liabilities 4,777               64,926            

Unearned revenues 10,227             -                      

Due to other government units 21,542             -                      

Non-current liabilities:

     Due within one year 52,556             8,267              

     Due in more than one year 377,293           755,949          

          Total liabilities 505,601           1,037,080       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred revenue - property taxes 418,341           -                      

       Total deferred inflows of resources 418,341           -                      

NET POSITION

Net Investment in capital assets 511,162           792,727          

Restricted for:

     Highways and streets 20,664             -                      

     Debt service 3,280               -                      

     Major Grants, HUD Section 8 and Academy for Academic Excellence 11,899             -                      

     Record management and capital projects 40,329             -                      

Unrestricted (50,551)            342,943          

Total net position 536,783$         1,135,670$     

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Primary

Government

Component

Unit

Functions/Programs Expenses

Charges for

Services

Operating 

Grants and

Contributions

Capital

Grants and

Contributions

Governmental

Activities

Hospital

District        

Primary government:

     Governmental activities:

          General government 152,854$         50,306$           -$                     -$                     (102,548)$        -$               

          Judicial 156,170           42,780             13,595             -                       (99,795)            -                 

          Public safety 238,937           24,267             11,841             -                       (202,829)          -                 

          Highways and streets 25,894             26,494             -                       -                       600                  -                 

          Health 49,190             6,585               29,716             -                       (12,889)            -                 

          Education 8,158               -                       7,938               -                       (220)                 -                 

          Public welfare 68,769             1,122               58,330             -                       (9,317)              -                 

         Interest on long-term debt 3,400               -                       -                       -                       (3,400)              -                 

Total primary government 703,372$         151,554$         121,420$         -$                     (430,398)$        -$               

Component unit:

     Hospital district 1,314,627$      815,469$         8,214$             3,805$             -$                     (487,139)$  

General revenues:

     Property taxes 384,097$         449,537$    

     Alcoholic beverage and other taxes 32,943             -                 

     Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 1,622               24,309        

     Investment earnings 2,036               14,811        

     Gain on sale -                       (99)             

       Total general revenue 420,698           488,558      

                  Change in net position (9,700)              1,419          

Net position - beginning 546,483           1,138,944   

Restatement (Note I) -                       (4,693)        

Net position as restated 546,483           1,134,251   

Net position - ending 536,783$         1,135,670$ 

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

General

 Debt 

Service 

Major

Projects

Major

Grants 

Other

Non-major

Governmental

Funds

 Total

Governmental

Funds 

ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments 94,542$       3,951$       198,055$    3,899$   102,336$        402,783$         

Property tax receivables (net of allowance

     for uncollectibles of $ 28,126) 305,192       30,281       58,956        -             26,671            421,100           

Accounts receivable 7,085           -                 -                  4            5,528              12,617             

Accrued interest 163              1                311             9            65                   549                  

Due from other funds 125              -                 -                  7            -                     132                  

Due from other governmental units 9,633           -                 8,513          14,161   844                 33,151             

Inventories 1,660           -                 -                  -             232                 1,892               

Prepayments and advances 1,460           -                 10               3            13                   1,486               

     Total assets 419,860$     34,233$     265,845$    18,083$ 135,689$        873,710$         

LIABILITIES 

Liabilities : 

     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 19,197$       -$               11,887$      3,678$   3,825$            38,587$           

     Due to other funds 3,671           -                 81               533        319                 4,604               

     Due to other governmental units 991              -                 18,843        -             1,708              21,542             

     Unearned revenue - other 5,155           -                 2,054          8,355     7,645              23,209             

       Total liabilities 29,014         -                 32,865        12,566   13,497            87,942             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

     Unavailable revenue - property taxes 305,656       30,334       59,046        -             26,715            421,751           

       Total deferred inflows - property taxes 305,656       30,334       59,046        -             26,715            421,751           

FUND BALANCES

     Nonspendable: inventories and prepaids 3,120           -                 10               3            245                 3,378               

     Restricted -                  3,899         -                  5,514     82,495            91,908             

     Committed -                  -                 173,924      -             12,737            186,661           

     Assigned 6,537           -                 -                  -             -                     6,537               

     Unassigned 75,533         -                 -                  -             -                     75,533             

       Total fund balances 85,190         3,899         173,934      5,517     95,477            364,017           

       Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances 419,860$     34,233$     265,845$    18,083$ 135,689$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net

     position are different because:

          Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

               resources and, therefore, are not reported in governmental funds. 582,966           

          Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

               expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in governmental funds. 

               See page 52. 16,392             

           Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs

               related to this fund. The assets and liabilities of the

               internal service fund are included in governmental activities in 

               the statement of net position. 1,328               

          Certain liabilities, including bonds payable and related 

               interest, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore 

              are not included in governmental funds. See page 53. (427,920)          

          Net position of governmental activities 536,783$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

General

 Debt 

Service 

Major

Projects

Major

Grants 

Other

Non-major

Governmental

Funds

 Total

Governmental

Funds 

REVENUES

Property taxes 278,099$    31,154$   50,226$   -$             24,293$        383,772$      

Licenses and permits 18,612        -               -               -               23,579          42,191          

Fines and forfeitures 7,043          -               -               -               6,018            13,061          

Investment income 2,138          35             (195)         16             -                    1,994            

Rental revenues 3,953          -               -               -               -                    3,953            

Intergovernmental revenues 8,088          -               2,226       67,587     36,610          114,511        

Charges for current services 99,108        856           -               -               25,533          125,497        

Miscellaneous 9,333          -               30             -               987               10,350          

     Total revenues 426,374      32,045     52,287     67,603     117,020        695,329        

EXPENDITURES

Current:

     General government 64,185        -               10,046     -               27,220          101,451        

     Judicial 138,516      -               -               3,477       5,620            147,613        

     Public safety 222,907      -               -               6,672       4,096            233,675        

     Highways and streets -                  -               16,180     -               8,466            24,646          

     Health 19,357        -               -               29,701     -                    49,058          

     Education -                  -               -               1,102       6,919            8,021            

     Public welfare 470             -               4,963       28,680     33,785          67,898          

Debt service:

     Principal -                  25,080     -               -               -                    25,080          

     Interest -                  5,886       -               -               -                    5,886            

Capital outlay -                  -               31,885     -               32,903          64,788          

        Total expenditures 445,435      30,966     63,074     69,632     119,009        728,116        

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues

         over (under) expenditures (19,061)      1,079       (10,787)    (2,029)      (1,989)          (32,787)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 16,314        -               22,548     2,103       1,136            42,101          

Transfers (out) (3,014)        -               (68)           (1,570)      (37,449)        (42,101)        

        Total other financing sources (uses) 13,300        -               22,480     533           (36,313)        -                    

        Net change in fund balances (5,761)        1,079       11,693     (1,496)      (38,302)        (32,787)        

Fund balances - beginning 90,951        2,820       162,241   7,013       133,779        396,804        

Fund balances - ending 85,190$      3,899$     173,934$ 5,517$     95,477$        364,017$      

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

 and Changes in Fund Balances to the

 Statement of Activities

 For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 

       (page 27) are different because:

Net change in fund balances total governmental funds (page 29) (32,787)$       

     Governmental funds report all capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in 

          the statement of activities, the cost of some of the assets is allocated over

          their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

          This is the amount by which capital outlays for County - owned  assets

          exceeds depreciation in the current period. See page - 53 - Notes 

          to the Basic Financial Statements for details. 40,604          

     The net effect of various  transactions ( e.g. sale of capital of assets).  See

            page 53  - Notes to the Basic Financial Statements for details. (110)              

     Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current 

           financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. See

           page 54  - Notes to the Basic Financial Statements for details. (1,657)           

     Some expenses reported in statement of activities are not

         fund expenditures (e.g.  compensated absences that are liabilities 

         not normally liquidated with current financial resources).  See page 54 - 

         Notes to the Basic Financial Statements for details. (41,979)         

     The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, tax notes) provides

           current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment

           of the principal of long-term debt consumes current financial resources

           of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any effect on 

           net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance

           costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, 

           whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of

           activities.  This amount is the net effect of these differences in the 

           treatment of long-term debt and related items.  See page 54 - Notes to the  

           Basic Financial Statements for details. 27,247          

     Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs to

           account for group medical self-insurance and workers compensation.

            The net revenue (loss) is reported with governmental activities.

            See page 32 - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund 

           Net Position for details. (1,018)           

     Change in net position of governmental activities (page 27) (9,700)$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Statement of  Net Position

Proprietary Fund

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

 Governmental

Activities -

Internal

Service Fund 

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 3,887$              

Due from other funds 4,472                

     Total assets 8,359$              

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities:

Medical claims 4,693$              

Workers' compensation claims - current 1,541                

       Total current liabilities 6,234                

Non-Current Liability:

Workers' compensation claims - non-current 797                   

       Total liabilities 7,031                

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 1,328                

       Total net position 1,328$              

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Statement of  Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

 Governmental

Activities -

Internal

Service Fund 

Operating revenues:

Premiums 69,534$            

Operating expenses:

Benefit payments 66,039              

Administration 4,513                

        Total operating expenses 70,552              

Operating profit (1,018)               

Non-operating revenues:

Interest income -                        

        Change in net position (1,018)               

Total net position - beginning of year 2,346                   

Total net position - ending of year 1,328$              

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Statement of  Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

 

Governmental

Activities -

Internal

Service Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash for premiums and reimbursements 68,786$          

Cash payments for benefit claims (65,218)          

Cash payments for administrative fees (4,488)            

Net cash (used) by operating activities (920)               

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest on investments -                 

Net cash provided by investing activities —                  

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (920)               

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,807              

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,887$            

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET

  CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating profit (loss) (1,018)$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating profit to net cash provided by operating activities:

    (Increase) in due from other funds (747)               

    Increase in liabilities 845                 

Net cash (used) by operating activities (920)$             

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

All Agency Funds

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Total

Assets:

    Cash and investments 173,708$           

    Accrued interest and other receivable 240                    

    Cash and investments held in escrow 9,893                 

      Total assets 183,841$           

Liabilities:

     Due to other governmental units and others 183,841$           

       Total liabilities 183,841$           

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DALLAS COUNTY 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 

September 30, 2014 

(in thousands of dollars) 
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I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The accounting and reporting policies of Dallas County (County) reflected in the accompanying 
financial statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United 
States of America applicable to state and local governments. Accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America for local governments are those promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The most significant accounting and 
reporting policies of the County are described in the following notes to the financial statements.   
 
In the current year, the County implemented or considered the implementation of the following: 
 

- GASB 66: Technical Corrections – 2012 – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 
10 and No.62, which is intended to improve accounting and financial reporting for a 
governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted 
from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements. The requirements of this statement are effective for periods beginning 
after December 15, 2012. The statement did not have any impact on the County’s 
financial statements. 
 

- GASB 67: Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 25, which is intended to improve financial reporting by state and local 
governmental pension plans. This statement requires defined benefit pension plans to 
present two financial statements – a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of 
changes in fiduciary net position. This statement is effective for TCDRS, which is 
responsible for administration of the County’s defined benefit plan. The pronouncement 
did not impact the County’s financial statements. 
 

- GASB 70: Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees, which is intended to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and 
local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial guarantees. As a part of 
a nonexchange financial guarantee, a government commits to indemnify the holder of the 
obligation if the entity that issued the obligation does not fulfill its payment requirements. 
The statement is effective for financial periods beginning after June 15, 2013. The 
pronouncement did not have any impact on the County’s financial statements. 

 

A. Reporting Entity 

      Primary Government 
 

The County is a public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Texas (Texas). The 
Commissioners Court, composed of four commissioners and the County Judge, is the general 
governing body of the County in accordance with Article 5, Paragraph 18 of the Texas 
Constitution. The County provides the following services as authorized by the statutes of 
Texas: general government (e.g., tax collection, funds investment, etc.), judicial (courts, juries, 
district attorney, etc.), public safety (sheriff, jail, homeland security etc.), highways and streets, 
health, education, and public welfare (e.g. juvenile services and assistance to indigents).  

 
The accompanying basic financial statements present the government and its discretely 
presented component unit. 
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Discretely Presented Component Unit 

The Dallas County Hospital District, dba Parkland Health & Hospital System (District), is a 
political subdivision of Texas, and is a discretely presented component unit of the County. The 
District is composed of Parkland Memorial Hospital (Hospital); Parkland Community Health 
Plan, Inc. (Health Plan); Parkland Foundation (Foundation); and Parkland Center for Clinical 
Innovation (PCCI). The County determined that the following component units of the District 
are not component units of the County: the Health Plan, Foundation, and PCCI. The District is a 
hospital district, and accordingly, its income is excluded under Section 115 of the Internal 
Revenue Code (Code), and it is recognized as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Code and, as such, is exempt from federal income taxes. During 2014, all income was related 
to essential government functions. The Hospital, the Foundation, and PCCI have fiscal years 
ending September 30. The Health Plan’s fiscal year ends December 31. All references to annual 
periods refer to the year ended September 30. 

 

The Hospital operates 741 inpatient beds, 53 neonatal beds, numerous outpatient clinics, and an 
emergency room. The Hospital also operates the Community Oriented Primary Care clinics in 
the community and on the Hospital campus. Additionally, the Hospital serves as the major 
teaching hospital for the UT Southwestern Medical Center at Dallas (UT Southwestern), which is 
located adjacent to the Hospital, in accordance with an affiliation agreement effective September 
1, 2006. The Hospital also manages the County’s jail health system. The County’s jail is the 
seventh largest jail in the nation with approximately 6,200 inmates. The District provides direct 
patient care at five adult facilities and contracts for services at five juvenile facilities. The District 
is accounted for as a single-column business-type entity on an accrual basis of accounting. 
 

The Foundation is a nonprofit corporation organized in Texas in 1985, to support and benefit 
the District exclusively. It is an organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code. 
The Foundation’s mission is to secure substantial financial resources that advance the clinical, 
educational, and research quests of the District. The foundation is a component unit of the 
District.   
 
The Health Plan is a nonprofit corporation organized in Texas in 1995. It is an organization as 
described in Section 501(c)(4) of the Code. The Health Plan participates in the Texas Medicaid 
Managed Care Program and the Children’s Health Insurance Program. It does not have debt that 
is expected to be repaid by the District. 
 
PCCI is a nonprofit research and development corporation organized in Texas in 2012. It is an 
organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code. PCCI specialized in real-time 
predictive and surveillance analytics for healthcare. Its software interprets EMR data in real-
time, transforming such data into useful intervention warning tools that assist physicians and 
hospitals on complex clinical decisions in every field of medicine. 
 
The District is governed by a Board of Managers (Board) appointed by, but not composed of, 
County Commissioners or County Judge. The Commissioners Court of the County approves 
the District’s tax rate and annual budget; however, the District operates under different 
statutory and constitutional authority. The District also has a separate constitutional tax 
limitation, independent power of eminent domain, and individual right of ownership of 
property. County taxpayers provide ad valorem tax revenues to the District, but the County 
does not hold title to any of the District’s assets and does not have any rights to any surpluses 

I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
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of the District. The component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide 
financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the primary government. 
Complete financial statements for the District may be obtained from:  
 Parkland Health & Hospital System 

 5201 Harry Hines Boulevard 
 Dallas, Texas 75235 
 Attn:  Elizabeth McMullen 
 Vice President Finance and Controller 
 

B. Government–Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 
  The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the 

statement of activities. Government-wide statements report, except for County fiduciary 
funds financial activity, information on all of the County activities including its component 
unit. The effect of inter-fund transfers has been removed from the government-wide financial 
statements, but continues to be reported in the fund financial statements. However, inter-fund 
services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. Governmental 
activities are supported mainly by taxes, intergovernmental revenues and charges for services.  
The primary government is reported separately from the component unit within the 
government-wide statements. 
 
The statement of activities reflects the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function, e.g. other postemployment benefits are charged to general government 
functions/programs in the statement of activities because these costs are guaranteed by the 
general government. Indirect expenses include changes in estimates of workers’ 
compensation, which may not be reasonably allocated to other functions/programs in the 
statement of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from services or privileges provided by a given function and 
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included in program 
revenues are reported as general revenues. 
 
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. The General, Debt Service, Major Projects, and Major Grants Funds meet criteria 
as major governmental funds. Each major fund is reported in a separate column in the fund 
financial statements. Non-major funds include other Special Revenue, and Capital Projects. 
The combined amounts for these funds are reflected in a single column in the fund financial 
statements. 

  

C.   Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
  

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. This measurement focus is also used for 
the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues net of allowances are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Major revenue types, which have been accrued, include district clerk and county clerk 
fees, justice of the peace fees, revenue from investments, intergovernmental revenue and 
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charges for services. Grants are recognized as revenue when all applicable eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider are met. 

 
  Revenues are classified as program revenues and general revenues. Program revenues 

include 1) charges for services provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital 
grants and contributions. General revenues include all taxes, grants, and contributions not 
restricted to specific programs and investment earnings. 
 
Governmental fund level financial statements are reported using current financial resources 
measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized only 
when they become susceptible to accrual (measurable and available). Revenues are considered 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period. Unavailable means not available to finance expenditures for the 
current fiscal period. Unearned refers to funds received before the earnings process is completed. 
Except for grants, measurable and available revenues include revenues expected to be received 
within 60 days after the fiscal year-end. Grants policy includes recognition of revenues, so long 
as such amounts are collectible within 60 days or soon enough afterwards to be used to pay 
liabilities for the current period, and where grant eligibility requirements have been met. 
Property taxes levied prior to September 30, 2014, and became due October 1, 2014 have been 
assessed to finance the budget of the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2014 and, accordingly, 
have been reflected as unavailable revenue and property taxes receivable in the governmental 
fund financial statements. Receivables and deferred revenue associated with these property taxes 
are included in the government-wide statements at September 30, 2014. 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a fund liability is incurred; however, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims, and 
judgments, are recorded only when the liability has matured and payment is due.  

  
The County reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County and is always classified as a 
major fund. The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required 
to be accounted for in another fund. Significant revenue sources include property taxes, charges  
for services, intergovernmental revenues, and investment income of idle funds. Primary 
expenditures are for general government, public safety, judicial, public welfare, health services, 
and capital acquisition. 

 
Debt Service Fund is used to account for accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, 
general long-term debt principal and interest. Revenue sources are primarily property taxes 
levied specifically for debt service and revenues generated by a parking garage. Expansion of 
this parking garage was financed with debt. Interest earnings from investment of idle funds of 
the Capital Projects Funds are deposited and recorded in the Debt Service Fund to assist in 
bonded debt retirement. 

  
Major Projects Fund (special revenue fund) is used to account for monies received from 
property taxes and property sales to fund parks, trails, transportation, and major County building 
projects. These funds are committed by action of the governing body. 
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Major Grants Fund is used to account for programs supported by federal, state and local 
financial assistance or intergovernmental contracts from various agencies and/or 
governmental units except for HUD-Section 8 Grants and the Academy for Academic 
Excellence. 

   
Non-Major Funds include special revenue funds (other than major projects) and capital 
projects funds. The funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
that are legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. As an 
example, the Road and Bridge Fund is legally restricted unlike the Major Technology Fund, 
which is administratively committed. 

 
 Other fund types include proprietary and fiduciary funds: 

 
Proprietary Fund financial statements are used to account for activities, which are similar to 
those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is based upon determination 
of net income, financial position, and cash flows. The County’s only Proprietary Fund is the 
Internal Service Fund used to account for the County’s group medical insurance program, 
workers’ compensation, self-insurance program, and flexible spending accounts of employees 
who participate in the medical and dependent care flexible spending option of the County’s 
cafeteria-style plan. Revenues are derived from County contributions, employee and COBRA 
premiums, investment of idle funds, and stop-loss collections. Committed expenses are for 
claims and administrative expenses.   
 
The Proprietary Fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting as follows: 

1. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when liabilities 
are incurred.  

 
2. Current-year contributions, administrative expenses, and benefit payments, which are 

not received or paid until the subsequent year, are accrued. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in connection with 
a proprietary fund’s principal on-going operations (e.g. insurance claims and workers’ 
compensation payments). 
 
Fiduciary Fund financial statements include fiduciary funds, which are classified as agency 
funds used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments, and other funds.  Agency funds do not involve a formal 
trust agreement. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not 
involve measurement of results of operations.  The following are the County’s Agency 
Funds: 
  

Administrative Escrow Fund - used to account for miscellaneous amounts temporarily 
held for other individuals or entities outside control of Commissioners Court. 
 
State Reports Fund - used to account for State fees collected by the County and 
subsequently disbursed to the State.  
 
County Clerk, District Clerk, Sheriff, Justices of the Peace, and Constables Fee Funds - 
used to account for monies received with ultimate disposition of receipts to be 
determined at a future date. 
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Community Supervision and Corrections - used to account for the activities of a Texas 
agency with funds in the County depository. 

Housing Finance Corporation – 1993 Refunding - used to account for monies received as 
a result of refunding of 1983 Mortgage Revenue bonds issue by Dallas County Housing 
Finance Corporation (HFC). 

Juvenile Department Child Support - used to account for monies held for other parties in 
the child support program in accordance with court orders. 
  
Housing Finance Corporation – 1994 Refunding - used to account for monies received as 
a result of refunding 1984 Mortgage Revenue Bonds issued by HFC. 
 
Community Supervision and Corrections Special - used to account for the receipt and 
distribution of restitution payments made by probationers. 
 
Youth Village - used to account for donated money to be used for the benefit of youths 
temporarily housed in the facility.  
 
Tax Assessor – Collector - used to account for initial receipt and distribution to proper 
parties of taxes and fees collected for various governmental entities. 
 
Police Agencies Seized Funds - used to account for seized monies awaiting judicial 
determination for local police agencies. 
 
Attorney General Seized Funds - used to account for seized monies awaiting judicial 
determination for the Texas Attorney General. 
 
Gambling Seized Funds - used to account for seized monies for gambling awaiting 
judicial determination for the Texas Department of Public Safety. 
 
Narcotics Seized Funds - used to account for seized monies for narcotics awaiting 
judicial determination for the Texas Department of Public Safety. 
 
Sheriff Inmate Trust – used to account for monies held in trust from individuals in 
County custody. 
 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

The District is considered a governmental organization and is subject to the 
pronouncements of GASB. The District has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant 
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), including those 
issued after November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 
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Principles of Reporting – The financial statements include the accounts of the District, 
as described above. In fiscal year 2013, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 
61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus – An Amendment of GASB Statements Nos. 
14 and 34. As a result, the District reported the Health Plan and PCCI, as well as the 
Foundation, as discretely presented component units in its financial statements. The 
County determined that these discretely presented component units of the District are not 
component units of the County. 
 
In the current year, the District implemented: 
 
GASB Statement No. 65 – Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously 
reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of 
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The 
statement’s provisions are effective for financial statement periods beginning after 
December 15, 2012, and was adopted by the District effective October 1, 2012. As a 
result, the District’s net position as previously reported as of September 30, 2013, was 
reduced for bond issuance costs in the amount of $4,693. 
 

 As of September 30, 2013 

Statement of Activities  

As 

Previously 

Reported  As Restated Adjustment 

      
Net Position as of September 30, 2013 $1,138,944  $1,134,251 $ (4,693) 
 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position  
   

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
 

Primary Government  
 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the County considers cash on hand, 
demand deposits, and all highly liquid investments with original maturities less than 90 
days at date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. Texas statutes and the 
County’s official investment policy authorize the County to invest in fully collateralized 
security repurchase agreements, fully serviced certificates of deposit at the depository, 
and obligations of the Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool), which is a 
local government investment pool sponsored by the Texas Controller of Public 
Accounts and managed by Federated Investors, U.S. Treasury securities, direct 
obligations of, or participation certificates guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan 
Bank, U.S. Small Business Administration, Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Federal 
Agricultural Mortgage Corporation.  To be eligible to receive funds from and 
investments on behalf of the County, an investment pool must be rated no lower than 
AAA or AA-m or at an equivalent rating of at least one nationally recognized rating 
service. 
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Discretely Presented Component Unit  

The District considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than 
90 days at date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include 
demand deposits and investments in the Texas Local Government Investment Pool 
(TexPool), which is a local government investment pool sponsored by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts and managed by Federated Investors. Additional cash 
and cash equivalents are kept in AAA-rated Securities and Exchange Commission-
registered money market mutual funds. All District demand deposits are insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with securities pledged 
to the District and held in safekeeping at a third-party bank on behalf of the District’s 
depository institution.   

 
Statutes give the District authority to invest the funds in obligations of the United States, 
as well as direct obligations of Texas and other obligations guaranteed or insured by 
Texas or the United States. The following investments are also acceptable: obligations 
of states, agencies, counties, or cities of any state that have been rated not less than ―A‖ 
or its equivalent by a nationally recognized investment firm, and certificates of deposit 
guaranteed, insured, or secured by approved obligations and prime domestic bankers’ 
acceptances. Other authorized investments include  prime commercial paper;  fully 
collateralized repurchase agreements;  Securities and Exchange Commission-registered, 
no-load money market mutual funds whose assets consist exclusively of approved 
obligations; and approved local government investment pools. All investments at 
September 30, 2014, are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices with 
realized and unrealized gains and losses included in the Statement of Activities. 
Obligations of the United States government with maturity dates in excess of one year 
that are not expected to be expended within one year are reported as long-term 
investments in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. 

   
 Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Unit  
   
  Both the County and the District record investments at fair market value in accordance 

with provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. All investment income for the 
County is recognized as revenue in the appropriate fund’s Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, and in the Statement of Activities as 
investment earnings. The District’s investment income including realized and unrealized 
gains and losses are included in investment earnings in the Statement of Activities. 
Deposit and investment risk disclosures are in accordance with GASB Statement No. 
40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures – an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 3.  

 
2. Receivables and Payables 

 
Primary Government  

 
 Property taxes are levied prior to September 30 based on taxable values as of January 1, 

and become due October 1 and past due after January 31. Accordingly, receivables and 
revenues for property taxes are reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
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based on the full accrual method of accounting. Property tax receivables for the prior 
years’ levy are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

 
 Accounts receivables from other governments include amounts due from grantors for 

approved grants for specific programs and reimbursements for services performed. 
Program grants are recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility 
requirements established by the provider have been met.   

 
 Reimbursements for services performed are recorded as receivables and revenues when   

earned in the government-wide financial statements. Included are fines and costs 
assessed by court action, and billable services for certain contracts.  Revenues received 
in advance of the costs being incurred are recorded as unearned revenue in the fund 
statements. Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

 
 Borrowing between funds is recorded as an amount either ―Due to‖ or ―Due from.‖ Due 

to and due from amounts are eliminated in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
         Discretely Presented Component Unit 
  
        The carrying amount of receivables and payables is reported in the Statement of Net 

Position at approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
 
         Patient accounts receivable are presented net of allowances for charity, contractual 

discounts, and bad debts of $433,461 as of September 30, 2014. 
 
3. Inventories and Prepayments 

 
Primary Government  
 
Various methods are used to cost inventories; however, the majority of inventories are 
(determined on a first-in, first-out basis) stated at cost. Inventories in the General and 
Special Revenue Funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. In the 
General Fund, the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time an inventory item is 
consumed. In the Special Revenue Funds, inventory items expected to be consumed 
within a short period of time, are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase; other 
inventory items are expensed when consumed. Reported inventories are denoted as a 
non-spendable fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute ―available 
spendable resources‖ even though they are a component of current assets. The inventory 
policy on government-wide statements is consistent with fund statements. 

 
 Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 

are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
The costs of prepaid items are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than  
when purchased. In the fund financial statements, advances and prepayments are 

denoted as a non-spendable fund balance. 
 
 Discretely Presented Component Unit  
  
 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (determined on an average-cost basis) or 

market.   
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4. Restricted Assets/Funds 
 

 Primary Government  
 
The following accounts reflect restricted status by third-party or statutory obligations for 
specific purposes: 

 
• Debt Service fund balance net of accrued interest (amount restricted for future debt 

service expenditures according to debt covenants);  
• Major and HUD Section 8 Grant and Academy for Academic Excellence fund 

balances (amounts restricted for future grant expenditures according to award 
restrictions);  

• Other Non-Major Governmental fund balances (except for Permanent 
Improvement and Major Technology) (amounts restricted for other specific 
purposes according to Texas statutes). 

 
The following accounts reflect committed status by action of the governing body for 
specific purposes: 
 

• Permanent Improvement and Major Technology fund balances (committed by 
governing body for future non-major building improvements or major technology 
related expenditures);  

• Major Projects fund balance (amount committed for future major construction-
related expenditures according to official action of governing body). 

 
5. Assets Limited as to Use  
  
 Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 

Assets limited as to use represent those assets whose use has been legally restricted, 
including the 2009 Bond proceeds (see Note VI). Resources are also set aside for Board 
designated purposes or self-insurance arrangements. It has been the general practice of 
the District, due to the timing of cash flows, to temporarily use Board designated funds 
to fund operating activities. Current assets limited as to use represent assets related to 
capital projects and debt service to be paid in the next year.  
 
Assets limited as to use at September 30, 2014, consist of investments in TexPool and 
U.S. government-sponsored enterprises for the following purposes. 

 
Debt Service 
 
Assets limited as to use for debt service represent those assets related to the bond issues 
whose use is legally restricted. 
 
Bonds Proceeds for Construction 
 
Bonds proceeds used for construction represent the unspent proceeds on the bonds 
issued to fund the construction on the District’s new campus.  
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Designated for Capital Uses 
 
Assets limited as to use designated for capital uses represent funds designated at the 
discretion of the Board for annual additions to capital equipment, as well as funding for 
a combination of renovations and new facilities. 
 
Other Designated 
 
Other assets limited as to use include funds designated by the Board to fund the 
District’s hospital professional liability program.  

 
6. Capital Assets 

 
Primary Government  
 
Capital assets, including land, construction-in-progress, historical treasures, buildings, 
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure (e.g., roads and bridges) are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets (except for grant assets with lower 
thresholds) are defined as assets where the County bears risks and benefits of ownership 
with a cost of $5 or more and with a useful life in excess of one year.  Infrastructure 
assets include County owned roads and bridges. Capital assets are recorded at historical 
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation. 
 

 The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or 
materially extend an asset life is not capitalized. Additionally, County capital 
expenditures include amounts incurred to improve city owned infrastructure assets. 
Accordingly, these amounts are not capitalized. Capital assets, except infrastructure, are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

Asset Years 

Buildings 50 

Furniture and fixtures 7 

Telecommunication equipment 20 

General equipment 5 

Construction equipment 10 - 15 

Trucks and transportation 7 - 8 

Autos 3 

Computer hardware 5 
 
The 1892 Old Red Courthouse is recorded as a Historical Treasure at historical cost but 
not depreciated. Infrastructure assets (roads and bridges) include assets acquired prior to 
June 30, 1980, through the current period. The County uses the modified approach to 
report infrastructure assets in the government-wide statement of net position. 
Infrastructure assets are recorded at historical cost but not depreciated. Under the 
modified approach allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the County reports annual 
expenses for maintaining County roads and bridges including estimated costs for 
preservation at specified levels. 
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 The County evaluates capital assets regularly for impairment under the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of 
Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. If circumstances suggest that assets may 
be impaired, an assessment of recoverability is performed prior to any write-down of 
assets. An impairment charge is recorded on those assets for which the estimated fair 
value is below its carrying amount. No material impairment charges to capital assets 
were recorded for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. 

 
Discretely Presented Component Unit  
 
Capital assets are recorded at cost or, if donated, fair market value at the date of receipt. 
Costs of major renewals and betterments that extend useful lives are capitalized, while 
maintenance and repairs are charged to current operations. Assets with a purchase price 
of $5 or more are capitalized and assets with a purchase price less than $5 are expensed. 
Disposals are removed at carrying cost, less accumulated depreciation, with any 
resulting gain or loss included in other non-operating revenue or expense. Depreciation 
is recorded on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
Estimated useful lives for buildings are 10 to 40 years and for equipment 3 to 20 years. 
 
Capitalized interest is calculated based upon interest cost for the period, less investment 
income related to long term debt for the same period.   
  
The District evaluates long-lived assets regularly for impairment under the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of 
Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. If circumstances suggest that assets may 
be impaired, an assessment of recoverability is performed prior to any write-down of 
assets. An impairment charge is recorded on those assets for which the estimated fair 
value is below its carrying amount. No material impairment charges to long-lived assets 
were recorded for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.  

 
7. Compensated Absences 

 
 Primary Government  

 
A liability for unused vacation and sick time for all full time employees is reported in 
the government-wide financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No.16. 
This includes related amounts for Social Security, Medicare, and County retirement 
benefits. The following criteria must be met to be considered as compensated absences: 

  -leave or compensation is attributable to services already rendered. 
  -leave or compensation is not contingent on a specific event (such as illness).  

 
In accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 6, “Recognition and Measurement of 
Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements,” 
liabilities for compensated absences are recognized in the fund statements to the extent 
such liabilities have matured (e.g. are due for payment). Accordingly, there is none in 
the fund statements as of September 30, 2014, but compensated absences are accrued in 
the government-wide statements.  
  

 The County’s permanent, full-time employees accrue annually 80 hours of vacation 
from date of employment to 6 years of service, 120 hours from 6 to 15 years of service, 
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and 160 hours in excess of 15 years of continuous employment. The maximum accrual 
is 4, 5 or 6 weeks of vacation for the respective accrual categories specified. Upon 
termination, an employee is entitled to payment for total accrued but unused hours of 
vacation. 

 
The County’s permanent, full-time employees accrue annually 96 hours of sick leave. 
Sick leave is paid to current employees if absent from work due to illness, injury, or 
other situations requiring medical attention. An employee who terminates for any reason 
is paid a percentage of their accrued but unused sick leave. Amounts payable are 
initially 5% after 5 years of service, increasing thereafter at 5% for each additional 5 
years of service to a maximum of 50%. 

 
 Compensated absences (accrued vacation and sick leave) are reported in the 

government-wide financial statements and are typically incurred by the following 
governmental funds: General, Major Grants, Major Projects, and Other Non-major 
Governmental Funds. 

 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 

  
 The District accrues an estimated liability for compensated absences as they are earned 

by employees based on the District’s policy. The District’s liability related to 
compensated absences was $37,000 as of September 30, 2014, and is recorded in the 
financial statements in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

 
8. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense / 
expenditure) until then. The County only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this 
category. It is the deferred charge on refunding in the government-wide Statement of 
Net Position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying 
value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and 
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. The County has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category. 
The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes. This amount 
is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts 
become available. 
 

9. Long-Term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities under governmental activities in the Statement of 
Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the term of 
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the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of unamortized premiums or discounts. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums or 
discounts, and issuance costs in the period in which bonds are issued. The principal of         
bonds issued is reported as another financing source. Premiums received on debt          
issuances are reported as another financing source while discounts are reported as 
another financing use. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual proceeds 
 received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

  
 Long-term obligations, except long-term debt, net pension obligations or net other post-

employment benefit obligations (OPEB) are liquidated from the General Fund. Long-
term debt is liquidated in the Debt Service Fund.  Net pension obligations are liquidated          
through a trust managed by Texas County and District Retirement System. OPEB 
obligations remain unfunded.  

 
 

10. Unemployment and Workers’ Compensation Benefits 
 
 The County is a reimbursing employer for unemployment compensation benefits. 

Reimbursements are made on the basis of billings received from the Texas Employment 
Commission. The County also processes workers’ compensation payments through a 
third-party administrator as claims become due. The third-party administrator assists 
with hearings for contested claims. Expected costs are budgeted annually from current 
resources (see Note X). 

 
11.  Fund Balances 

Primary Government   

The fund balance amounts for governmental funds are classified in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions. Fund balances are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy 
based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on 
the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. These 
classifications are defined as: 
 

 Non-spendable fund balance includes items that cannot be spent. This includes 
activity that is not in a spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term 
portions of loans or notes receivable, or property held for resale unless the use of 
the proceeds are restricted, committed or assigned), and activity that is legally or 
contractually required to remain intact, such as a principal balance in a 
permanent fund. 

 Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources 
either by an external party or imposed by law through a constitutional provision 
or enabling legislation. The restricted fund balance at September 30, 2014, is 
composed of $3,899 restricted for future debt service, $5,514 restricted for grants 
awarded to the County. The balance of $82,495 is restricted by law both federal 
and Texas. 
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 Committed fund balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by a formal action of the government’s highest level of 
decision-making authority. The County’s highest level of decision making 
authority resides with the Commissioners Court. This formal action is the 
passage of a court order specifying the purposes for which amounts can be used. 
The same type of formal action is necessary to remove or change the specified 
use. As of September 30, 2014, the committed fund balance of $186,661 is 
primarily committed for thoroughfare projects, jail modifications, expansion of 
records storage facilities, sub-courthouse facilities and upgrades to information 
technology systems, and other major technology projects. 

 Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained in accordance with 
policies established by the Commissioners Court. Officials responsible for budget 
level control are delegated that authority by Commissioners Court to assign 
amounts for a specific purpose. Amounts assigned are neither restricted nor 
committed. For governmental fund types other than the General Fund, this is the 
residual amount within the fund that is not restricted or committed. As of 
September 30, 2014, the assigned fund balance of $6,537 is primarily composed 
of encumbered amounts assigned by officials for various operational 
expenditures. 
  

 Unassigned fund balance is the residual amount of the General Fund not included 
in the four categories above. Also, any deficit fund balances within the other 
governmental fund types are reported as unassigned. 
 

The General Fund target reserve policy is established by the governing body at 10.5% of 
expenditures and classified as unassigned reserves, while balances in other funds are set 
aside for specific purposes as described above. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available for use, County policy as 
approved by the governing body is to use restricted amounts first, with unrestricted 
resources utilized as needed. In the case of unrestricted resources, the policy is to use 
committed amounts first consistent with formal action of the governing body, followed 
by assigned amounts, then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for 
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could 
be incurred.  
 
The composition of the fund balances of the governmental funds for the fiscal year are 
shown on pages 28 and 103 through 105.   
 

                   12.  Net Position 
 

Primary Government 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is categorized into three 
categories. The first is net investment in capital assets, reduced by accumulated 
depreciation and any outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct or improve those 
assets excluding unexpended bond proceeds, restricted or unrestricted. The second 
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category is restricted, which represents assets restricted by requirement of bond 
covenants, grantor regulations, other externally imposed constraints, or by legislation, in 
excess of the related liabilities payable from restricted assets. The third category; 
unrestricted portion of net position, consists of all assets that do not meet the definition 
of either of the other two categories of net position. 
 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 
   
The District classifies net position into three components:  invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. Unspent related debt proceeds are excluded 
from the calculation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
Restricted – This component of net position consists of those assets whose use is 
restricted through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or laws 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of those assets that do not meet 
the definition of ―restricted‖ or ―invested in capital assets, net of related debt.‖ 
 
The District uses the accrual method of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized in 
the accounting period when services are rendered and expenses are recognized when 
incurred. 
 

For purposes of financial statement presentation, operating revenues include those 
generated from direct patient care and related support services. Non-operating revenues 
consist of those revenues that are related to financing and investing types of activities 
and result from non-exchange transactions or investment income. When an expenditure 
is incurred for the purposes for which there are both restricted and unrestricted net 
position available, it is the District’s policy to apply those expenditures to restricted net 
position, to the extent that such are available, and then to unrestricted net position. 
 

                    13.  Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires 
management to make estimate and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the 
reporting period.  

 
                    14.  Program Revenues – Health Care  

 
 
Net Patient Services Revenue - The District has agreements with third-party payors 
that provide for reimbursement to the District at amounts different from its established 
rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs represent the 
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difference between the District’s established rates for services and the amounts 
reimbursed by the third-party payors. The District’s more significant third-party payors 
are the Medicare and Medicaid programs, which accounted for gross charges of 
approximately 14% in fiscal 2014. Allowances for uncollectible amounts are estimated 
using historical experience, current trends and policy information, aged account 
balances, and a collectability analysis. Net patient services revenue in the accompanying 
Statement of Activities is net of contractual adjustments and bad debt provisions 
totaling approximately $3,900,000 for the year ended September 30, 2014.  
 
In accordance with provisions of the Medicare and Medicaid programs, inpatient 
services to Medicare and Medicaid beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined 
rates per discharge based on a patient classification system utilizing clinical, diagnostic, 
and other factors. Medicare outpatient services are reimbursed on a prospective basis 
through ambulatory payment classifications, which are based on clinical resources used 
in performing the procedure. Medicaid outpatient services are paid based on the lower of 
reasonable costs or customary charges, a fee schedule, or blended rates. For certain 
costs, as defined by the Medicare program, including kidney acquisition, medical 
education, and bad debts, additional reimbursement is provided based on cost pass-
through payments and the cost report. 
 
Cost-reimbursable items are reimbursed to the District at a tentative rate, with final 
settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the District, which are 
subject to audit by the fiscal intermediaries prior to final settlement. Any differences 
between final audited settlements and amounts accrued at the end of the prior reporting 
period are included currently in the Statement of Activities as an adjustment to the 
appropriate allowance account. Such adjustments increased net patient services revenue 
by $1,300 in fiscal 2014. The District’s cost reports have been audited and settled by the 
fiscal intermediaries through 2010 for Medicare and Medicaid. Cost reports for both 
programs are subject to certain re-openings and appeals as per federal and state 
regulations. 
 
Pharmaceutical Costs – The District participates in replacement pharmaceutical 
programs on behalf of patients who enroll and meet eligibility requirements of these 
programs. 
 
Grant Revenue – Grant revenues are recognized in the period in which expenditures 
related to the grant are incurred or the period in which grant funds become available. 
The Obama Administration’s February 2009 stimulus bill, American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA), established rules for the ―meaningful use‖ of electric health 
records. Government incentives for implementing electronic medical records were 
established under the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Heath 
Act. The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services released final ―meaningful 
use‖ rules during 2010 on how healthcare providers could access federal economic 
stimulus money by using electronic medical records. Health care providers are eligible 
to receive these incentives during 2014. The District recognized revenue of $800 in 
federal stimulus funds related to their implementation of electronic medical records 
during 2014. This amount has been recorded as grants revenue. 
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15.  Uncompensated Care      
 
        Discretely Presented Component Unit 

 
The District provides services to uninsured patients who qualify for tax-supported care. 
The program is called The Parkland HealthPlus and is designed for County indigent 
patients with family incomes up to 200% of the federal poverty level and no third-party 
coverage, such as Medicaid, Medicare, or commercial insurance. The District 
recognized ad valorem tax revenues of approximately $449,537 in 2014, to fund 
services for qualified patients and debt service obligations.   
 
The District also provides services to patients who are County residents and have 
incomes that exceed the limit for tax supported health care or whose income cannot be 
determined. Although these patients are uninsured, they do not qualify for tax-supported 
health care and are classified as self-pay. Certain of these patients are medically 
indigent. Additionally, certain of these patients have limited financial resources and are 
unable to pay for the services received, while others may be able to pay for some or all 
services received, but are unwilling to do so. Costs for services to these patients were 
approximately $411,400 in 2014, and are reflected in the Statement of Activities.  

   
Management estimates the cost of uncompensated health care, by applying a ratio of 
overall costs to gross charges applied to the gross uncompensated charges during the 
year ended September 30, 2014, at approximately $751,000, of which approximately 
$380,000 is charity care. 
 

 
II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
government-wide statement of net position 
 

 The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance for total 
governmental funds and net position as reported in the government-wide Statement of Net 
Position. One element of that reconciliation explains, ―Other long-term assets are not 
available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in 
governmental funds.‖ The details of this difference are as follows:   

 
 
Property taxes – assessed in current year which remain uncollected within  $ 3,410) 

 60 days of year-end (see page 59)   

Other receivables and accrued interest (see page 59)  12,982) 

Net adjustment to increase fund balance -   

 total governmental funds to arrive at net position – governmental 

activities $ 16,392) 
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One element of that reconciliation explains, ―certain liabilities, including bonds payable and 
related accrued interest, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not 
included in governmental funds.‖ The details of this difference are as follows: 
 

Bonds Payable $ (111,350) 

Less: deferred outflow – deferred charge on refunding  294) 

Premium on Bonds Payable  (7,431) 

Other post-employment benefits  (277,079) 

Accrued interest payable  (619) 

Arbitrage rebate accrued  (84) 

Claims and judgments  (3,500) 

Compensated absences  (28,151) 

Net adjustment to decrease fund balance – total government   

     funds to arrive at net position – governmental activities $ (427,920) 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide 
statement of activities 

 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances, total governmental funds, 
and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of activities. Governmental funds report capital expenditures; however, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimate useful lives 
and reported as depreciation expense. The detail of this difference is as follows: 
 
Capital expenditures (see page 61) $ 62,464) 

Depreciation expense (see page 61)  (21,860) 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances –    

 total government funds to arrive at changes in net position   

 of governmental activities $ 40,604) 

 
Another element of that reconciliation states that ―The net effect of various transactions (e.g. 
sales of capital assets).‖ In the Statement of Activities, only the gain or loss on the disposal 
of capital assets is reported; however, in the government funds, proceeds from sales increase 
financial resources. The detail of this difference is as follows: 
 
Depreciated cost of capital assets sold or disposed (see page 61) $ (110) 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances –    

 total government funds to arrive at changes in net position   

 of governmental activities $ (110) 
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Another element of the reconciliation states, ―Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do 
not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.‖ The details 
of this difference are as follows:  
 

Unearned and Unavailable Revenue – Fund Basis 
September 30, 2013 $    (421,888) 
September 30, 2014  444,960) 

Unearned and Deferred Revenue  - Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2013  403,839) 
September 30, 2014  (428,568) 
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances $ (1,657) 

 
Another element of that reconciliation states, ―Some expenses reported in the Statement of 
Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds.‖ The details of this difference represent changes in 
the following: 
 

Compensated absences $  (1,414) 

Accrued interest           302) 

Other postemployment benefits    (40,885)  

Arbitrage rebate accrued           18) 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances $        (41,979) 

 
Another element of the reconciliation states, ―The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, 
tax notes) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment 
of the principal of long-term debt consumes current financial resources of governmental 
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental 
funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, 
whereas these amounts are amortized in the Statement of Activities.‖  
 
The details of this difference are as follows: 
 

Debt principal repayment $ 25,080) 

Amortization of bond refunding charge  (110) 

Amortization of premium  2,277) 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances $ 27,247) 
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III.   DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS, AND INVESTMENT POLICIES 
 
 Primary Government 
 

The County’s investment policies are in accordance with the laws of Texas. The policies identify 
authorized investments and investment terms, collateral requirements and safekeeping requirements 
for collateral. 
 
The County’s demand deposits and bank certificates of deposit are fully collateralized by securities 
held in the County’s name by third party financial institutions. The County’s collateral agreements 
require that the total amount of cash and investments on deposit with its depository financial 
institutions at all times be collateralized based upon par value. The collateral market value shall be 
a minimum of 102% of par value. 
 
The County’s investments comprise Federal National Mortgage Association Notes; Federal Home 
Loan Bank Notes; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Notes, Federal Agricultural 
Mortgage Corp Notes, Federal Farm Credit Bank Notes; U.S. Small Business Administration 
Notes, and Tex Pool deposits. 
 
 
Deposits 
 
At September 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the County’s demand deposits and investments was 
as follows: 

 

 

Governmental 

Funds 

Proprietary 

Funds Total 

Fiduciary 

Funds Total 

Cash (a) $  145,676   $   1,575 $  147,251 $    69,979 $  217,230 

Investments and cash equivalents (a) 257,107 2,312 259,419 103,729 363,148 

Total cash, cash equivalents and 

investments $  402,783 $   3,887 $  406,670 $  173,708 $  580,378 

 

(a) The County pools cash, investments, and cash equivalents of certain Governmental and Fiduciary Funds . 

 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits    

In accordance with Texas and County Cash Management Policies, County deposits are either 
covered by FDIC insurance or collateralized with securities held by the County or the County’s 
agent in the name of the County. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments  
 
In accordance with Texas and the County’s formal investment policies, County investments are 
insured or registered, or securities held by the County or the County’s agent in the name of the 
County. 
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Investments 
 
At September 30, 2014, County and Fiduciary investment balances were as follows: 

 
 
Note 1: Moody’s Investor Services, Standard & Poor’s (S&P) AAA, Fitch AAA. 

Note 2: Tex Pool’s portfolio consists exclusively of U.S. government securities, repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S government 

securities and AAA rated no-load money market mutual funds. TexPool is rated AAA by S&P. 

 
Interest Rate Risk   
 
The County’s formal investment policy limits the County’s exposure to declines in fair values by 
limiting to two years the weighted average days to maturity of its entire investment portfolio.  
 
Credit Risk 
 
The County is authorized by statute and depository contract to invest in insured or registered 
securities including commercial paper and security repurchase agreements. It is the County’s policy 
to limit its investments in these investment types.   
 
The County’s formal investment policy permits investment in Texas and U.S. government 
obligations and agency securities and investment pools rated AAA or higher. This policy also 
permits investment in certificates of deposit that are fully collateralized.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk  
 
Permitted investments, other than securities issued by federal or local governments and certificates 
of deposit, include various concentration limits as to issuer and maturity. The largest percentage of 
any one issuer is in the form of TexPool deposits (38.3%). 
 

  

Investment Type 

 

Fair 

Value 

 

Percent of 

Investments 

 Weighted 

Average Days  

to Maturity 

 Weighted 

Average Stated 

Interest Rate 

 

Rating 

Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corp 

Notes $ 5,007  1.4%  98  0.78%  Note 1 

Federal Home Loan Bank Notes  110,375  30.4%  931  0.99%  Note 1 
U.S. Small Business 

Administration Notes 

 

1,095  0.3%  800  3.21%  

Note 1 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

     Corporation Notes 

 

52,348  14.4%  991  1.03%  

Note 1 

Federal National Mortgage 

Association Notes 

 

7,959  2.2%  954  0.69%  

Note 1 

Federal Farm Credit Bank Notes  47,287  13.0%  1,114  1.21%  Note 1 

TexPool deposits  139,077  38.3%  1  0.03%   Note 2 

 $ 363,148  100.00%  599  0.66%   
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Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 
 

As of September 30, 2014, the District had deposits and investments as follows:      

 

  Description Fair Value 

Weighted 

Average Days to 

Maturity 

Bank Deposits $          311                    N/A 

TexPool Deposits 86,800 1 

Money Market Fund Deposits 15,421 1 

 102,532  

Federal National Mortgage Association Notes 62,728 920 

Federal Home Loan Bank Notes 47,439 834 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Notes 65,581 539 

Federal Farm Credit Bureau 17,459 1,008 

United States Treasury 29,389 760 

 222,596  

       $   325,128              
 

   

Description on Statement of Net Position   
Assets limited as to use – current portion $ 81,444 
Assets limited as to use – noncurrent portion  243,684 
 $ 325,128 

   
Investment Maturities   
One year or less $ 18,557 
After one through five years  176,798 
After five through ten years  - 
After ten years  27,241 
 $ 222,596 

 
Estimated fair values have been determined by the District using appropriate valuation 
methodologies by third parties, quoted market prices and information available to management as 
of September 30, 2014. The District adjusts the carrying value of financial instruments classified as 
assets to reflect their appropriate fair value. For fiscal year 2014, deferral of payments from 
supplemental Medicaid programs resulted in a reduction of cash and cash equivalents. As of 
September 30, 2014, the District had not yet received $165,900 of accrued revenue related to the 
supplemental programs. Cash and cash equivalents included in assets limited as to use were 
$133,300 as of September 30, 2014. 
 
Interest Rate Risk  

The District invests in fixed rate debt securities with estimated average maturities of approximately 
one to six years. Interest rate risk is limited by the short-term nature of these investments. 
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Credit Risk  
 
The District has a comprehensive investment policy that is designed to comply with Texas law and 
the Public Funds Investment Act. The debt securities issued by Federal National Mortgage 
Association (FNMA), the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation (FHLMC), and the Federal Farm Credit Bureau (FFCB) are rated AAA by Standard & 
Poor’s rating agency. TexPool’s portfolio consists exclusively of U.S. government securities; 
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. government securities; and AAA-rated no-load 
money market mutual funds. All demand deposits are collateralized by FDIC insurance and with 
securities pledged to the District held in safekeeping at a third-party bank on behalf of the 
District’s depository institutions. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk  
 
Per the District's investment policy, no more than 40% of the investment portfolio can be invested 
in any one issuer of U.S. government agencies and government sponsored enterprises, including, 
but not limited to, FNMA, FHLB, and FHLMC. The largest percentage in any one issuer is 
invested with FHLMC at 20% as of September 30, 2014. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk  
 
Per the District’s investment policy, all investments are held in the District’s name in safekeeping 
at the District’s trust or custodial institutions. 
 
Investment Earnings – Investment income for the year ended September 30, 2014, consisted of 
interest income of $16,395 and unrealized loss on investments of $1,584 for total investment 
earnings of $14,811. 
 

IV. PROPERTY TAXES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
  
  Primary Government 
 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied prior to 
September 30, become due on October 1 and are delinquent after January 31. Dallas County Tax 
Office collects property taxes for 75 entities: 4 county entities, 8 school districts, 22 cities, 2 flood 
control districts, a levee district, and 38 public improvement districts (PIDs) as authorized by 
V.T.C.A., Tax Code §6.24. 
 
The County continues to collect only delinquent taxes for County Education Districts, 
Wilmer/Hutchins ISD, Levee Districts 4 and 8. The County and Levee Districts are the only entities 
controlled by the Commissioners Court.   
 
Property tax levies and collections are reduced by allowable exemptions. Certain exemptions are 
approved by statute and others are approved by local adoption. Exemptions approved by the County 
include a general homestead (the greater of 20% of appraised valuation or $5), over 65 homestead 
($69) and effective January 1, 2008 an over 65 tax freeze. 
 
Collections of the property taxes and subsequent remittances to the proper entities are accounted for 
in the Tax Assessor/Collector’s Agency Fund. Tax collections are recorded net of the entities’ 
related collection commission paid to the County in this agency fund according to the levy year for 
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which taxes are collected. Tax collections deposited for the County are distributed on a monthly 
basis to the following funds (amounts are for each one hundred dollars of valuation): General 
($0.17615), Debt Service ($0.01971), Major Projects ($0.03184), and Non-Major Funds - 
Permanent Improvement ($0.0018), and Major Technology ($0.0136). This distribution is based 
upon the tax rate established for each fund by order of the Commissioners Court for the tax year for 
which the collections are made.   
 
Property tax receivables are affected by participation in several Tax Increment Finance (TIF) 
Districts. In the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, the County either financially participated in 
or had authorization to participate in 25 TIF districts at various percentage participation levels. The 
2014 total incremental taxable value prior to participation and new construction after participation 
increased from the prior year value. The County’s decision to participate is influenced by level of 
proposed development in blighted/distressed areas and is determined by the amount of County 
property taxes levied and collected each tax year on the captured appraised value of real property 
located in the TIF district less the tax increment base for the year in which the TIF was designated, 
multiplied by the County’s increment provided per agreement. TIF funds are not recognized as 
County revenue but are used by the TIF district to finance project costs within the district and/or 
pay bonds or notes issued for the TIF.  
 
Governmental funds report unavailable and unearned revenue in connection with receivables that 
are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Under GASB 33, 
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions,” (GASB 33) property taxes 
are an imposed non-exchange revenue. Assets from imposed non-exchange transactions are 
recorded when the entity has an enforceable legal claim to the asset or when the entity receives 
resources, whichever comes first. The enforceable legal claim date for property taxes is the 
assessment date as designated in the enabling legislation. The County has a valid lien on 
January 1 with property assessed at the tax rate adopted prior to the fiscal year-end. In accordance 
with GASB 33, the County has recorded property taxes receivable including an amount for 
unavailable revenue as of September 30, 2014.  
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unavailable and unearned revenue 
reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 
 
Unavailable and  

Unearned  

Arising From 

General 

Fund 

Debt 

Service 

Major 

Projects 

Major 

Grants 

Other  

Non-Major 

Governmental 

 

Total 

Property taxes $  305,656 $ 30,334 $ 59,046 $         - $ 26,715 $ 421,751 

Unearned other receivables and  

        accrued interest 

 

5,155         -  2,054 

 

         5  7,645  14,859 

Unearned - other           -         -          -  8,350           - 

 

8,350 

         Unavailable and unearned 

         – Fund Basis $ 310,811 $ 30,334 $ 61,100 $ 8,355 $ 34,360 444,960 

 Property taxes (see page 52)             (3,410) 

 Other receivables and accrued 

interest (see page 52) 

 

          (12,982) 

Deferred revenue – Government wide       $  428,568 
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Unavailable means not available to finance expenditures for the current fiscal period. Unearned 
refers to funds received before the earnings process is completed. 
 
The County is authorized by the tax laws of Texas to levy taxes up to $0.80 per one hundred dollars 
of assessed valuation for general governmental services and the payment of principal and interest 
on certain permanent improvement long-term debt. The tax rate adopted September 2013 for fiscal 
year 2014 was $0.2431 per one hundred dollars of assessed value.   
 
Receivables as of September 30, 2014, for governmental funds, net of applicable allowances for 
uncollectible accounts, as required by GASB 34 are as follows: 
 

 

 

General 

 

Debt 

Service 

 

Major 

Projects 

 

Major 

Grants 

 Other Non-

Major 

Governmental Total 

Receivables:             

   Property taxes $ 325,980) $ 32,141) $ 62,676) $ - $ 28,429) $ 449,226) 

   Less allowance for uncollectible 

pro property taxes 

 

(20,788) 

 

(1,860) 

 

(3,720) 

 

- 

 

 (1,758) 

 

(28,126) 

   Subtotal  305,192)  30,281)  58,956)  -  26,671)  421,100) 

Accounts receivable  175,956)  -  -  4  308,077)  484,037) 

   Less allowance for uncollectible 

pro accounts receivable 

 

(168,871) 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

(302,549) 

 

 (471,420) 

   Subtotal  7,085)  -  -  4  5,528)  12,617) 

Total net receivables $ 312,277) $ 30,281) $ 58,956) $ 4 $ 32,199) $ 433,717) 

 
 
Discretely Presented Component Unit   
 
Receivables as of September 30, 2014: 
 

Receivables: 

 Property taxes  $        21,039)  

Patient accounts          517,866)  

Due from affiliates               8,565) 

Other          179,795)  

Gross receivables          727,265)  

Less allowance for uncollectible: 

      Property taxes          (16,886) 

     Patient accounts        (433,461) 

   Total allowance for uncollectible:        (450,347) 

Net total receivables  $     276,918)  

 
 Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 

The District received approximately 34.2% of its total revenues from ad valorem taxes in 2014. 
Current taxes are collected beginning in October of each year and become delinquent after 
January 31. Ad valorem tax revenue is recognized in the year for which taxes are levied. 
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V.      CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Primary Government 
 

Capital assets are recorded at cost or, if donated, at fair market value at the date of receipt. 
Depreciation policies were adopted to include useful lives and classification by function. 
Infrastructure assets are listed at historical cost, but not depreciated as the County elected to use 
the modified approach. Summary of changes in capital assets are as follows: 

 

 
 

Beginning 

Balance  Increases  Decreases  

Ending 

Balance 

Governmental activities:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Capital assets, not being depreciated:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Land $ 27,298 $ 688 $ -) $ 27,986 

Construction-in-progress  69,279  53,943  (14,872)  108,350 

Infrastructure  26,671  -  -)  26,671 

Historical treasures  32,042  -  -)  32,042 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated  155,290  54,631  (14,872)  195,049 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Capital assets, being depreciated:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Buildings  608,400  10,512  -)  618,912 

Machinery and equipment  113,988  12,193  (5,545)  120,636 

Total capital assets, being depreciated  722,388  22,705  (5,545)  739,548 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Less accumulated depreciation for:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Buildings  (241,899)          (11,484)  -)      (253,383) 

Machinery and equipment  (93,307)              (10,376)  5,435)          (98,248)  

Total accumulated depreciation  (335,206)            (21,860)  5,435)        (351,631)  

         

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net          387,182)               845)  (110)        387,917)  

Governmental activities capital assets, net $       542,472)  $ 55,476)  $ (14,982) $     582,966)  

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 
Governmental activities: 

 General government $  13,150 

Public safety 5,422 

Health 266 

Highways and streets 361 

Public welfare 835 

Education 113 

Judicial 1,713 

Total depreciation expense $  21,860 

 



DALLAS COUNTY 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 

September 30, 2014 

(in thousands of dollars) 

 

62 
 

 

 
 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 

 

The District’s capital assets at September 30, 2014 are summarized as follows: 

  

 

  Beginning 

Balance  

 

 Increases  

 

 Decreases  

 Ending 

Balance  

Capital assets, not being depreciated:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Construction in progress $ 763,984) $ 341,690) $ (39,078) $ 1,066,596) 

 

 

Land and improvements  115,730)  584)  -  116,314) 

 

Capital lease  -  12,937)  -  12,937) 

  

 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated  879,714)  355,211)  (39,078)  1,195,847) 

  
 

 

 

      

Capital assets, being depreciated:  

 

      

 

Buildings  

                

542,881))   4,611)  -  547,492) 

 

Machinery and equipment  

                

445,187))    33,942)  (829)  478,300) 

  

Total capital assets, being depreciated 
 

                

988,068))    38,553)  (829)  1,025,792) 

  
 

 

 

      

Less accumulated depreciation for:  

 

      

 

Land improvements  

              

(3,936)  (503)  -  (4,439) 

 

Buildings  

               

(308,312)  (16,934)  -  (325,246) 

 

Machinery and equipment  

               

(320,277)  (36,203)  655)  (355,825) 

  

Total accumulated depreciation 
 

                     

(632,525)  (53,640)  655)  (685,510) 

  
 

 

 

      

 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net  

                

355,543)  (15,087)  (174)  340,282) 

 

Capital assets, net $ 

              

1,235,257) $ 340,124) $ (39,252) $ 1,536,129) 

 

  

  V.      CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
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VI. LONG -TERM LIABILITIES 

 

Long-Term Debt 

 

Primary Government 

 

The following are General Obligation, Certificates of Obligation (COs), and Revenue Bonds 

outstanding at September 30, 2014: 

Description Interest Rates 

 

Year 

of 

Issue 

Year of 

Maturity 

Original 

Amount of 

Debt 

Bonds 

Outstanding 

Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds Series 2005 

      

 

Current Interest Bonds 5.00 - 5.25% 

 

2005 2020 $   21,270  $    15,345  

Combination Tax and Parking Garage Revenue 

      

 

Certificates of Obligation Series 2006 4.125 - 5.00% 

 

2006 2016 63,220  15,140  

Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds Series 2011 A 3.00 - 5.00% 

 

2011 2021 

            

30,495  

            

13,495  

Limited Tax Notes Series 2011 3.00 - 5.00% 

 

2011 2018 

            

41,545  

            

25,480  

Limited Tax Notes Series 2013 2.00 - 5.00%  2013 2020 

            

35,825  31,375 

Limited Tax Refunding Bonds Series 2013 2.00 - 5.00%  2013 2025 

            

10,515  10,515 

 Subtotal      111,350 

 Premium on Debt      7,431 

 Total      $  118,781 

 

Pledged Future Revenues 
 

The County pledged future net revenues from certain parking facilities. Pledged net revenues and 

cash and investments in the respective sinking fund secured the Combination Tax and parking 

Garage Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2004, which was fully repaid during fiscal 2014. 

Net revenues were $731 in fiscal year 2014. Principal and interest paid for the current fiscal year 

were $650 and $26, respectively. 

 

                   Arbitrage Rebate Liabilities 

The Tax Recovery Act of 1986 established regulations for rebate to the federal government of 
arbitrage earnings on certain local governmental bonds issued after December 31, 1985, and all 
local governmental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Issuing governments must calculate any 
rebate due on an annual basis and remit the amount due at least every five years. The County has 
recorded an arbitrage liability of $84 in governmental activities on the government-wide financial 
statements at September 30, 2014. 
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2014 were as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities  

Beginning 

Balance  

 

Additions  

 

Reductions  

Ending 

Balance  

Due 

Within 

One Year 

 Funding 

for 

Liquidation 

Bonds and COs $ 146,138 $ - $ 27,357 $ 118,781 $ 25,840  a 

Other postemployment benefits   236,194  45,156  4,271  277,079         -  b 

Claims and judgments  3,500     1,301             1,301  3,500  600  c 

Compensated absences  26,737  35,354  33,940  28,151  24,575  c 

Workers’ compensation  2,160  1,794  1,616  2,338  1,541  c 

                Total $ 414,729 $ 83,605 $ 68,485 $ 429,849 $ 52,556   
 
Funding for liquidation: a=Debt Service Fund:  b=Unfunded:  c=General Fund 
Note: Changes in estimates of workers’ compensation are indirect costs charged to General Government in the 
Statement of Activities and which may not be reasonably allocated as a direct expense to other functions / programs in 
the Statement of Activities. Other post-employment benefits are charged to General Government functions / programs 
in the Statement of Activities as these benefits are considered direct costs guaranteed by the general government.            

 
  

Contractual Maturities 
 
The annual debt service for general obligation, certificates of obligation and revenue bonds is as 
follows: 
 

Year Ending 

September 30  

 

Principal 

 

 Interest 

2015  $ 25,840  $ 4,769 

2016   24,690   3,757 

2017   17,410   2,662 

2018   16,265   1,803 

2019   9,765   1,172 

2020 – 2025   17,380   1,673 

   Subtotal   111,350   15,836 

   Premium on debt   7,431   - 

   Total  $ 118,781  $ 15,836 

 
The Debt Service Fund has $3,899 available to service the general long-term bond retirement. 
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. County 
management believes that it complies with all significant limitations and restrictions. 

 
 Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 

On September 17, 2009, the District issued three series of Dallas County Hospital District Limited 
Tax Bonds (Bonds), with a total principal amount of $705,000. The Bonds were authorized by an 
affirmative vote of the County electorate on November 4, 2008, and were issued pursuant to an 
order by the Dallas County Commissioners Court. Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to fund the 
replacement hospital campus pursuant to the District’s master facility plan. The Bonds pay interest 
on February 15

th
 and August 15

th
 each year, based upon a 360 day year consisting of twelve 30 day 

months. Payment of principal and interest on the Bonds is supported by a tax levy initially $0.02 

VI. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
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per $100 of taxable assessed valuation on the taxable residential real estate, commercial real estate, 
and business personal property of the County. The Bonds are rated ―AA+‖ by both Standard & 
Poor’s and Fitch. 
 
Tax Exempt Series 2009A Bonds were issued with a total principal amount of $24,800, bear 
interest at effective rates ranging from 2.06% to 2.59% (stated fixed interest rates of 3.0% and 
5.0%), mature from August 15, 2014 to 2016, and were sold at a premium of $2,500. The Tax 
Exempt Series 2009A Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. As of September 30, 
2014, $7,000 of the Series 2009A bonds was paid on the maturity date of August 14, 2014. 
 
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds were issued in accordance with provisions of the Build America 
Bonds program with a total principal amount of $222,500, bear interest at fixed interest rates 
(before interest rate subsidy) ranging from 4.948% to 6.171%, mature from August 15, 2020 
through August 15, 2034, and were sold at par. The Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity on August 15, 2019 or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part, at 
the option of the District, at the par amount plus any accrued interest. Prior to August 15, 2019, the 
Taxable Series 2009B Bonds are subject to ―make-whole‖ redemption, at a redemption price which 
is the greater of (a) the issue price, or (b) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled 
payments of principal and interest to maturity date of the bonds to be redeemed, discounted at the 
Treasury Rate plus 25 basis points. If the interest rate subsidy from the U.S. Treasury is reduced or 
eliminated, the Taxable Series 2009B Bonds may be redeemed, at the option of the District, at the 
Extraordinary redemption price which is the greater of (a) the issue price, or (b) the sum of the 
present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest to maturity date of the 
bonds to be redeemed, discounted at the Treasury Rate plus 100 basis points. 
 
Taxable Series 2009C Bonds were issued in accordance with provisions of the Build America 
Bonds program with a total principal amount of $457,700, bear interest at fixed interest rates 
(before interest rate subsidy) ranging from 4.148% to 5.621%, mature from August 15, 2017 
through August 15, 2044, and were sold at par. The Taxable Series 2009C Bonds are subject to 
―make-whole‖ redemption, at a redemption price which is the greater of (a) the issue price, or (b) 
the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest to 
maturity date of the bonds to be redeemed, discounted at the Treasury Rate plus 25 basis points. If 
the interest rate subsidy from the U.S. Treasury is reduced or eliminated, the Taxable Series 2009C 
Bonds may be redeemed, at the option of the District, at the Extraordinary redemption price that is 
the greater of (a) the issue price, or (b) the sum of the present value of the remaining schedule 
payments of principal and interest to maturity date of the bonds to be redeemed, discounted at the 
Treasury Rate plus 100 basis points. 

 
Under the provisions of the Build America Bond program’s Direct Payment Method, the Taxable 
Series 2009B and Series 2009C Bonds qualify for interest rate subsidies from the U.S. Treasury of 
35% of the interest costs paid on each payment date. Under the Sequestration Transparency Act of 
2012, the federal subsidies were reduced by 8.7% effective for payments to issuers between March 
2, 2013 and September 30, 2013. The Sequestration reduction of the subsidies was lowered to 7.2% 
effective for payments to issuers between October 1, 2013 and September 30, 2014. The 
Sequestration loss to the District was $1,000 in fiscal year 2014. 
 
The remaining bonds authorized by the 2008 election were delivered on December 11, 2013. These 
Tax Exempt Series 2013 Bonds were issued with a total principal amount of $38,300, bear interest 
at effective rates ranging from 1.3% to 4.7% (stated fixed interest rates between 4.0% and 5.0%), 
and mature from August 15, 2018 to 2038. The District may redeem, at its option, the bonds having  
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stated maturity dates on or after August 15, 2024 on August 15, 2023 or on any date thereafter, in 
whole or in part, at the par amount plus any accrued interest. The Term Bonds maturing on August 
15, 2038 are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their stated maturity each year 
beginning August 15, 2034. Proceeds of the Bonds were used to fund the replacement hospital 
campus pursuant to the District’s master facility plan. Payment of principal and interest on the 
Series 2013 Bonds is supported by parking revenues up to $3,000 annually and by a tax levy for 
required debt service payments above $3,000.  
 
The following is a summary of long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2014: 

 Beginning 

Balance Additions 

Amortization 

of Premiums Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Tax-Exempt Series 2009A Bonds $      24,770 $              - $              - $   (7,015) $     17,755 

Tax-Exempt Series 2009A Bonds premium 1,057 - (368) - 689 

Taxable Series 2009B Bonds 222,490 -  - 222,490 

Taxable Series 2009C Bonds 457,740 -  - 457,740 

Tax-Exempt 2013 Bonds - 38,250  - 38,250 

Tax-Exempt 2013 Bonds premium - 1,946 (138) - 1,808 

Capital Lease - 12,937  - 12,937 

Total Debt $    706,057 $     53,133 $       (506) $   (7,015) $   751,669 

 
Debt due within one year $      8,267 

Debt due in more than one year 743,402 

 751,669 

Other non-current liabilities due in more than one year 12,547 

 $  764,216 

 
Long-term debt maturities (including mandatory redemptions), interest payments, net of subsidy, 
and total debt service at September 30, 2014 are as follows: 

Years Ending 

September 30, 

Principal and  

Mandatory 

Redemptions 

Interest Payments,  

Net of Subsidy 

Total Debt 

Service     

2015 $          8,230) $            28,212) $         36,442) 

2016 9,525) 27,858) 37,383) 

2017 14,710) 27,456) 42,166) 

2018 15,995) 27,044) 43,039) 

2019 16,485) 26,556) 43,041) 

2020 - 2024 91,240) 123,962) 215,202) 

2025 - 2029 109,515) 105,688) 215,203) 

2030 - 2034 133,694) 81,505) 215,199) 

2035 - 2039 159,590) 52,283) 211,873) 

2040 - 2044 177,250) 20,664) 197,914) 

 

   

Subtotal       736,234)           521,228)     1,257,462) 

 

   

Bond premium 4,489) -) 4,489) 

Accumulated amortization             (1,991)                        -)           (1,991) 

  

  

Total  $      738,732) $          521,228) $   1,259,960) 
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As of September 30, 2014, the aggregate fair market value of the Bonds was approximately 
$837,000 based on quoted market prices. The District is subject to federal arbitrage regulations 
which limit investment yields on bond proceeds. 
 
The District’s ability to issue debt payable from taxes is limited by tax rate limitations imposed by 
the Texas State Constitution. The District’s ad valorem tax rate for all purposes cannot exceed 
$0.75 per $100 valuation. The District’s ad valorem tax rate for fiscal 2014 is below the limit at 
$0.276 per $100 valuation. 
 
Interest costs totaled $40,000 for fiscal 2014. Of total interest costs, $12,300 was expensed during 
fiscal 2014. The remaining $27,700 was capitalized during fiscal 2014.    
 
 

VII. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLE BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
 
 Primary Government 
 

The composition of inter-fund balances as of September 30, 2014 is as follows: 

Receivable fund  Payable fund  Amount 

General   Major Grants  $ 118 

General  Other Non-Major Governmental  7 

Major Grants  General          7 

Internal Service  General  3,664 

Internal Service  Major Projects  81 

Internal Service  Major Grants  415 

Internal Service  Other Non-Major Governmental  312 

Total   $ 4,604 

 
Transactions between funds of the County can result in receivables and payables at year end when 
there is a reasonable expectation of repayment. The General Fund receivable represents a 
reimbursement from the Major Grants and Other Non-Major Governmental funds for indirect costs 
and salaries. The Major Grants receivable fund represents indirect costs and salaries that are 
reimbursed to the General Fund. The Internal Service Fund receivable from General, Major 
Projects, Major Grants, and Other Non-Major Governmental funds relates to health insurance 
liabilities expected to be funded in fiscal 2015. 
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Transfer In: 

 
 

 

 

General 

Fund  

 

Major 

Projects  

 

Major 

Grants 

 Other Non-

Major 

Governmental 

Funds 

 

Total 

Transfer Out:          

General $ - $ - $ 2,103) $ 911 $ 3,014 

Major Projects  68  -  -  -  68 

Major Grants  1,520  -  -  50  1,570 

Other Non-Major                      

G  Governmental Funds  14,726  

 

22,548  -  175  37,449 

Total $ 16,314 $ 22,548 $ 2,103) $ 1,136 $ 42,101 

        
Transfers from Other Non-Major Governmental funds to the General and Major Projects funds 
were mainly from Road and Bridge, Technology, Local Government, and Record Management 
funds. Transfers to the General and Major Projects funds totaled $16,314, and $22,548, 
respectively. Transfers from the Road and Bridge fund were primarily from vehicle registration 
fees, criminal fines, and forfeitures and were for various transportation related projects. Transfers 
from the Technology, Local Government, and Record Management funds funded current 
expenditures for record management, local government, and technology expenditures approved by 
the respective official custodians to support approved expenditures. 
 
A condition of certain Major Grants requires the County to provide matching funds in order to 
obtain grant funding. In fiscal 2014, the General fund provided matching funds aggregating $2,103. 
The majority of transfers were for health, juvenile, and law enforcement grants. 
 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 
Primary Government 
 
Approximately 24.9% of the $38,587 balance in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at 
September 30, 2014 represents accrued payroll liabilities with the balance being payable to 
vendors and contractors. 
 
Discretely Presented Component Unit  
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the Statement of Net Position includes accounts 
payable and accrued expenses of $124,596, accrued payroll of $62,791, employee healthcare 
liabilities of $9,298, and other employee benefits of $6,148. 
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VIII.  RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS 

 
 Primary Government 
 

(a) Retirement Plan Description 
 
Texas County and District Retirement System 

  
 The County provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for all of its full-time employees 

through a non-traditional defined benefit pension plan in the statewide Texas County and District 
Retirement System (TCDRS). The TCDRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration 
of the statewide agent multi-employer public employee retirement system consisting of 656 
nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a comprehensive 
annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is available online at 
www.tcdrs.org or upon written request from the Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 
78768-2034. 

 
The governing body of the employer adopts the plan provisions within options available in Texas 
state statutes (TCDRS Act) governing TCDRS. Members employed by the County are vested and 
may retire at age 60 and above with 10 or more years of service; with 30 years of service 
regardless of age,  or  when the sum of their age and years of  service equals 80 or more. Members 
are vested after combined 10 years of employment with any organization(s) with an accredited 
plan (not just the County), but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive 
any employer financed benefit.  
 
Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with 
interest, and employer financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by 
the governing body of the employer within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so 
that the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the employer’s 
commitment to contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by 
converting the sum of an employees accumulated contributions and the employer financed 
monetary credits to a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act. 
 
Public Agency Retirement Services 
 
County employees with less than 1,000 hours of annual service are required to participate in the 
Public Agency Retirement Services Plan (PARS), as an alternative to participation in Social 
Security. PARS is administered by Phase II Systems, a California corporation. Employee and 
County contributions are fixed as a percentage of an employee’s salary, which percentages are 
6.2% and 1.3%, respectively. In fiscal 2014, employee and County contributions were $95 and 
$20, respectively. The County Treasurer administers the investment policy for employee and 
County contributions. 

 
(b)  Funding Policy 

 
The County has chosen a fixed rate plan under the provisions of the TCDRS Act. County 
employees with 1,000 or more hours of service a year are members of the plan. The plan is funded 
by monthly contributions from both the County and its employees based on the covered payroll of 
employee members. Regulated by the TCDRS Act, the required 11.5% contribution rate (effective 
January 1, 2014) of the County is a fixed percentage matched by a 7% contribution rate payable by 
employee members and adopted by the Commissioners Court.   
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The financing objective for the plan is to provide benefits for the employee members that can be 
adequately financed by a fixed employer contribution rate that remains level as a percentage of 
covered payroll. Employee and County contribution rates may be changed by the Commissioners 
Court with options available in the TCDRS Act. If a plan has had adverse experience, the TCDRS 
Act provisions allow an employer to contribute a fixed supplemental contribution rate determined 
by the TCDRS actuary above the regular rate for 30 years, or to reduce benefits earned in the 
future. 

 
 The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (see page 98) 

following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Plan asset values continue to increase in value. 

 

 (c)  Annual Pension Cost 

 For the year ended September 30, 2014, the County’s annual pension cost and actual contributions 
for the TCDRS plan was $33,924. This excludes contributions for Community Supervision and 
Corrections Department (CSCD), which is not a department or component unit of the County; 
however, actuarial valuation information below includes CSCD. Any experience adjustment based 
on the TCDRS actuarial studies, is passed to CSCD based on the associated covered payroll. The 
annual required contributions actuarially determined as a percentage of the covered actuarial 
payroll of the participating employees for fiscal 2014 complied with GASB Statement No. 27, 
“Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers,” parameters based on the 
actual actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2012. 

 
Actuarial Valuation Information 

VIII.   RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued) 
 

Fiscal year 2012 2013 2014 

GASB 27 Calculation Information    

GASB 27 compliant contribution rate 10.00% 10.80% 11.50% 

Actuarial assumed investment return 

rate 

9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 

Actuarial amortization factor 12.9447 12.9447 12.9447 

Rate actually used to make 

contributions 

10.00% 10.80% 11.50% 

Actuarial Information    

Actuarial valuation date 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age 

Amortization cost method Level percentage of 

payroll, closed 

Level percentage of 

payroll, closed 

Level percentage of 

payroll, closed 

Amortization period 20.0 years 20.0 years 20.0 years 

Asset valuation method 
1
SAF: 10 years 

smoothed value 
2
ESF: Fund value 

1
SAF: 10 years 

smoothed value 
2
ESF: Fund value 

1
SAF: 10 years 

smoothed value 
2
ESF: Fund value 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

   Investment return 

   Projected salary increases 

   Inflation 

   Cost-of-living adjustments 

 

8.0% 

5.4% 

3.5% 

0.0% 

 

8.0% 

5.4% 

3.5% 

0.0% 

 

8.0% 

5.4% 

3.5% 

0.0% 
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Actuarial Valuation Information 
 

Annual Pension Cost 
 
 

 

Fiscal Year Ended 
 
Annual Pension Cost 

(APC) 

 Percentage 

of APC 

Contributed 

 
Net Pension 

Obligation 

September 30, 2012  $27,539  100%  — 

September 30, 2013    30,760  100%  — 

September 30, 2014    33,924  100%  — 
 

         
 Post Retirement Benefits Other Than Pension (OPEB)  

 

  OPEB Plan Description 

The County’s group medical plans (Plan) are administered through the Public Employee Benefits 
Cooperative. The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan funded on a pay-as-you-
go basis. OPEB includes health insurance and Medicare supplements. Contribution, adjustment or 
elimination of the contribution and adjustments to OPEB eligibility are subject to the governing 
body’s annual budgetary discretion. The County allows retirees and dependents to continue health, 
dental and other insurance benefits upon retirement.   
 
Age-adjusted premium amounts are not incorporated with the policy, except after the age of 65 
when the Plan is secondary payer to Medicare Parts A and B. All retirement credits must be earned 
within the County for insurance eligibility. Retiree plan participants who opt for other than basic or 
enhanced coverage must contribute 100% of the costs. 

VIII.   RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued) 
 

Fiscal year 2012 2013 2014 

Schedule of Funding Information  
   

Actuarial valuation date   12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 

Actuarial value of assets   991,089 1,010,337 1,049,340 

Actuarial present value of future normal 

cost    contributions  

170,609 164,144 164,128 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 1,129,476 1,169,677 1,234,321 

Unfunded  actuarial accrued  Liability 

(UAAL) 

138,387 159,340 184,981 

Funded ratio 87.75% 86.38% 85.01% 

Actuarial covered payroll 320,891 310,878 309,423 

UAAL as percentage of covered payroll 43.13%
 

51.25%
 

59.78%
 

Required employer rates  

Normal cost   

UAAL   

Total required rate    

 

6.54% 

3.46% 

10.00% 

 

6.52% 

4.28% 

10.80% 

 

6.52% 

4.98% 

11.50% 

 

Note 1:  SAF is defined as “Subdivision Accumulation Fund.” 

Note 2:  ESF is defined as “Employee Savings Fund.” 
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Funding Policy 
 
The County is not required by Texas law or contractual agreement to provide funding for OPEB 
other than the pay-as-you-go amount necessary to provide current budget year benefits to retirees 
and eligible beneficiaries and their dependents. Contribution, adjustment, or elimination of the 
contribution and adjustments to eligibility are subject to the governing body’s annual budgetary 
discretion. For the year ended September 30, 2014, combined County and retiree contributions 
totaled $7,948 for the Plan. Retiree Plan members receiving benefits contributed $3,677 or 
approximately 46.27% of total cost through their required contributions. 
 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (see page 98) 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether 
the actuarial value of OPEB assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits.  

 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation  
 
The County’s annual OPEB cost (expense) calculation is based on the annual required contribution 
of the employer (ARC), an amount that was actuarially determined by using the Projected Unit 
Credit method. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an on-going basis, is 
projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a 
period not to exceed 30 years. This allocation is performed for the group as a whole. 
 
The Projected Unit Credit method allocates costs from date of hire to expected retirement date 
based on experience by aging active claims to retirement. The portion of this Actuarial Present 
Value allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost. Under this method, actuarial gain or 
losses, as they occur, reduce or increase future Normal Costs. The following table shows the 
elements of the County’s annual OPEB cost for each of the three fiscal years ended September 30, 
the amount actually paid on behalf of the Plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation to 
the Plan: 
  

 

Normal cost 

2014  2013  2012  

$   31,938  $   41,548  $   41,548  

Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial          

Accrued  Liability 13,218  16,524  16,524  

Interest on net OPEB obligation   5,905  4,527  3,150  

Adjustment to annual required contribution (5,905)         (4,527)       (3,150)  

Annual OPEB expense 45,156  58,072  58,072  

Contributions made (4,271)        (2,950)        (3,005)  

Change in net OPEB obligation 40,885  55,122  55,067  

Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year 236,194  181,072  126,005  

Net OPEB obligation – end of year $ 277,079  $ 236,194  $ 181,072  

 
The County decided against funding any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) at 
transition and will amortize it over the maximum period of thirty years, open basis, as allowed 
under GASB 45, ―Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment 
Pensions.”   
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The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and 
the net OPEB obligation for the three fiscal years ended September 30 are as follows: 
 
 

Fiscal 

Year  

Annual 

OPEB Cost 

Percentage of OPEB 

Cost Contributed 

Net OPEB 

Obligation 

    

2012 $  58,072 5.17% $  181,072 

2013 58,072 5.08% 236,194 

2014 45,156 9.46% 277,079 

 
 
Funding Status and Funding Progress 
 
The most recent actuarial valuation (dated October 1, 2013) includes an actuarial accrued liability 
of $367,933 and an actuarial value of assets of $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial balance. 
There are no Plan assets because the County funds on a pay-as-you-go basis. The covered payroll 
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $288,556, and the ratio of the UAAL 
to the covered payroll was (127.5%). 
 
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrences of events far into the future. Decreases in the most recent actuarial 
valuation are due to actuarial assumptions for decreasing post-retirement healthcare costs. Medical 
costs trend rate was reduced to 7.0% from 9.0% and graded down 0.5% per year to 5.0% vs. 5.5%. 
The discount rate of 2.5% remains flat from the 2011 valuation. Other estimates include 
assumptions about future employment mortality, age of retirement and continuance of retiree 
coverage. 
 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (see page 98) 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of OPEB assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan, which 
include actuarial valuations as classified by the TCDRS; the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation; and the historical pattern of benefit costs between the employer and the plan 
members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of 
assets, consistent with long-term perspective of the calculations. The demographic assumptions 
requiring approval were accepted by the County’s finance leaders.   
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Summary information as of the October 1, 2013 actuarial valuation is as follows: 
 
Actuarial valuation data  October 1, 2013 

Actuarial cost method  Projected Unit Credit 

Ll   Amortization period   30 years 

Asset valuation method  Unfunded 

Actuarial assumptions:   

Investment rate of return  2.5% compounded annually 

Inflation rate  2.5% 

Projected salary increases  2.0% 

Increases in postretirement healthcare   

 costs  7.0% (first year)  5.0% (ultimate – 2017)  

Participant data   

  Active   

- Number  5,380 

- Average age  43.9 

- Average past service  9.7 

- Average future service   

to expected retirement  11.0 

  Retired participants and surviving   

     Spouses   

- Number  625 

- Average age  68.8 

Dependents   

- Number  208 

- Average age  65.6 

 

Additional Disclosure 
 
The County holds the authority to pay OPEB for its retired employees; therefore, it may incur a 

debt obligation to pay for OPEB, so long as the County follows the constitutional requirement that 

it have sufficient taxing authority available at the time such debt is incurred. Any debt incurred in 

contravention of this constitutional requirement is considered void and payment will not be due.  
 
The County has not incurred a legal debt obligation for OPEB and has not levied a tax for the same. 

The County funds the cost associated with OPEB on a current ―pay-as-you-go‖ basis for a single 

fiscal year through an annual appropriation authorization by Commissioners Court during the 

County’s annual budget adoption process. 
 
GAAP requires governmental organizations to recognize an actuarially calculated accrued liability 

for OPEB, even though it may not have a legally enforceable obligation to pay OPEB benefits. 

Information and amounts presented in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

(CAFR) relative to OPEB expense/expenditures, related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and 

supplementary information are intended to achieve compliance with the requirements of generally 

accepted accounting principles (GASB 45) and does not constitute or imply that the County is 

legally obligated to provide OPEB benefits.  
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 Discretely Presented Component Unit 
  
Defined Benefit Plan 
  
The District maintains the Dallas County Hospital District Retirement Income Plan, a single-
employer, defined benefit pension plan (Plan), which covers substantially all of its full-time 
employees. The Plan is administered by the Board. Plan provisions and contribution requirements 
are established and   may   be   amended   by   the   Board. The annual payroll for employees 
covered by the Plan for the year ended December 31, 2013, which is included in the actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2014, was approximately $564,000. For the year ended September 30, 
2014, the District’s total payroll was approximately $706,100. 
 
Employees are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual salaries to the Plan. The District is 
required by the Plan to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the Plan using actuarial 
methods. In accordance with the GASB pronouncements applicable to benefit plan accounting and 
reporting, revenues, including contributions, are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when the underlying translation or event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Benefit payments to participants are recorded upon distribution. 
 
Employees attaining the age of 65 who have completed five or more years of service are entitled to 
annual benefits of 1.25% of their final average annual earnings for each year of service prior to 
1982, plus 2.50% of their final average earnings for each year of service after 1981 up to a 
maximum of 60% of final average earnings, subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. The 
Plan permits early retirement, for which the participant is eligible for a reduced benefit at age 55, 
provided the employee has completed five years of service. 

 
Effective July 1, 2010, the Plan was amended to assure parity with Social Security benefits for 
some participants. The greater of the above described ―normal‖ benefit accrual rates or the 
following alternative rates will apply: 4% of the Participant’s final average earnings up to $10 
multiplied by his years of service (capped at 25 years) plus 2% of that portion of the final average 
earnings, if any, which is between $10 and $30, multiplied by his years of service (capped at 25 
years). For calendar years following 2010, the breakpoint values of $10 and $30 will be indexed to 
the Social Security Taxable Wage Base. The Plan document was restated effective January 1, 2014 
to incorporate three prior amendments. 
 
If an employee terminates his or her employment with the District prior to the completion of five 
years of service, the employee is entitled to a refund of his or her contribution. After five years of 
service, the employee, upon termination, is entitled to the pension accrued to the date of 
termination, payable commencing at his or her normal retirement date or at the age of 55 upon early 
retirement. Actual benefits to be paid, however, may vary depending on, among other things, actual 
retirement date, form of payment elected, and certain limitations as described in the Plan document. 
 
The District’s funding policy is to make periodic actuarially determined employer contributions in 
amounts designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The projected unit 
credit method is used to determine both the funding and the pension benefit obligation. 
 
The Plan’s assets include investments reported at fair value. Investments in mutual funds, corporate 
equities, and fixed income securities are reported at fair value based on published market prices. 
Short term money market funds are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Investments in 
common collective trusts and hedge funds are reported at net asset value as a practical expedient for 
fair value.  
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Significant actuarial assumptions used include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and 
future assets of 8% per year, compounded annually; (b) projected salary increases of 4%; (c) 
inflation of 4.25% and (d) the assumption that benefits will not increase after retirement. The 
amortization method used is the level percentage of projected open payroll over a period of 30 
years. The   actuarial  value  of  assets   is  equal  to  a  five-year  rolling  phase-in  of the  excess  of  
actual investment income over expected investment income, based on the market value. 
 
The District’s annual pension cost and net pension asset related to the Plan for the year ended 
September 30, 2014, were as follows: 
 

Annual required contribution  $ 22,811) 
Interest on net pension asset  (1,702) 
Adjustment to annual required contribution  1,256) 

Annual pension cost  22,365) 
Contributions  22,119) 
Decrease in net pension asset  (246) 
Net pension asset – beginning of year  19,873) 
Net pension asset – end of year  $ 19,627) 

 
           The annual pension costs related to the Plan are as follows:  
 

 
Year Ended 

 Annual Pension 
Cost (APC) 

 Percentage of APC 
Contributed 

 Net Pension 
 Asset 

September 30, 2012  $  15,579   98%  $  20,749 
September 30, 2013   20,840   96%   19,873 
September 30, 2014   22,365   99%   19,627 

  
During the year ended September 30, 2014, $27,000 of employee contributions were made in 
accordance with the established contribution requirements described above. The District 
contributed approximately $22,100 to the Plan during the year ended September 30, 2014, in 
accordance with contribution requirements determined by the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation. 
Three-year historical trend information presenting the progress in accumulating sufficient assets to 
pay benefits when due is presented in the Required Supplementary Information (see page 99) 
following the notes to the basic financial statements based on the Plan’s year-end of December 31. 
 
The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Plan. This report may be obtained by writing to the District’s 
accounting office. At January 1, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the actuarial value of assets was sufficient to 
fund 83.0%, 80.0%, and 86.0%, respectively, of the actuarial accrued liability. The unfunded 
liability as a percentage of the annual payroll for employees covered as of January 1, 2014, 2013, 
and 2012, was 25.0%, 28.0%, and 18.0%, respectively. 
 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The District also maintains a voluntary defined contribution plan covering all employees with at 
least one year of service. The defined contribution plan is administered by the Board. The defined 
contribution plan provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by 
the Board. The payroll for employees covered by the defined contribution plan for the year ended 
September 30, 2014, was approximately $627,400. The District’s total payroll was approximately 
$706,100 for the year ended September 30, 2014. Eligible employees can choose to contribute from  

VIII.   RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued) 
 



DALLAS COUNTY 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 

September 30, 2014 

(in thousands of dollars) 

 

77 
 

2% to 20% of their base salaries. The District will match employees’ contributions 100%, up to 6% 
of their base salaries. Employees are fully vested at all times in their voluntary contributions, plus 
earnings thereon. Vesting in the District’s matching contributions is based on years of service. After 
one year of service, employees vest at the rate of 20% per year for five years. Should an employee 
terminate prior to vesting completely in the District’s contributions, the unvested portion can be 
used to reduce the District’s matching contributions in the aggregate in the following year.   
 
Contributions for the year ended September 30, 2014, were approximately $17,600 from the 
District and $41,300 from employees, or 6.6% of covered payroll. The required contribution by the 
District for 2014 has been increased by $400 representing increased employee participation 
contributions.  
 

Post Retirement Benefits Other Than Pension (OPEB)  

In addition to providing pension benefits, the District provides certain healthcare benefits for retired 
employees until age 65 (OPEB Plan). As of January 1, 2014, the number of retirees and eligible 
beneficiaries was 64. 
 
The OPEB Plan is administered by the Board. The OPEB Plan provisions and contribution 
requirements are established and may be amended by the Board. The OPEB Plan does not issue a 
publicly available financial report. In September 2011, the Plan provisions were modified to 
discontinue allowing new enrollees in the Plan effective January 1, 2013. 
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost or expense is calculated based on the Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined. The ARC  represents  a  level  of  funding  
that,  if  paid  on  an  ongoing  basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities, or funding excess, over a period not to exceed 30 years. The 
following table shows the components of the District’s OPEB cost for the year ended September 
30, 2014, the amount actually contributed to the OPEB Plan, and changes in the District’s net 
OPEB obligation to the OPEB Plan. 

   
Annual required contribution $ 64) 
Interest on net OPEB obligation  237) 
Adjustment to annual required contribution  (190) 
Annual OPEB cost  111) 
Contributions  (513) 
Decrease in net OPEB obligation  (402) 
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year  4,745) 

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 4,343) 

  
The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the OPEB 
Plan, and the net OPEB obligation were as follows:  

Fiscal Year Ended 

Annual 

OPEB Cost 

Percentage of 

OPEB 

Contributed 

Net OPEB 

Obligation 

September 30, 2012 $ 227 275% $ 5,222 

September 30, 2013   144 431%    4,745 

September 30, 2014   111 463%    4,343 
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As of the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation date, the OPEB Plan was not prefunded. Contributions 
made were for current year costs incurred only. As of January 1, 2014, the actuarially accrued 
liability for benefits was $1,600, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability of $1,600. 
 
Actuarial valuations of the OPEB Plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, such as assumptions 
about future employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding 
the annual required contributions of the District and the funded status of the OPEB Plan are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectation and new estimates are 
made about the future. 
 
In the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions include a 5% investment rate of return. The amortization method used is 
the level percentage of projected open payroll over a period of 30 years. 
 

IX. LEASES 
 
Primary Government 
 

The County has a number of operating leases. Future minimum rental payments applicable to the 
operating leases are as follows: 
 

Year Ending September 30  Amount 

2015 $ 2,043 

2016  1,166 

2017  891 

2018  226 

2019 - 2023  475 

Total $ 4,801  

 
Rental expense for fiscal 2014, for all County operating leases was approximately $2,353 including 
$125 for lease pass-through expenses such as common area maintenance. 
 
The County is also a lessor of land, office space, and parking space under operating leases. Renewal 
options are available on certain leases. Future minimum rental payments to be received under 
operating leases are as follows: 
 

Year Ending September 30  Amount 

2015 $ 662 

2016  551 

2017  432 

2018  352 

2019  341 

Total $ 2,338 

 
Rental payments received for fiscal 2014 were approximately $662. 
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Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The District leases facilities under operating leases that expire over periods of up to nine years. Renewal 
and purchase options are available on certain of these leases. At September 30, 2014, future minimum 
rental payments applicable to the operating leases were as follows: 

Year Ending September 30  Amount 

2015 $ 4,235 

2016  2,104 

2017  1,486 

2018  1,412 

2019  829 

2020 - 2023  525 

Total $ 10,591 

Rental expense was approximately $4,700 for the year ended September 30, 2014 and is recorded in the 
accompanying Statement of Activities. 
 
The District also is a lessor of land, office space, and parking space under operating leases. Renewal 
options are available on certain of these leases. Rentals received under these arrangements are recorded 
in the accompanying Statement of Activities.  
 
Minimum future rentals to be received under operating leases at September 30, 2014, are as follows: 

Year Ending September 30  Amount 

2015 $ 1,095 

2016  674 

2017  341 

2018  171 

2019  148 

2020 - 2024  746 

2025 - 2029  763 

2030 - 2034  731 

2035 - 2039  385 

2040 - 2044  376 

2045 - 2049  407 

2050 - 2054  441 

2055 - 2059  477 

2060 - 2064  517 

2065 - 2069  560 

2070 - 2074  606 

2075 - 2079  656 

2080 - 2084  710 

2085 - 2088  607 

Total $ 10,411 

IX.   LEASES (Continued) 



DALLAS COUNTY 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 

September 30, 2014 

(in thousands of dollars) 

 

80 
 

 
Capital Lease 
 
In July 2014, the District entered into a 25 year capital lease with Frazier Revitalization, Inc. for 
construction of Hatcher Station Health Center, a 44,378 square foot community clinic. The clinic is 
in a low income area of Dallas that will support patient population needs. The clinic is currently 
under construction with an estimated completion in March 2015. 
 
Total rental payments over the 25 year lease term are $36,200. The District is also responsible for 
the operating expenses, taxes, and insurance on the building. The lease has a seven year, or any 
future time thereafter, purchase option at the then fair value. There is no renewal option in the lease. 
 
The asset and related obligation are recorded at the present value of $12,900. The capital lease asset 
will be depreciated over the 25 year life which will begin upon completion of construction and at 
which time the lease payments will commence. 
 
At September 30, 2014, future minimum rental payments applicable to the capital lease were as 
follows: 
 

Years Ending September 30  Amount 
2015 $ 873) 
2016  1,309) 
2017  1,309) 
2018  1,309) 
2019  1,309) 

2020 - 2040  30,074) 

   
Total minimum future lease payment  36,183) 
Less: Amount representing interest  (23,246) 

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 12,937) 

 
The capital lease has a current liability of $37.2 and long term liability of $12,900. 
 
The District’s investments in capital assets under capital lease, which are included in construction 
in progress as of September 30, 2014, are $12,937. 
 

X. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Primary Government 
 
The County has elected to self-insure against risks arising from tort claims, employee group 
medical insurance benefits, workers’ compensation benefits due to employees who are injured 
while on duty, losses of funds by theft or mysterious disappearances in all fee offices of the County 
(with the exception of the Office of County Tax Assessor Collector, and the Office of County 
Treasurer), and any and all other claims asserted by employees and/or third parties against the 
County arising out of the normal conduct of County business. The County has chosen to be a 
reimbursing employer under the unemployment compensation program administered by the Texas 
Workforce Commission. 
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The County purchased third-party vehicle insurance for Auto Theft Task Force grants. Specific 
property insurance is purchased to mitigate certain risks. Property insurance deductible limits 
include buildings at $1,000; boiler and machinery at $100; data, IT equipment, media at $100 after 
period of interruption exceeds 48 hours, and radio equipment at $100, and builders risk for certain 
construction projects at $50. Current premium reflects a rate of $0.39 cents per one hundred dollars 
of insurance. 
 
The County’s workers’ compensation self-insurance program provides medical and indemnity 
payments as required by law for on-the-job related injuries. A fiscal 2014 internal analysis of 
historical data, trends, and policies supports an experience rate reduction for aged-out claims. 
Actual experience for fiscal 2014 reflects increased payroll costs but reduced coverage claim losses. 
The liability is recognized in the Internal Service Fund. The third-party administrator for the 
program monitors the filing of claims, verifies the legitimacy, and processes payments to injured 
employees. A new third-party administrator selected by bid process in 2014, reviewed and 
increased liability estimates for prior period claims by $719. 
 
The Internal Service Fund also was established to account for the County’s group medical 
insurance program. The County self-insures benefits through this fund utilizing its third-party 
benefit administrator. The County pays certain amounts of premiums for employees into the 
Internal Service Fund or to a third party, and allows employees to select additional benefits with 
premiums paid by the employees. 
 
Premiums are paid into the Internal Service Fund by all other governmental funds for medical 
insurance programs. Contracted insurance providers receive disbursements based on monthly 
enrollment and premium calculations. Funds are available to pay claims, claim reserves, and 
administrative costs of the programs. Liabilities include an amount for claims or judgments that 
have been incurred but not reported. Liabilities of each fund are reported when it is probable that a 
loss or claim has occurred and the amount of the loss or claim is known or can be reasonably 
estimated. The County has specific deductible stop loss coverage of $600 for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2014. 
 
Changes in the medical and workers’ compensation claims liability amounts in fiscal years 2013 
and 2014 follow: 

 

Beginning 

Liability 

Current 

Year Claims 

and Changes 

in Estimates 

Claim 

Payments 

Ending 

Liability 

2013 Medical   $ 3,992   $ 62,891   $ 62,857   $ 4,026 

2014 Medical   4,026 68,758 68,091 4,693 

2013 Workers’  compensation   2,248     2,217     2,305   2,160 

2014 Workers’  compensation   2,160 1,794 1,616 2,338 

 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 
The liabilities described below as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, are based on requirements that 
a liability for claims be reported if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of 
the loss can be reasonably estimated. These liabilities include estimates for both reported claims 
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and incurred, but not reported claims. As a result of settled claims, the frequency of new claims, 
and other economic and social factors, claims liabilities are reevaluated periodically. 

 

Beginning 

Liability 

Current 

Year Claims 

and Changes 

in Estimates 

Claim 

Payments 

Ending 

Liability 

Hospital professional and general liability: 

   

 

2013 

 

$   4,522 $   2,186 $   (1,759) $   4,949 

 

2014 

 

4,949 2,042 (2,991) 4,000 

Employee healthcare benefit liability: 

 

  

 

2013 

 

7,085 87,173 (85,742) 8,516 

 

2014 

 

8,516 102,512 (101,730) 9,298 

Workers’ compensation liability: 

 

  

 

2013 

 

4,354 1,674 (1,241) 4,787 

 

2014 

 

4,787 1,695 (1,321) 5,161 

 
Hospital Professional and General Liability – The District is involved in certain legal actions and 
claims arising in the ordinary course of operations. The District records estimated self-insurance 
costs for medical malpractice and general liabilities as other current and non-current liabilities due 
in more than one year. The amounts provided for funding and the estimated liabilities are based on 
settlement of claims limited to $100 per claim and $300 per occurrence in accordance with the 
limited liability provisions of the Texas Tort Claim Act. The funding estimate used an actuarially 
determined 2.0% discount rate for 2014, and is reported in non-current liabilities due in more than 
one year in the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Employee Health Care Benefit Liability – The District manages a self-insurance program that 
provides for the payment of employee health claims. The District records estimated self-insurance 
costs for health claims as current liabilities. The amount of the estimated liability is derived from a 
claims modeling system. To obtain coverage, employees authorize payroll withholdings to pay the 
employee portion of contributions for individual and dependent coverage. Claims are paid by a 
third-party administrator acting on behalf of the District. The administrative contract between the 
District and the third-party administrator is renewable annually, and administrative fees are 
included in the contractual provisions. The employee health care benefit liability is reported in 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Workers’ Compensation Liability – The District maintains a self-insurance plan for workers’ 
compensation benefits, managed by a third-party administrator. The District records estimated self-
insurance costs for workers’ compensation as current liabilities. The amount provided for the 
estimated liability is based on settlement of claims. The funding estimate used an actuarially 
determined 2.0% discount rate for 2014, and is reported in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
in the Statement of Net Position.  
 

XI. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Primary Government 
 
Several lawsuits that could affect the County’s financial position are in various stages of litigation. 
An estimated liability of $3,500 has been established in the government-wide Statement of Net 
Position to provide coverage for the estimated maximum cost to the County. Lawsuits settled in the 
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fiscal year include $350 for alleged negligence in pursuit, and $800 for a 2008 inmate death. There 
are other outstanding lawsuits and claims in which the County is involved. Based upon the 
representations of the District Attorney and legal counsel for the Commissioners Court, 
management believes that potential claims, if any, against the County, resulting from such litigation 
would not materially affect the financial position or operations of the County. 
 
As of September 30, 2014, the County has encumbered amounts intended to be honored in the 
subsequent year for the following governmental funds: 
 

General Fund   
 Public welfare contracts $ 2,708 
 Equipment  1,749 
 Maintenance and supplies  1,363 
 Rental contracts  216 
 Other  501 

  6,537 
Major Projects   
 Thoroughfares and trails  53,918 
 Jail modification  11,296 
 Telecommunications  1,848 
 Energy management/improvements  1,446 
 Other  1,938 
  70,446 
Major Grants  3,826 
Other Non-major  9,989 
 $ 90,798 

Other non-major encumbrances include capital projects funded by the Limited Tax Notes Series 
2011 and 2013, which encumbrances aggregate $4,188. These notes were issued to fund 
improvements and remodeling of certain County buildings including the jail, and improvements 
expected to increase energy savings. Additionally, other non-major encumbrances includes $4,503 
for permanent improvements and major technology projects. 
 
In conjunction with other entities, the County manages significant commitments ($19,885) to fund 
improvements that will not lead to the construction of County owned assets, but will improve the 
quality of life for its citizens. 
 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 
Litigation and Other Matters 
 
The District is involved in litigation and compliance investigations arising in the normal course of 
business or as a result of routine internal compliance reviews conducted by management. The 
health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local 
governments. Government activity has continued with respect to investigations and allegations 
concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. 
Violations of these laws and regulations could result in exclusion from government health care 
programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant 
repayments for patient services previously billed. Compliance with such laws and regulations can 
be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or 
unasserted at this time. Management believes that the District has appropriately reserved for any 
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existing or unasserted claims related to such potential regulatory actions and the ultimate outcome 
will not have a material effect the financial statements. 
 
In July 2011, surveyors from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) assessed the 
District’s compliance with the CMS Conditions of Participation, the health and safety standards 
health care organizations must meet in order to participate in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, 
including the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act. The CMS assessment found 
that the District was not fully compliant. Accordingly, in September 2011, CMS notified the 
District that it intended to terminate the District’s participation in the Medicare and Medicaid 
program due to failure to meet certain standards. Recognizing the vital role the District serves in 
providing health care to the people of Dallas County, CMS suspended that termination when the 
District entered into a Systems Improvement Agreement (SIA).  
  
After an additional series of CMS audits in June 2013, CMS notified the District in August 2013 
that the District was in substantial compliance with the Conditions of Participation, that the District 
had successfully completed the requirements of the SIA, and that CMS was rescinding its 
Termination Notice. On August 22, 2013, CMS notified the District that it had restored the 
District’s deemed status for full participation in the federal healthcare programs. 
 
In August 2014, surveyors from CMS again found that the District was not in compliance with the 
CMS Conditions of Participation, and the District was again notified that CMS intended to 
terminate the District’s participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. After an additional 
survey in September 2014, CMS removed the immediate jeopardy to patient health and safety 
finding but found that the District remained out of compliance with the CMS Conditions of 
Participation. A third survey in October 2014 found the District was in substantial compliance with 
the applicable regulations and in November 2014, CMS formally restored the District’s deemed 
status for full participation in these federal programs. 
 
The District has been named as a defendant or co-defendant in certain legal actions alleging 
medical malpractice, negligence, civil rights, and employment claims. The District maintains 
employment practices liability insurance. 
 
As a local governmental unit, the District is subject to the provisions of the Texas statute known as 
the Texas Tort Claims Act, including the provisions thereof which limit liability in tort claims 
involving personal injury and death caused by a condition or use of tangible personal or real 
property. Currently, the District’s liability is limited under the Act to money damages in a 
maximum amount of $100 for each person, $300 for each single occurrence for bodily injury or 
death, and $100 for each single occurrence for injury to or destruction of property. These liability 
limitations apply to claims and lawsuits covered by the Texas Tort Claims Act and do not apply to 
other types of claims and lawsuits, including, among others, civil rights and employment related 
litigation. 
 
As to litigation or other proceedings pending, or to its knowledge, threatened in any court, agency 
or other administrative body (either state or federal) that are not specifically disclosed in the Notes 
to the Basic Financial Statements, the District intends to vigorously defend these matters and pursue 
its counterclaims, if any. Furthermore, as to such matters the District is either currently unable to 
estimate the ultimate aggregate amount of monetary gain, loss or financial impact of these matters, 
or does not currently believe these proceedings will have a material adverse impact; provided, 
however, adverse resolution of these actions and counterclaims could have a material adverse effect 
on the District’s business, financial condition or results of operations. 
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The District has established and currently maintains, in lieu of any policy of liability insurance 
against damage or loss, a program of self-insurance which is maintained at or above the amounts 
which annually, in the opinion of an independent actuary, who is a fellow of the Casualty Actuary 
Society, are required to satisfy future losses which may result from past acts or omissions not 
subject to statutory limitation. 
 
In response to a qui tam lawsuit filed in March 2010 alleging that the District had submitted certain 
claims for payment relating to the provision of physical medicine and rehabilitation services that 
were impermissible under then applicable Medicare and Medicaid program billing regulations, the 
District entered a settlement agreement in May 2013 with the United States of America, acting 
through the United States Department of Justice and on behalf of the Office of Inspector General 
(OIG-HHS) of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and the State of Texas. 
Under the settlement agreement, the District paid $1,400 to settle the allegations and entered into a 
five-year Corporate Integrity Agreement (CIA) with the OIG-HHS. Under the CIA, among other 
things the District agreed to (1) implement corrective action to improve systemic performance in 
compliance, ethics, clinical quality and patient safety; (2) measure, analyze, and track quality 
indicators, including adverse patient events, and implement written policies and procedures 
designed to ensure the District’s compliance with the federal health care program requirements on 
billing and reimbursement; (3) engage an outside monitoring organization to review the District’s 
submission of claims for reimbursement from federal healthcare programs; and (4) engage an 
outside monitoring organization to review the District’s clinical quality systems. Under the CIA, if 
the District fails to comply with its provisions, the District is entitled to notice of such non-
compliance from the OIG-HHS and an opportunity to cure any alleged non-compliance. The CIA 
also contains provisions for imposition of monetary penalties for any non-compliance that is not 
timely cured by the District. Further, for any material breaches of the CIA that are not cured by the 
District, the CIA provides that the District could be excluded from participation in the Medicare 
and Medicaid programs, but the CIA also contains dispute resolution provisions for any proceeding 
seeking to exclude the District from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs for non-
compliance.  
 
The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA), was signed into law on March 23, 2010. 
The Health Care and Education Affordability Reconciliation Act (Reconciliation Act), which 
contains a number of amendments to PPACA, was signed into law on March 30, 2010. These 
healthcare bills (collectively, the Reform Legislation) seek to increase the number of persons with 
access to health insurance in the United States by requiring substantially all U.S. citizens to 
maintain medical insurance coverage. The Reform Legislation makes a number of other changes to 
Medicare and Medicaid, such as reductions to the annual market basket update for federal fiscal 
years 2010 through 2019, a productivity offset to the market basket update beginning October 1, 
2011 and a reduction to the disproportionate share payments. The various provisions in the Reform 
Legislation that directly or indirectly affect reimbursement are scheduled to take effect over a 
number of years. 
 
Also included in the Reform Legislation are provisions aimed at reducing fraud, waste, and abuse in 
the healthcare industry. These provisions allocate significant additional resources to federal 
enforcement agencies and expand the use of private contractors to recover potentially inappropriate 
Medicare and Medicaid payments. The Reform Legislation amends several existing federal laws, 
including the Medicare Anti-Kickback Statute and the False Claims Act, making it easier for 
government agencies and private plaintiffs to prevail in lawsuits brought against healthcare 
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providers. These amendments also make it easier for potentially severe fines and penalties to be 
imposed on healthcare providers accused of violating applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Management cannot predict the positive or negative impact the Reform Legislation may have on 
the District’s Statements of Net Position or Activities. 
 
As of September 30, 2014, the District had commitments outstanding of approximately $135,000 
related to the construction of the New District Campus. 
 
Disproportionate Share 
 
The disproportionate share program is a supplemental reimbursement program that allows 
additional funding for hospitals that provide a significant proportion of Medicaid and indigent care 
services. Under program guidelines, the District may use the funds to benefit the indigent in either 
current or future periods. The District recognizes all funds received under the program as operating 
revenue in the applicable year, and any amounts relating to that year that are not yet received are 
included in Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) in the accompanying Statement of Net 
Position. There is no guarantee that this program will continue into future years. Total revenue 
recognized related to the disproportionate share program was $65,300 in 2014. 
 
1115 Transformation Waiver Funds 
 
The 1115 Transformation Waiver began October 1, 2011. Under this waiver, the former Upper 
Payment Limit (UPL) programs are discontinued in favor of a reimbursement methodology that 
balances payment for uncompensated care costs (UC) with the need to improve quality of care for 
Texas recipients using Delivery System Reform Incentive Payments (DSRIP) funds. Over the 5 
year waiver period, UC reimbursement generally moves downward while available DSRIP monies 
increase, so there is an even split between UC and DSRIP by the last year of the waiver. The 
program divides Texas into 20 Regional Health Partnerships (RHPs), creating an environment 
where regional collaboration is essential in order to earn available monies. The District serves as an 
―anchor‖ hospital for one of these regions. This mixture of new partners, a relatively new program, 
and new costs to create meaningful change in quality create some risk of delayed payments to the 
District. There is no guarantee that this program will be renewed upon initial completion, which 
could result in a reduction of funding. Also, as the disproportionate share distribution formula 
increases, the total amount allocated for 1115 Waiver programs decreases. Revenue recognized 
related to the 1115 Waiver was $126,200 in 2014. The District recognizes all funds received under 
the program as Program Revenue in the Statement of Activities, and any amounts relating to that 
year that are not yet received are net of amounts to be distributed to other participating hospitals in 
the region and is included in Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles), in the 
accompanying Statement of Net Position. These amounts involve a considerable amount of 
judgment and are subject to audit and final reconciliation by the Texas Health and Human Services 
Commission (HHSC). 
 
In September 2014, HHSC was notified by the CMS of a deferral of UC payments. Management 
understands that a deferral is not a denial. The CMS position poses questions related to potentially 
impermissible provider related donations for the previously approved program. HHSC has 
vigorously defended the current 1115 Transformation Waiver and has formally requested that this 
deferral promptly be lifted. They cite access to care and a previous successful review of the 
program as reasons the deferral is not appropriate. The District has recorded revenue based on the 
facts outlined by HHSC, as well as on the previous approval of the indigent care model by CMS. 
On December 1, 2014, the District received notification that CMS plans to lift the current deferral 
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and work with HHSC and Texas stakeholders in the coming year to understand and resolve 
concerns CMS has regarding Texas’ financing arrangement for supplemental payments to private 
hospitals. 
 
Tobacco Settlement Funds 
 
In the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, the District received a portion of its funds from the 
settlement of the State’s lawsuit against the tobacco industry. Under the program guidelines, the 
District is free to use the funds in either current or future periods without restriction. The District 
recognizes all funds received from the settlement as operating revenue in the period funds are 
received. 
 

 
XII. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMENTS 
 

GASB 68: Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27 
The requirements of this Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in 
employer and governmental non-employer contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its 
value for assessing accountability and inter-period equity by requiring recognition of the entire net 
pension liability and a more comprehensive measure of pension expense. Decision-usefulness and 
accountability also will be enhanced through new note disclosures and required supplementary 
information. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. 
 
GASB 71: Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
– An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 
The objective of this statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition 
provisions of Statement No. 68. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, 
made by a state or local government employer or non-employer contributing entity to a defined 
benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension 
liability. The provisions of the statement should be applied simultaneously with provisions of 
Statement No. 68. 
 

  

XI.   COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALY LEFT BLANK 

88 



 

89 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY 

INFORMATION 
(UNAUDITED) 



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Required Supplementary Information

General Fund 

(Unaudited)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

 For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

     Property taxes 280,217$      280,217$      278,099$      (2,118)$             

     Licenses and permits 17,518          17,518          18,612          1,094                

     Fines and forfeitures 7,480            7,480            7,043            (437)                  

     Investment income 250               250               2,138            1,888                

     Rental revenues 4,073            4,073            3,953            (120)                  

     Intergovernmental revenues 5,797            5,797            8,088            2,291                

     Charges for current services 91,097          91,097          99,108          8,011                

     Miscellaneous 4,445            4,445            9,333            4,888                

             Total revenues 410,877        410,877        426,374        15,497              

EXPENDITURES:

     General government:

          Salaries 41,870          37,728          36,977          751                   

          Operating 27,734          27,721          24,229          3,492                

          Property 2,645            4,315            2,979            1,336                

             Total general government 72,249          69,764          64,185          5,579                

     Judicial:

          Salaries 107,040        107,706        107,706        -                        

          Operating 29,382          32,468          30,810          1,658                

          Property 500               -                    -                   -                        

            Total judicial 136,922        140,174        138,516        1,658                

     Public safety:

          Salaries 193,653        202,996        202,994        2                       

          Operating 23,764          23,993          19,166          4,827                

          Property 652               1,113            747               366                   

             Total  public safety 218,069        228,102        222,907        5,195                

     Health:

          Salaries 9,625            8,313            8,313            -                        

          Operating 11,126          13,526          10,732          2,794                

          Property 305               548               312               236                   

              Total health 21,056          22,387          19,357          3,030                

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

See Notes to Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
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Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

     Public welfare:

          Salaries 508$             450$             450$             -$                      

          Operating 15                 26                 20                 6                       

              Total public welfare 523               476               470               6                       

     Reserves 46,678          33,929          -                   33,929              

               Total expenditures 495,497        494,832        445,435        49,397              

               Excess ( deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (84,620)         (83,955)         (19,061)        64,894              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers in 19,888          19,888          16,314          (3,574)               

     Transfers (out) (4,173)           (4,838)           (3,014)          1,824                

             Total other financing sources (uses) 15,715          15,050          13,300          (1,750)               

Net change in fund balance (68,905)         (68,905)         (5,761)          63,144              

     Fund balance - beginning 90,951          90,951          90,951          -                        

     Fund balance - ending 22,046$        22,046$        85,190$        63,144$            

See Notes to Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
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Major Projects Special Revenue Fund 
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

     Property taxes 50,651$       50,651$      50,226$        (425)$                

     Investment income 343              343             (195)             (538)                  

     Intergovernmental revenues 50                50               2,226            2,176                

     Miscellaneous -                   -                 30                 30                     

             Total revenues 51,044         51,044        52,287          1,243                

EXPENDITURES:

     General government -                   11,721        10,046          1,675                

     Highways and streets 103,820       103,733      16,180          87,553              

     Public welfare 5,668           5,039          4,963            76                     

     Capital outlay 41,189         60,486        31,885          28,601              

               Total expenditures 150,677       180,979      63,074          117,905            

     Reserves 85,199         54,894        -                   54,894              

     Total expenditures 235,876       235,873      63,074          172,799            

               Excess ( deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (184,832)      (184,829)    (10,787)        174,042            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers in 22,653         22,653        22,548          (105)                  

     Transfers (out) (62)               (65)             (68)               (3)                      

             Total other financing sources (uses) 22,591         22,588        22,480          (108)                  

Net change in fund balance (162,241)      (162,241)    11,693          173,934            

     Fund balance - beginning 162,241       162,241      162,241        -                        

     Fund balance - ending -$                 -$               173,934$      173,934$          

      Budgeted Amounts

    Original                  Final

See Notes to Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
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Major Grants  Special Revenue Fund

 (Unaudited)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

     Investment income 20$                20$                   16$             (4)$                    

     Intergovernmental revenues 77,087           77,087              67,587        (9,500)               

             Total revenues 77,107           77,107              67,603        (9,504)               

EXPENDITURES:

     Judicial 3,411             3,477                3,477          -                        

     Public safety 10,710           6,672                6,672          -                        

     Health 31,139           29,701              29,701        -                        

     Education 2,201             1,102                1,102          -                        

     Public welfare 40,867           28,680              28,680        -                        

               Total expenditures 88,328           69,632              69,632        -                        

               Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (11,221)          7,475                (2,029)        (9,504)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers in 4,576             4,576                2,103          (2,473)               

     Transfers (out) (5,275)            (5,275)               (1,570)        3,705                

             Total other financing sources and (uses) (699)               (699)                  533             1,232                

Net change in fund balance (11,920)          6,776                (1,496)        (8,272)               

     Fund balance - beginning 7,013             7,013                7,013          -                        

     Fund balance - ending (4,907)$          13,789$            5,517$        (8,272)$             

      Budgeted Amounts

     Original                Final

See Notes to Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
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Budgetary information – The budget is prepared in accordance with financial policies approved by the 
County Budget Director and the Commissioners Court following a public hearing. The Budget Director is 
required by policy to present Commissioners Court with a balanced budget that contains a no-tax increase 
assumption as a starting point for budget discussions. The adopted budget must contain a projected 
unreserved cash balance not less than 10.5% of budgeted expenditures and may utilize a drawdown of 
beginning balance only to the extent that such draw-down does not exceed 4% of total General Fund 
resources. The amounts budgeted in a fiscal year for expenditures in various funds may not exceed the 
balances in those funds as of the first day of the fiscal year plus any anticipated revenue for the fiscal year 
as estimated by the County Auditor. 
 

The following are the funds that have legally adopted annual budgets prepared on a basis consistent with 

GAAP: General Fund, Debt Service Fund and Special Revenue Funds (except for District Attorney 

funds). A legally adopted budget is not prepared for the Judicial, Technology, Local Government, Local 

Official, Record Management and Payroll Special Revenue Funds. Project-length financial plans are 

adopted for Capital Projects Funds. Budget funds are allocated annually for Major Project’s funds in 

accordance to long-term requirements and projections. 

 

 Tax rates are established and approved annually for budgeted funds per policy.  

 General fund – projected unallocated fund balance equal to or greater than 10.5% of budgeted 

expenditures. 

 Permanent Improvement fund – dedicated tax rate of 0.18 cents per $100 valuation. 

 Major Technology fund – dedicated tax rate of 1.36 cents per $100 valuation. 

 Major Capital Development fund – dedicated tax rate of 4.5 cents per $100 valuation plus 0.655 

cents (for utilities) per $100 valuation less Debt Service fund requirements. 

 Debt Service fund – calculated requirement using current principle and interest payments plus 

10.5% reserve balance and compliance with IRS regulations. 

 

Budget laws of the State of Texas provides that ―the amounts budgeted for current expenditures from the 

various funds of the County shall not exceed the balances in said funds plus the anticipated revenues for 

the current year for which the budget is made as estimated by the County Auditor.‖ In addition, the law 

provides that the Commissioners Court ―may, upon proper application, transfer an existing budget surplus 

during the year to a budget of like kind and fund but no such transfer shall increase the total budget.‖ 

 

Each year, all departments submit to the Budget Director requests for appropriation. These requests are 

reviewed, compiled and presented to the Commissioners Court for approval. The Commissioners Court 

conducts departmental budget reviews, adjusts budget requests to final form and conducts a public 

hearing in the County Administration Building. One copy of the proposed budget must be filed with the 

County Clerk and one with the County Auditor. Copies must be available to the public. The 

Commissioners Court must provide for the public hearing on the budget on some date within seven 

calendar days after the filing of the budget and prior to October 31 of the current fiscal year.  

 

The County controls appropriations at the category level (i.e., salaries, allowances, operations and 

property) for each department or project within the General Fund and some of the Special Revenue 

Funds. Grants are budgeted in total and not at the category level. All Debt Service Fund expenditures for 

principal and interest on long-term debt are considered to be in the operations category. Certain 

appropriation transfers may be made between categories or departments only with the approval of the 

Commissioners Court. Other transfers (e.g. court costs) may be authorized by the Budget Director. 

Transfers that were made during the current fiscal year 2014 did not increase the County’s overall budget. 
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Unencumbered amounts for annually budgeted funds lapse at fiscal year-end. The original budgets 

inclusive of prior period encumbered funds presented in the report are the approved budgets before 

amendments and transfers. The final budgets presented in this report reflect the budgets as amended for 

all appropriation transfers processed during the fiscal year. More comprehensive accounting of activity on 

the budgetary basis is provided in a separate report, which is available for public inspection in the office 

of the Dallas County Auditor, 509 Main Street, Room 407, and Dallas, Texas 75202-3504. 

 
 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as 
an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital 
Projects Funds. General Fund encumbrances outstanding at year-end are constrained by a responsible 
official’s request for a specific purpose and are reported in the General Fund Assigned Fund Balance.
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Roads 

 
A federal highway administration pavement condition rating (PCR) was utilized to assess the 
condition of the 120.146 lane miles of County roads. The City of Grand Prairie annexed 1.85 lane 
miles during 2014. District 1 does not have any County roads. The County policy is to maintain 
roads at a minimum of 2.5 on a 4.0 scale. The following conditions were defined and associated to a 
rating: 
 
 

Condition Rating 

Excellent 4 

Good 3 

Fair 2 

Poor 1 

 

 

Percentage of Roads with 2.5 or Better Condition 

      Road and Bridge District 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

District 1 -% -% -% -% -% 

District 2 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

District 3 97.5% 97.9% 97.9% 98.0% 98.0% 

District 4 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

         Overall System 99.2% 99.3% 99.3% 99.3% 91.0% 
 
 
 

Comparison of Estimated to Actual Maintenance Costs 

      

 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

Estimated $  937 $  937 $  924 $  924 $  929 

Actual   o  1,280  1,397  1,717  1,258  1,585 
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Bridges 
 
 Rating Number 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 
        
Very Good 6.0 – 9.0 26 100% 100% 100% 97% 97% 

Good 4.0 – 5.9 - -% -% -% 3% 3% 

Fair 3.0 – 3.9 - -% -% -% -% -% 

Poor 0.0 – 2.9 - -% -% -% -% -% 

Total  26 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
 
 
The condition of the County’s bridges is determined using the State of Texas Bridge Inventory 
Inspection System (BRINSAP). A numerical condition range 0.0 (beyond repair) to 9.0 (excellent 
condition) is used to assess each of seven elements of the structure. These include deck, 
superstructure, substructure, channel, culvert, approaches, and miscellaneous items. 
 
There was no change in the County’s bridge inventory for 2014. 
 
County’s policy is to maintain bridges at the 4.0 – 5.9 level. Consistent with County policy, the 
above chart shows that 100% of the County’s bridges are in very good condition. 
 
 
 

Comparison of Estimated to Actual Maintenance Costs 

      

 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

Estimated  $ 1,093   $ 1,067   $ 1,380   $ 1,000  $ 1,000  

Actual          409           196        1,526           228          175  
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Schedule of Funding Progress 

for the Retirement Plan 

 

Actuarial 

Valuation Date  

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

(a)  

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability 

(AAL) 

(b)  

Unfunded 

AAL 

(UAAL) 

(b-a)  

Funded 

Ratio 

(a/b)  

Actuarial 

Covered 

Payroll 

(c)  

UAAL as a 

Percentage of 

Actuarial 

Covered 

Payroll 

{((b-a)/c)} 

December 31, 2011 $ 1,010,337 $ 1,169,677 $ (159,340)  86.38% $ 310,878  (51.25)% 

December 31, 2012   1,049,340  1,234,321  (184,981)  85.01  309,423  (59.78) 

December 31, 2013  1,120,101  1,304,725  (184,624)  85.85  321,374  (57.45) 

 

Note (1): The annual required contributions for fiscal 2014 complied with GASB Statement No. 27 

parameters based on the actuarial valuation dated December 31, 2012. The actuarial valuation as of 

December 31, 2013 is used to assess the adequacy of future financing arrangements for Fiscal 2015. For 

additional information see Note VIII on page 70. 

 

Note (2):  The above information includes actuarial valuation information for CSCD, which is not a 

department or component unit of the County. Any experience adjustment, based on the TCDRS actuarial 

studies, is passed to CSCD based on the associated actuarial covered payroll. For additional information 

see Note VIII on page 70. 

 

 

 

 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

for Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 

 

Actuarial 

Valuation Date  

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

(a)  

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability 

(AAL) 

(b)  

Unfunded 

OAAL 

(UAAL) 

(b-a)  

Funded 

Ratio 

(a/b)  

Actuarial

Covered 

Payroll 

(c)  

UAAL as a 

Percentage of 

Actuarial 

Covered 

Payroll 

{((b-a)/c)} 

October 1, 2011  $     0 $   459,971 $ (459,971)      0 % $ 270,072  (170.3)%  

October 1, 2011  0    459,971  (459,971)  0  281,890  (163.2) %   

October 1, 2013  0    367,933  (367,933)  0  288,556  (127.5) %    

 

Note: The above table is for GASB 45 disclosure reporting requirements effective beginning with fiscal 

year 2012. For additional information see Note VIII on page 72. Actuarial covered payroll includes 

amounts for fiscal year 2012 ($270,072), 2013 ($281,890), and 2014 ($288,556). 
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Schedule of Funding Progress 

for the Retirement Plan 

 

Actuarial 

Valuation Date  

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

(a)  

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability 

(AAL) 

(b)  

Unfunded 

OAAL 

(UAAL) 

(b-a)  

Funded 

Ratio 

(a/b)  

Covered 

Payroll 

(c)  

UAAL as a 

Percentage of 

Covered 

Payroll 

{((b-a)/c)} 

January 1, 2012 $ 556,900 $ 645,800 $ (88,900)      86.2% $ 493,400  (18.0)% 

January 1, 2013  590,100  737,900  (147,800)      80.0  534,800  (27.6)% 

January 1, 2014  670,800  812,800  (142,000)      82.5  564,000  (25.2)% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

for Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 

 

Actuarial 

Valuation Date  

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 

(a)  

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability 

(AAL) 

(b)  

Unfunded 

OAAL 

(UAAL) 

(b-a)  

Funded 

Ratio 

(a/b)  

Covered 

Payroll (c)  

UAAL as a 

Percentage of 

Covered 

Payroll 

{((b-a)/c)} 

January 1, 2012  $      0 $ 2,900 $ (2,900)  0%  %  $      450,600  (0.6)%    % 

January 1, 2013  0  2,300  (2,300)  0  %     N/A  N/A %       

January 1, 2014  0  1,600  (1,600)  0  %     N/A  N/A %       

 

Note: The above table is for GASB 45 disclosure reporting requirements effective beginning with fiscal 

year 2011. For additional information see Note VIII on page 76. 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major 

capital projects funded by bond sales) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  

The following are the County's Special Revenue Funds: 

Road and Bridge Fund 105 - used to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds designated for 

construction and maintenance of County roads and bridges other than specific improvement programs for 

which road bonds are issued. 

Permanent Improvement Fund 126 - receives an allocation of property taxes for building maintenance and 

construction of permanent improvements. 

Law Library Fund 470 - used to account for a statutory fee from each civil case filed in a County or 

District Court that is restricted to the establishment and maintenance of a law library for the use of the 

judges and litigants of the County. 

Major Technology Fund 195 - used to account for monies received from property taxes that are dedicated 

to improvement of the County’s computer systems. 

District Attorney Fund 535 - HIDTA/Federal Sharing – used to account for funds from participation in 

the Dallas Area ―High Intensity Drug Traffic Area.‖ 

District Attorney Special Fund 538 - used to account for funds to be used at the discretion of the District 

Attorney. 

District Attorney Forfeiture Funds 540, 541 and 547 - used to account for money and property forfeited in 

criminal seizures. Funds are to be used for criminal justice. 

Historical Commission Fund 168 - used to account for donations and other funds received for the 

preservation of historical landmarks.  

Historical Exhibit Fund 169 - used to account for proceeds from the John F. Kennedy Sixth Floor Exhibit. 

Alternative Dispute Resolution Fund 162 - used to account for filing fees imposed on civil court cases for 

the purpose of funding a system for the peaceable and expeditious resolution of citizen disputes. 

Appellate Justice System Fund 471 - used to account for fees collected on civil cases filed in the County 

for the purpose of assisting the court of appeals, including costs incurred by a county within the judicial 

district. 

HUD Section 8 Fund 467 - used to account for federal awards from HUD for Section 8 activity. 

Charter School Fund 468 - used to account for Academy for Academic Excellence. 

Judicial Fund 532 - used to account for statutory fees from criminal and civil court filings in County and 

District Courts restricted to projects for judiciary as approved by Commissioners Court. 

Technology Fund 532 - used to account for fees from each civil case filed in Justice Courts restricted for 

the use of technology projects for the Justice Courts. 
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Local Government Fund 532 - used to account for a statutory fee and earnings that are restricted for the 

use of elections, transportation and other projects as defined by statute. 

Local Official Fund 532 - used to account for money and property forfeited in criminal seizures restricted 

for use by County Sheriff, Constables and Special VIT interest managed by the County Assessor–

Collector of Taxes. 

Record Management Fund 532 - used to account for monies received from each civil case filed in County 

or District Courts restricted to manage, preserve or digitize County records. 

Capital Projects Funds 

 

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for proceeds from bond issues specifically designated for 

capital expenditures. The following are the County’s Capital Projects Funds: 

 

Permanent Improvement Bonds Funds 415, 433, 440, 482 and 493 - used to account for proceeds from 

improvements to various County buildings, in addition to the acquisition and improvement of open-space 

land. 

 

Road Bond Funds 414, 418, 424, 427, 481, 490, 492 and 494 - used to account for proceeds from bonds 

issued for the purchase of right-of-way and for the subsequent construction and maintenance of roads and 

bridges throughout the County. 

 

 



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Combining Balance Sheet

Non-major Governmental Funds

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

 Road and

Bridge 

 Permanent

Improvement 

 Law

Library 

 Major

Technology 

 HIDTA

Federal  Special  Federal  State  Other 

 Historical

Commission 

 Historical

Exhibit 

ASSETS

       Cash and investments 21,692$    3,862$          265$     9,877$       304$      42$      40$       425$   172$   10$              949$           

       Receivables:

            Taxes - current -                3,332            -            25,097       -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

            Less allowance for uncollectible -                (214)             -            (1,544)       -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

                      Net taxes receivable -                3,118            -            23,553       -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

            Accounts 266,082    -                    4,521    -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   168              

            Less allowance (261,740)  -                    (4,483)  -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Accounts receivable 4,342        -                    38         -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   168              

       Accrued interest 34             6                   -            16              -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Due from other funds -                -                    -            -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Due from other governmental units -                -                    -            -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Inventories 193           -                    -            -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Prepayments and advances 10             -                    3           -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

                    Total assets 26,271$    6,986$          306$     33,446$     304$      42$      40$       425$   172$   10$              1,117$        

LIABILITIES 

       Accounts payable 522$         188$             12$       653$          -$           -$         -$          -$        -$       -$                 200$           

       Due to other funds 82             15                 14         111            -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Due to other governmental units 1,569        -                    -            -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Unearned revenue - other 3,434        4                   37         9                -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

                    Total liabilities 5,607        207               63         773            -             -           -            -          -          -                   200              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

       Unavailable revenue - property taxes -                3,123            -            23,592       -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

                    Total deferred inflows - property taxes -                3,123            -            23,592       -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

FUND BALANCES

       Nonspendable: inventories and prepaids 203           -                    3           -                 -             -           -            -          -          -                   -                  

       Restricted 20,461      -                    240       -                 304        42        40         425     172     10                917              

       Committed -              3,656            -         9,081         -           -        -          -       -       -                 -                 

                    Total fund balances 20,664      3,656            243       9,081         304        42        40         425     172     10                917              

                   Total liabilities, deferred

                      inflows and fund balances 26,271$    6,986$          306$     33,446$     304$      42$      40$       425$   172$   10$              1,117$        

Special Revenue 

 District Attorney  District Attorney Forfeitures 
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Combining Balance Sheet

Non-major Governmental Funds

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

ASSETS

       Cash and investments

       Receivables:

            Taxes - current

            Less allowance for uncollectible

                      Net taxes receivable

            Accounts

            Less allowance 

       Accounts receivable

       Accrued interest

       Due from other funds

       Due from other governmental units

       Inventories

       Prepayments and advances

                    Total assets

LIABILITIES 

       Accounts payable

       Due to other funds

       Due to other governmental units

       Unearned revenue - other

                    Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

       Unavailable revenue - property taxes

                    Total deferred inflows - property taxes

FUND BALANCES

       Nonspendable: inventories and prepaids

       Restricted

       Committed

                    Total fund balances

                   Total liabilities, deferred

                      inflows and fund balances

 Alternative

Dispute

Resolution 

 Appellate

Justice

System 

 HUD

Section 8 

Grants 

 Academy 

for 

Academic 

Excellence  Judicial  Technology 

 Local

Government 

 Local

Official 

 Record

Management  Total 

2,462$        87$          3,309$   3,174$        1,385$       854$           7,683$        5,636$   11,177$        73,405$        

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    28,429          

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    (1,758)           

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    26,671          

3,907          1,480       -             -                  9,901         1,130          8,745          146        11,998          308,078        

(3,871)         (1,469)      -             -                  (9,651)       (1,077)         (8,655)         (145)       (11,459)         (302,550)       

36               11            -             -                  250            53               90                1            539               5,528            

4                 -               -             5                 -                 -                  -                  -             -                    65                 

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    -                    

-                  -               240        231             -                 -                  -                  -             -                    471               

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  39          -                    232               

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    13                 

2,502$        98$          3,549$   3,410$        1,635$       907$           7,773$        5,676$   11,716$        106,385$      

4$               7$            228$      288$           48$            1$               388$           244$      140$             2,923$          

4                 -               33          25               2                -                  10                19          4                    319               

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    1,569            

37               12            -             3                 240            53               3,457          1            197               7,484            

45               19            261        316             290            54               3,855          264        341               12,295          

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    26,715          

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    26,715          

-                  -               -             -                  -                 -                  -                  39          -                    245               

2,457          79            3,288     3,094          1,345         853             3,918          5,373     11,375          54,393          

-                -             -          -                  -                 -                  -                  -             -                    12,737          

2,457          79            3,288     3,094          1,345         853             3,918          5,412     11,375          67,375          

2,502$        98$          3,549$   3,410$        1,635$       907$           7,773$        5,676$   11,716$        106,385$      

Special Revenue 
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Combining Balance Sheet

Non-major Governmental Funds

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

ASSETS

       Cash and investments

       Receivables:

            Taxes - current

            Less allowance for uncollectible

                      Net taxes receivable

            Accounts

            Less allowance 

       Accounts receivable

       Accrued interest

       Due from other funds

       Due from other governmental units

       Inventories

       Prepayments and advances

                    Total assets

LIABILITIES 

       Accounts payable

       Due to other funds

       Due to other governmental units

       Unearned revenue - other

                    Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

       Unavailable revenue - property taxes

                    Total deferred inflows - property taxes

FUND BALANCES

       Nonspendable: inventories and prepaids

       Restricted

       Committed

                    Total fund balances

                   Total liabilities, deferred

                      inflows and fund balances

 Permanent

Improvement  Roads  Total 

 Total

Non-major

Governmental

Funds 

20,464$        8,467$     28,931$   102,336$       

-                    -               -               28,429           

-                    -               -               (1,758)            

-                    -               -               26,671           

-                    -               -               308,078         

-                    -               -               (302,550)        

-                    -               -               5,528             

-                    -               -               65                  

-                    -               -               -                     

-                    373          373          844                

-                    -               -               232                

-                    -               -               13                  

20,464$        8,840$     29,304$   135,689$       

902$             -$             902$        3,825$           

-                    -               -               319                

-                    139          139          1,708             

-                    161          161          7,645             

902               300          1,202       13,497           

-                    -               -               26,715           

-                    -               -               26,715           

-                    -               -               245                

19,562          8,540       28,102     82,495           

-                    -               -               12,737           

19,562          8,540       28,102     95,477           

20,464$        8,840$     29,304$   135,689$       

Capital Projects
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

 Road and

Bridge 

 Permanent

Improvement 

 Law

Library 

 Major

Technology 

 HIDTA

Federal  Special  Federal  State  Other 

 Historical

Commission 

 Historical

Exhibit 

REVENUES

       Property taxes -$            2,842$           -$          21,451$     -$         -$        -$         -$        -$         -$                -$               

       Highway license fees 23,579     -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

       Fines and forfeitures 6,018       -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

       Investment income 10            (1)                  -            (17)            -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

       Intergovernmental revenues 39            -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

       Charges for current services 2,072       -                    942       -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  4,201          

       Miscellaneous 265          -                    -            19             30         81        12        542      38        -                  -                 

               Total revenues 31,983     2,841             942       21,453       30         81        12        542      38        -                  4,201          

EXPENDITURES

    Current:

       General government -              3,483             -            20,316       -           -          -           -          -           -                  3,421          

       Judicial -              -                    767       -                -           87        129      717      2          -                  -                 

       Public safety -              -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

      Highways and streets 8,466       -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

      Education -              -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

      Public welfare -              -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

   Capital outlay -              -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

                 Total expenditures 8,466       3,483             767       20,316       -           87        129      717      2          -                  3,421          

       Excess (deficiency) of revenues

       over (under) expenditures 23,517     (642)              175       1,137         30         (6)        (117)     (175)    36        -                  780             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

    Transfers in -              -                    -            -                -           -          -           -          -           -                  -                 

    Transfers (out) (32,654)    -                    (175)      (1,109)       -           -          -           (60)      -           -                  (173)           

       Total other financing sources (uses) (32,654)    -                    (175)      (1,109)       -           -          -           (60)      -           -                  (173)           

       Net change in fund balance (9,137)     (642)              -            28             30         (6)        (117)     (235)    36        -                  607             

Fund balance - beginning 29,801     4,298             243       9,053         274       48        157      660      136      10                310             

Fund balance - ending 20,664$   3,656$           243$     9,081$       304$     42$      40$      425$    172$    10$              917$           

(Continued)

 District Attorney  District Attorney Forfeitures 

Special Revenue
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

REVENUES

       Property taxes

       Highway license fees

       Fines and forfeitures

       Investment income

       Intergovernmental revenues

       Charges for current services

       Miscellaneous

               Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

    Current:

       General government

       Judicial

       Public safety

      Highways and streets

      Education

      Public welfare

   Capital outlay

                 Total expenditures

       Excess (deficiency) of revenues

       over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

    Transfers in

    Transfers (out)

       Total other financing sources (uses)

       Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

 Alternative

Dispute

Resolution 

 Appellate

Justice

System 

 HUD

Section 8 

Grants 

 Academy 

for 

Academic 

Excellence  Judicial  Technology 

 Local

Government 

 Local

Official 

 Record

Management  Total 

-$                -$            -$           -$             -$         -$                -$                -$           -$                 24,293$        

-                  -              -             -               -           -                  -                  -             -                   23,579          

-                  -              -             -               -           -                  -                  -             -                   6,018            

(2)                -              3            7              -           -                  -                  -             -                   -                   

-                  -              29,735    6,836        -           -                  -                  -             -                   36,610          

743             342         -             -               680       246             4,168          4,574      7,565            25,533          

-                  -              -             -               -           -                  -                  -             -                   987               

741             342         29,738    6,843        680       246             4,168          4,574      7,565            117,020        

-                  -              -             -               -           -                  -                  -             -                   27,220          

144             247         -             -               716       56               545             67           2,143            5,620            

-                  -              -             -               -           -                  -                  4,096      -                   4,096            

-                  -              -             -               -           -                  -                  -             -                   8,466            

-                  -              -             6,919        -           -                  -                  -             -                   6,919            

-                  -              30,948    -               -           -                  2,837          -             -                   33,785          

-                  -              -             -               -           -                  -                  -             -                   -                   

144             247         30,948    6,919        716       56               3,382          4,163      2,143            86,106          

597             95           (1,210)    (76)           (36)        190             786             411         5,422            30,914          

-                  -              -             -               175       -                  961             -             -                   1,136            

(340)            (142)        -             (73)           (320)      -                  (1,495)         (226)       (682)             (37,449)        

(340)            (142)        -             (73)           (145)      -                  (534)            (226)       (682)             (36,313)        

257             (47)          (1,210)    (149)         (181)      190             252             185         4,740            (5,399)          

2,200          126         4,498      3,243        1,526    663             3,666          5,227      6,635            72,774          

2,457$        79$         3,288$    3,094$      1,345$  853$           3,918$        5,412$    11,375$        67,375$        

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

REVENUES

       Property taxes

       Highway license fees

       Fines and forfeitures

       Investment income

       Intergovernmental revenues

       Charges for current services

       Miscellaneous

               Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

    Current:

       General government

       Judicial

       Public safety

      Highways and streets

      Education

      Public welfare

   Capital outlay

                 Total expenditures

       Excess (deficiency) of revenues

       over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

    Transfers in

    Transfers (out)

       Total other financing sources (uses)

       Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

 Permanent

Improvement  Roads  Total 

 Total

Non-major

Governmental

Funds 

-$                  -$             -$             24,293$          

-                    -               -               23,579            

-                    -               -               6,018              

-                    -               -               -                     

-                    -               -               36,610            

-                    -               -               25,533            

-                    -               -               987                 

-                    -               -               117,020          

-                    -               -               27,220            

-                    -               -               5,620              

-                    -               -               4,096              

-                    -               -               8,466              

-                    -               -               6,919              

-                    -               -               33,785            

31,866          1,037       32,903     32,903            

31,866          1,037       32,903     119,009          

(31,866)         (1,037)      (32,903)    (1,989)            

-                    -               -               1,136              

-                    -               -               (37,449)           

-                    -               -               (36,313)           

(31,866)         (1,037)      (32,903)    (38,302)           

51,428          9,577       61,005     133,779          

19,562$        8,540$     28,102$    95,477$          

(Concluded)

Capital Projects
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Debt Service Fund - County Wide - Fund

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

     Property taxes 31,354$   31,354$      31,154$        (200)$                

     Investment income 48            48               35                 (13)                    

     Charges for current services 340          340             856               516                   

             Total revenues 31,742     31,742        32,045          303                   

EXPENDITURES:

Debt service

     Principal 25,780     25,780        25,080          700                   

     Interest 5,886       5,886          5,886            -                        

             Total expenditures 31,666     31,666        30,966          700                   

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures 76            76               1,079            1,003                

Net change in fund balance 76            76               1,079            1,003                

             Fund balance - beginning 2,820       2,820          2,820            -                        

             Fund balance - ending 2,896$     2,896$        3,899$          1,003$              

      Budgeted Amounts

   Original                   Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Road and Bridge Special Revenue Fund

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

       Highway license fees 21,462$       21,462$       23,579$        2,117$              

       Fines and forfeitures 6,784           6,784           6,018            (766)                  

       Investment income 51                51                10                 (41)                    

       Intergovernmental revenues 262              262              39                 (223)                  

       Charges for current services 1,914           1,914           2,072            158                   

       Miscellaneous 35                35                265               230                   

             Total revenues 30,508         30,508         31,983          1,475                

EXPENDITURES:

       Highways and streets:

          Salaries 5,053           4,411           4,411            -                        

          Operating 2,206           4,108           3,574            534                   

          Property 1,365           1,472           481               991                   

             Total highways and streets 8,624           9,991           8,466            1,525                

          Reserves 22,850         13,091         -                   13,091              

             Total expenditures 31,474         23,082         8,466            14,616              

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (966)             7,426           23,517          16,091              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (26,615)        (35,007)        (32,654)        2,353                

             Total other financing sources (uses) (26,615)        (35,007)        (32,654)        2,353                

Net change in fund balance (27,581)        (27,581)        (9,137)          18,444              

             Fund balance - beginning 29,801         29,801         29,801          -                        

             Fund balance - ending 2,220$         2,220$         20,664$        18,444$            

      Budgeted Amounts

   Original                  Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Permanent Improvement Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

     Property taxes 2,863$        2,863$        2,842$          (21)$                  

     Investment income 12               12               (1)                 (13)                    

             Total revenues 2,875          2,875          2,841            (34)                    

EXPENDITURES:

     General government:

          Property 3,057          7,141          3,483            3,658                

             Total general government 3,057          7,141          3,483            3,658                

          Reserves 4,116          32               -                   32                     

    Total expenditures 7,173          7,173          3,483            3,690                

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (4,298)        (4,298)        (642)             3,656                

Net change in fund balance (4,298)        (4,298)        (642)             3,656                

             Fund balance - beginning 4,298          4,298          4,298            -                        

             Fund balance - ending -$               -$               3,656$          3,656$              

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Law Library Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

      Charges for current services 964$           964$           942$             (22)$                  

             Total revenues 964             964             942               (22)                    

EXPENDITURES:

     Judicial:

          Salaries 492             464             464               -                        

          Operating 427             428             303               125                   

             Total judicial 919             892             767               125                   

          Reserves 71               98               -                   98                     

     Total expenditures 990             990             767               223                   

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (26)             (26)             175               201                   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (175)           (175)           (175)             -                        

             Total other financing sources (uses) (175)           (175)           (175)             -                        

Net change in fund balance (201)           (201)           -                   201                   

             Fund balance - beginning 243             243             243               -                        

             Fund balance - ending 42$             42$             243$             201$                 

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Major Technology Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

       Property taxes 21,635$      21,635$      21,451$        (184)$                

       Investment income 30               30               (17)               (47)                    

       Miscellaneous -                 -                 19                 19                     

             Total revenues 21,665        21,665        21,453          (212)                  

EXPENDITURES:

        General government:

          Property 23,580        26,003        20,316          5,687                

          Reserves 6,028          3,605          -                   3,605                

             Total expenditures 29,608        29,608        20,316          9,292                

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (7,943)        (7,943)        1,137            9,080                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (1,109)        (1,109)        (1,109)          -                        

             Total other financing sources (uses) (1,109)        (1,109)        (1,109)          -                        

Net change in fund balance (9,052)        (9,052)        28                 9,080                

             Fund balance - beginning 9,053          9,053          9,053            -                        

             Fund balance - ending 1$               1$               9,081$          9,080$              

     Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Historical Commission Special Revenue Fund

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

EXPENDITURES:

        General government:

          Operating 2                 2                 -                   2                       

             Total expenditures 2                 2                 -               2                       

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (2)               (2)               -                   2                       

Net change in fund balance (2)               (2)               -                   2                       

             Fund balance - beginning 10               10               10                 -                        

             Fund balance - ending 8$               8$               10$               2$                     

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Historical Exhibit Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

       Investment income 1$               1$               -$                 (1)$                    

      Charges for current services 3,472          3,472          4,201            729                   

             Total revenues 3,473          3,473          4,201            728                   

EXPENDITURES:

        General government:

          Operating 3,468          3,421          3,421            -                        

             Total expenditures 3,468          3,421          3,421            -                    

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures 5                 52               780               728                   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (126)           (173)           (173)             -                        

             Total other financing sources (uses) (126)           (173)           (173)             -                        

Net change in fund balance (121)           (121)           607               728                   

             Fund balance - beginning 310             310             310               -                        

             Fund balance - ending 189$           189$           917$             728$                 

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Alternative Dispute Resolution Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

       Investment income 4$               4$               (2)$               (6)$                    

       Charges for current services 736             736             743               7                       

             Total revenues 740             740             741               1                       

EXPENDITURES:

     Judicial:

      Salaries 128             139             139               -                        

      Operating 20               20               5                   15                     

      Reserves 2,363          2,352          -                   2,352                

             Total expenditures 2,511          2,511          144               2,367                

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures (1,771)        (1,771)        597               2,368                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (429)           (429)           (340)             89                     

             Total other financing sources (uses) (429)           (429)           (340)             89                     

Net change in fund balances (2,200)        (2,200)        257               2,457                

             Fund balances - beginning 2,200          2,200          2,200            -                        

             Fund balances - ending -$               -$               2,457$          2,457$              

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Appellate Justice System Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

       Investment income 1$               1$               -$                 (1)$                    

       Charges for current services 308             308             342               34                     

             Total revenues 309             309             342               33                     

EXPENDITURES:

     Judicial:

       Operating 272             272             247               25                     

             Total judicial 272             272             247               25                     

             Total expenditures 272             272             247               25                     

             Excess (deficiency) of revenues

                  over (under) expenditures 37               37               95                 58                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (158)           (158)           (142)             16                     

             Total other financing sources (uses) (158)           (158)           (142)             16                     

Net change in fund balance (121)           (121)           (47)               74                     

             Fund balance - beginning 126             126             126               -                        

             Fund balance - ending 5$               5$               79$               74$                   

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Continued)

117



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

HUD Section 8 Grants Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

     Investment income 10$             10$          3$                 (7)$                    

     Intergovernmental revenues 28,751        28,751     29,735          984                   

          Total revenues 28,761        28,761     29,738          977                   

EXPENDITURES:

     Public welfare 32,861        33,020     30,948          2,072                

          Total expenditures 32,861        33,020     30,948          2,072                

          Excess (deficiency) of revenues

             over (under) expenditures (4,100)        (4,259)      (1,210)          3,049                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (70)             (105)         -                   105                   

         Total other financing sources (uses) (70)             (105)         -                   105                   

Net change in fund balance (4,170)        (4,364)      (1,210)          3,154                

     Fund balance - beginning 4,498          4,498       4,498            -                        

     Fund balance - ending 328$           134$        3,288$          3,154$              

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                Final

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Academy for Academic Excellence Grants Special Revenue Fund

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual

 For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual

Amounts

 Variance with

Final Budget - 

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

     Investment income 10$                 10$            7$                 (3)$                    

     Intergovernmental revenues 7,704              7,704         6,836            (868)                  

          Total revenues 7,714              7,714         6,843            (871)                  

EXPENDITURES:

     Education 6,912              7,280         6,919            361                   

          Total expenditures 6,912              7,280         6,919            361                   

          Excess (deficiency) of revenues

             over (under) expenditures 802                 434            (76)               (510)                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Transfers (out) (79)                 (79)             (73)               6                       

         Total other financing sources (uses) (79)                 (79)             (73)               6                       

Net change in fund balance 723                 355            (149)             (504)                  

     Fund balance - beginning 3,243              3,243         3,243            -                        

     Fund balance - ending 3,966$            3,598$       3,094$          (504)$                

    Budgeted Amounts

   Original                 Final

(Concluded)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS – ALL AGENCY FUNDS 

120 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in an agency capacity for individuals, 
private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The following are the County’s 
Agency Funds: 
 
Escrow Fund (Fund 532) - used to account for miscellaneous amounts temporarily held for other 
individuals or entities outside control of Commissioners Court.  
 
State Reports Fund (Fund 166) - used to account for State fees collected by the County and subsequently 
disbursed to the State. 
 
County Clerk, District Clerk, Sheriff, Justices of the Peace and Constables Fee Funds (Funds 501-506, 
580-587)  - used to account for monies received with ultimate disposition of receipts to be determined at a 
future date. 
 
Community Supervision and Corrections (Fund 128) - used to account for the activities of a State agency 
with funds in the County depository. 
 
Housing Finance Corporation - 1993 Refunding (Fund 570) - used to account for monies received as a 
result of refunding of 1983 Mortgage Revenue bonds issued by HFC. 
 
Juvenile Department Child Support (Funds 802-808) - used to account for money held for other parties in 
the child support program in accordance with court orders. 
 
Housing Finance Corporation - 1994 Refunding (Fund 571) - used to account for monies received as a 
result of refunding 1984 Mortgage Revenue Bonds issued by HFC. 
 
Community Supervision and Corrections Special (Fund 543) - used to account for the receipt and 
distribution of restitution payments made by probationers. 
 
Youth Village (Fund 537) - used to account for donated money to be used for the benefit of youths 
temporarily housed in the facility. 
 
Tax Assessor-Collector (Fund 704) - used to account for initial receipt and distribution to proper parties 
of taxes and fees collected for various entities of government. 
 
Police Agencies Seized Funds (Fund 542) - used to account for seized monies awaiting judicial 
determination for local police agencies. 
 
Attorney General Seized Funds (Fund 544) - used to account for seized monies awaiting judicial 
determination for the Texas Attorney General. 
 
Gambling Seized Funds (Fund 545) - used to account for seized monies for gambling awaiting judicial 
determination for the Texas Department of Public Safety. 
 
Narcotics Seized Funds (Fund 546) - used to account for seized monies for narcotics awaiting judicial 
determination for the Texas Department of Public Safety. 
 
Sheriff Inmate Trust (Fund 515)   - used to account for monies held in trust for individuals in County 
custody. 

 
 



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities- Agency Funds

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

                                                                                                                                                                           Fee Office Funds

Administrative    

    Fund       

Escrow

Sheriff

 Inmate 

Trust

State

Reports

County

Clerk

District

Clerk Sheriff

Community

Supervision

and

Corrections

Justices

of the 

Peace Constables

Housing

Finance

Corporation -

1993 

Refunding

Assets:

Cash and investments 8,560$             340$            3,445$          80,958$        18,996$      874$             8,911$          2,461$      131$              49$                
Accrued interest/

other receivables 56                    -             -              -              -            -             184               -          -              -              

Cash and investments

      held in escrow 9,893               -               -                -                -              -                -                -            -                 -                 

Total assets 18,509$           340$            3,445$          80,958$        18,996$      874$             9,095$          2,461$      131$              49$                

Liabilities:

Due to other

     governmental units

     and others 18,509$           340$            3,445$          80,958$        18,996$      874$             9,095$          2,461$      131$              49$                

Total liabilities 18,509$           340$            3,445$          80,958$        18,996$      874$             9,095$          2,461$      131$              49$                

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities- Agency Funds

September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

                                                                                                                                                                           Fee Office Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments
Accrued interest/

other receivables

Cash and investments

      held in escrow

Total assets

Liabilities:

Due to other

     governmental units

     and others

Total liabilities

                    Departmental Special Funds

Juvenile

Department

Child 

Support

Housing

Finance

Corporation 

-

1994 

Refunding

Community

Supervision

and

Corrections

Special

Youth

Village

Tax 

Assessor -

 Collector

Police

Agencies

Attorney

General Gambling Narcotics Total

1,017$         1,203$          1,905$         1$               44,672$    37$               27$              58$              63$                173,708$        

-             -             -             -           -          -           -          -           -            240                 

-               -                -               -             -            -              -            -             -              9,893              

1,017$         1,203$            1,905$            1$                 44,672$       37$               27$              58$              63$                183,841$        

1,017$         1,203$          1,905$         1$               44,672$    37$               27$              58$              63$                183,841$        

1,017$         1,203$          1,905$         1$               44,672$    37$               27$              58$              63$                183,841$        

District Attorney Seized Funds

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30, 

2014

Administrative Fund - Escrow

Assets:

   Cash and investments 7,272$            16,244$          (14,956)$         8,560$              

   Accrued interest receivable 32                   56                   (32)                  56                     

   Cash and investments held in escrow 9,830              769                 (706)                9,893$              

      Total assets 17,134$          17,069$          (15,694)$         18,509$            

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - administrative 17,134$          17,069$          (15,694)$         18,509$            

      Total liabilities 17,134$          17,069$          (15,694)$         18,509$            

Sheriff Inmate Trust

Assets:

    Cash and investments 391$               -$                (51)$                340$                 

      Total assets 391$               -$                (51)$                340$                 

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others 391$               -$                (51)$                340$                 

      Total liabilities 391$               -$                (51)$                340$                 

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30, 

2014

Fee Office Fund - State Reports

Assets:

    Cash and investments 3,206$            1,672,333$     (1,672,094)$    3,445$              

      Total assets 3,206$            1,672,333$     (1,672,094)$    3,445$              

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - fee office 3,206$            36,722$          (36,483)$         3,445$              

      Total liabilities 3,206$            36,722$          (36,483)$         3,445$              

Fee Office Fund - County Clerk

Assets:

    Cash and investments 41,209$          536,433$        (496,684)$       80,958$            

      Total assets 41,209$          536,433$        (496,684)$       80,958$            

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - fee office 41,209$          537,815$        (498,066)$       80,958$            

      Total liabilities 41,209$          537,815$        (498,066)$       80,958$            

(Continued)

124



DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30,

 2014

Fee Office Fund - District Clerk

Assets:

    Cash and investments 18,472$          60,464$          (59,940)$         18,996$            

      Total assets 18,472$          60,464$          (59,940)$         18,996$            

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - fee office 18,472$          57,133$          (56,609)$         18,996$            

      Total liabilities 18,472$          57,133$          (56,609)$         18,996$            

Fee Office Fund - Sheriff

Assets:

    Cash and investments 848$               26,182$          (26,156)$         874$                 

      Total assets 848$               26,182$          (26,156)$         874$                 

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - fee office 848$               17,776$          (17,750)$         874$                 

 

      Total liabilities 848$               17,776$          (17,750)$         874$                 

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30,

 2014

Fee Office Fund - 

Community Supervision and Corrections

Assets:

    Cash and investments 11,964$          5,470,247$     (5,473,300)$    8,911$              

    Accrued interest and other receivable 190                 382                 (388)                184                   

      Total assets 12,154$          5,470,629$     (5,473,688)$    9,095$              

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - fee office 12,154$          42,473$          (45,532)$         9,095$              

 

      Total liabilities 12,154$          42,473$          (45,532)$         9,095$              

Fee Office Fund - 

Justices of the Peace

Assets:

    Cash and investments 2,661$            1,025$            (1,225)$           2,461$              

      Total assets 2,661$            1,025$            (1,225)$           2,461$              

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - fee office 2,661$            1,082$            (1,282)$           2,461$              

      Total liabilities 2,661$            1,082$            (1,282)$           2,461$              

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(inthousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30, 

2014

Fee Office Fund - Constables

Assets:

    Cash and investments 109$             1,699$           (1,677)$         131$                 

      Total assets 109$             1,699$           (1,677)$         131$                 

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - fee office 109$             1,199$           (1,177)$         131$                 

      Total liabilities 109$             1,199$           (1,177)$         131$                 

Departmental Special Fund - 

Housing Finance Corporation - 

1993 Refunding

Assets:

    Cash and investments 49$               -$              -$              49$                   

      Total assets 49$               -$              -$              49$                   

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - departmental special 49$               -$              -$              49$                   

      Total liabilities 49$               -$              -$              49$                   

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30, 

2014

Departmental Special Fund - 

Juvenile Department Child Support

Assets:

    Cash and investments 692$              2,078$          (1,753)$         1,017$              

      Total assets 692$              2,078$          (1,753)$         1,017$              

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - departmental special 692$              1,395$          (1,070)$         1,017$              

      Total liabilities 692$              1,395$          (1,070)$         1,017$              

Departmental Special Fund - 

Housing Finance Corporation - 

1994 Refunding

Assets:

    Cash and investments 753$              100,396$      (99,946)$       1,203$              

      Total assets 753$              100,396$      (99,946)$       1,203$              

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - departmental special 753$              992$             (542)$            1,203$              

      Total liabilities 753$              992$             (542)$            1,203$              

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30, 

2014

Departmental Special Fund - 

Community Supervision and 

Corrections Special

Assets:

    Cash and investments 1,836$           9,855$         (9,786)$        1,905$             

      Total assets 1,836$           9,855$         (9,786)$        1,905$             

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - departmental special 1,836$           7,149$         (7,080)$        1,905

      Total liabilities 1,836$           7,149$         (7,080)$        1,905$             

Departmental Special Fund - Youth Village

Assets:

    Cash and investments 1$                  -$                 -$             1$                     

      Total assets 1$                  -$                 -$             1$                     

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - departmental special 1$                  -$                 -$             1$                     

      Total liabilities 1$                  -$                 -$             1$                     

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 

30, 

2014

Departmental Special Fund - 

Tax Assessor - Collector

Assets:

    Cash and investments 46,798$        45,073$        (47,199)$       44,672$           

      Total assets 46,798$        45,073$        (47,199)$       44,672$           

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others - departmental special 46,798$        456,270$      (458,396)$     44,672$           

      Total liabilities 46,798$        456,270$      (458,396)$     44,672$           

District Attorney Seized Funds - 

Police Agencies

Assets:

    Cash and investments 37$               -$              -$              37$                  

      Total assets 37$               -$              -$              37$                  

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others 37$               -$              -$              37$                  

      Total liabilities 37$               -$              -$              37$                  

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30, 

2014

District Attorney Seized Funds - 

Attorney General

Assets:

    Cash and investments 27$                 -$                -$                27$                   

      Total assets 27$                 -$                -$                27$                   

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others 27$                 -$                -$                27$                   

      Total liabilities 27$                 -$                -$                27$                   

District Attorney Seized Funds - 

Gambling

Assets:

    Cash and investments 58$                 -$                -$                58$                   

      Total assets 58$                 -$                -$                58$                   

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others 58$                 -$                -$                58$                   

      Total liabilities 58$                 -$                -$                58$                   

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance

 October 1, 

2013 Additions Deductions

Balance

 September 30, 

2014

District Attorney Seized Funds - 

Narcotics

Assets:

    Cash and investments 78$                 211$               (226)$              63$                   

.

      Total assets 78$                 211$               (226)$              63$                   

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others 78$                 145$               (160)$              63$                   

      Total liabilities 78$                 145$               (160)$              63$                   

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance

October 1, September 30,

2013 Additions Deductions 2014

Assets:

Cash and investments 136,461$      7,942,240$     (7,904,992)$   173,708$          

Accrued interest and other receivable 222               438                 (420)               240                   

Cash and investments held in escrow 9,830            769                 (706)               9,893                

Total assets 146,513$      7,943,447$     (7,906,119)$   183,841$          

Liabilities:

   Due to other governmental units and others 146,513$      1,177,220$     (1,139,892)$   183,841$          

Total liabilities 146,513$      1,177,220$     (1,139,892)$   183,841$          

(Concluded)
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information to enhance the understanding

of the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information and what the data

indicates about the County’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 135

These schedules contain trend information to aid in understanding how the County’s financial performance and well-being

have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 140

These schedules contain information to aid in assessing the County’s most significant local revenue source - property tax.

Debt Capacity 145

These schedules present information to aid in assessing the County’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 150

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to aid in understanding the environment within which the

County’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 152

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to aid in understanding how the information in the County's financial

report relates to services the County provides and the activities it performs.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Net Position of Primary Government

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

Table 1

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Governmental activities

  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 318,404$    343,757$    371,524$     429,277$    455,302$    453,807$    455,452$    454,302$    496,797$    511,162$    

  Restricted 16,584        21,548        59,017         40,360        63,686        61,654        66,840        78,434        81,686        76,172        

  Unrestricted 69,644        91,806        46,414         18,529        28,797        26,672        41,628        30,807        (32,000)       (50,551)       

Total governmental activities net position 404,632$    457,111$    476,955$     488,166$    547,785$    542,133$    563,920$    563,543$    546,483$    536,783$    

Source:  Dallas County Financial Records
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

Table 2

Expenses 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Governmental activities:

   General government 72,765$       77,465$          99,805$           126,656$          120,224$        147,707$     137,867$     149,009$     156,248$     152,854$           

   Judicial 102,371       115,244          126,971           134,413            139,852          136,703       138,104       133,061       147,927       156,170              

   Public Safety 172,347       198,138          216,521           235,161            234,898          236,728       233,243       222,386       236,798       238,937              

   Highways and Streets 33,852         29,174            32,955             34,689               30,119            23,787         21,195         27,349         23,756         25,894                

   Health 44,285         45,948            41,590             46,735               48,598            51,033         53,264         50,924         48,216         49,190                

   Education 7,941            9,547              10,189             11,699               11,470            11,104         9,994           9,340           9,009           8,158                  

   Public Welfare 61,106         65,908            66,913             72,374               82,019            85,635         97,261         76,449         70,960         68,769                

   Libraries 23                 12                   10                    3                        - -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          

   Interest on long term debt 10,131         9,288              10,599             9,784                 6,939              6,475           5,189           4,681           3,683           3,400                  

Total primary government expenses 504,821$     550,724$        605,553$         671,514$          674,119$        699,172$     696,117$     673,199$     696,597$     703,372$           

Program Revenues

Governmental activities:

   Charges for services:

      General government 44,371$       50,809$          47,125$           55,659$            50,104$          46,405$       47,054$       44,792$       50,236$       50,306$              

      Judicial 52,703         58,257            58,164             60,655               68,280            50,648         43,797         44,746         46,204         42,780                

      Public Safety 21,046         20,337            22,845             21,156               23,143            21,133         23,527         22,422         24,490         24,267                

      Highways and Streets (1) 38,954         41,849            42,244             44,495               40,002            36,968         27,340         26,511         25,193         26,494                

      Health 6,193            6,409              6,150               6,385                 7,171              7,607           7,882           6,138           7,483           6,585                  

      Public Welfare 2,671            2,530              1,134               1,423                 1,323              1,399           1,499           1,237           1,269           1,122                  

   Operating grants and contributions

      General government -                -                  -                   -                     156                 819              947              971              -               -                      

      Judicial 3,009            3,330              1,636               2,475                 28,398            15,259         16,198         13,309         11,825         13,595                

      Public Safety 4,269            5,977              5,419               5,373                 8,066              10,935         10,835         8,875           11,204         11,841                

      Health 26,892         26,359            26,472             28,943               29,948            33,309         32,894         32,932         30,037         29,716                

      Education 9,060            9,444              7,879               12,155               10,742            8,971           12,042         10,165         9,199           7,938                  

      Public Welfare 44,132         47,706            51,880             59,293               67,345            74,318         89,732         67,718         63,191         58,330                

   Capital grants and contributions:

      Judicial -                -                  26                    -                     -                  50                257              -               -               -                      

      Public Safety -                -                  480                  621                    -                  389              -               -               -               -                      

      Health -                -                  -                   -                     -                  -               -               -               -               -                      

      Public Welfare 4,192            10,649            5,650               442                    1,843              76                -               -               -               -                      

Total governmental activities program revenues 257,492$     283,656$        277,104$         299,075$          336,521$        308,286$     314,004$     279,816$     280,331$     272,974$           

Total net (expense) revenue (247,329)$    (267,068)$       (328,449)$       (372,439)$         (337,598)$      (390,886)$    (382,113)$    (393,383)$    (416,266)$    (430,398)$          

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

General Revenues and Other Changes in

    Net Position

Governmental activities:

   Taxes

      Property taxes 267,462$     284,946$        309,560$         356,596$          372,201$        364,868$     371,618$     366,998$     370,052$     384,097$           

      Alcoholic beverage taxes (1) 10,695         11,129            11,858             12,119               11,742            11,732         19,953         21,300         25,961         32,943                

  Unrestricted grants and contributions 5,243            3,640              3,534               4,659                 1,750              5,161           6,758           1,392           2,115           1,622                  

  Investment earnings 9,724            19,832            23,341             10,276               11,524            3,521           4,258           3,259           1,078           2,036                  

  Insurable gain, net of insurance proceeds -                -                  -                   -                     -                  -               2,850           57                -               -                      

  Gain on the sale of property 31,203         -                  -                   -                     -                  3,967           -               -               -               -                      

Total primary government 324,327$     319,547$        348,293$         383,650$          397,217$        389,249$     405,437$     393,006$     399,206$     420,698$           

Other activities:

  Insurable loss, net of insurance proceeds -                -                  -                   -                     -                  (4,015)          -               -               -               -                      

  Loss on retirement of capital assets -                -                  -                   -                     -                  -               (804)             -               -               -                      

  Interest paid - advance refunding -                -                  -                   -                     -                  -               (733)             -               -               

Total other expenses -$             -$                -$                 -$                   -$                (4,015)$        (1,537)$        -$             -$             -$                    

Change in Net Position

Governmental activities 76,998$       52,479$          19,844$           11,211$            59,619$          (5,652)$        21,787$       (377)$           (17,060)$      (9,700)$              

Total primary government 76,998$       52,479$          19,844$           11,211$            59,619$          (5,652)$        21,787$       (377)$           (17,060)$      (9,700)$              

Note:

(1)  In FY 2011, the County reclassified $8,221 from Charges for services - Highways and Streets to General Revenues. This classification will be applied going forward.

Source:  Dallas County Financial Records
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

Table 3

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Property Taxes 267,462$   284,946$   309,560$    356,596$    372,201$    364,868$   371,618$    366,998$    370,052$    384,097$    

Alcoholic beverage / other taxes 10,695       11,129       11,858        12,119        11,742        11,732       19,953        21,300        25,961        32,943        

Total Taxes 278,157$   296,075$   321,418$    368,715$    383,943$    376,600$   391,571$    388,298$    396,013$    417,040$    

Source: Dallas County Financial Records

Note:  Other taxes reflect $8,221 increase in Fiscal Year 2011 due to changes in presentation of special highway taxes; previously reported as charges for services.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

Table 4

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

General Fund (GASB 54)

    Nonspendable -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           3,562$      3,366$      3,794$      3,120$      

    Restricted -             -             -             -             -             -             -            -            -            

    Committed -             -             -             -             -             -             -            -            -            

    Assigned -             -             -             -             -             -             7,871        7,778        6,786        6,537        

    Unassigned -             -             -             -             -             -             56,700      78,044      80,371      75,533      

General Fund (before GASB 54)

    Reserved 16,925       12,050       7,822         8,073         8,734         9,886         -            -            

    Unreserved 38,857       44,346       32,139       26,737       35,762       41,353       -            -            

Total General Fund 55,782$     56,396$     39,961$     34,810$     44,496$     51,239$     68,133$    89,188$    90,951$    85,190$    

All Other Governmental Funds (GASB 54)

   Nonspendable -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           282$         208$         283$         258$         

   Restricted -             -             -             -             -             -             108,201    108,777    129,988    91,908      

   Committed -             -             -             -             -             -             166,590    173,340    175,582    186,661    

   Assigned -             -             -             -             -             -             -            -            -            -            

   Unassigned -             -             -             -             -             -             -            -            -            -            

All Other Governmental Funds (before GASB 54)

   Reserved 39,364       40,519       107,960     90,351       72,436       56,123       -            -            -            -            

   Unreserved reported in:

      Debt Service 7,369         13,420       7,631         3,381         2,785         3,128         -            -            -            -            

      Major Projects 53,696       65,709       6,091         6,249         29,567       77,906       -            -            -            -            

      Grants Funds 6,780         6,437         9,298         1,993         1,819         (3,786)        -            -            -            -            

      Special Revenue 22,153       21,091       19,916       29,840       46,103       44,354       -            -            -            -            

      Capital Projects 39,851       81,422       45,263       13,057       19,019       18,632       -            -            -            -            

Total all other governmental funds 169,213$   228,598$   196,159$   144,871$   171,729$   196,357$   275,073$  282,325$  305,853$  278,827$  

Source:  Dallas County Financial Records

Note: In 2011, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 54.  Under GASB Statement No. 54, fund balances are classified as Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned or Unassigned.

          Prior to GASB 54, fund balances were classified as Reserved or Unreserved.  Amounts for fiscal years 2010 and earlier have not been restated to reclassify these balances.

138



DALLAS COU NTY. T EXAS Table 5
Changes in Fund Balances ofGovemmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis ofaccount ing)

(in thousands of dollars)
(unaudited)

200 ' 2006 2007 2008 2009 20 10 2011 2012 2013 2014

RrvrnlH'1

Property taus S 262,,124 , 286 ,m S 308,40 H6,136 372,2 85 364,620 s 372.0 701 367 ,478 371,,263 38),772
Licenses andpamiq (l) ll.458 32,704 )).826 31.413 29.2 53 26,,422 33,520 36,009 39,154 42,,191
FInes and forfell llles 24,404 26,060 25,691 27.507 25,.280 21,5 12 17,732 16,2ll6 14,151 13,06 1
Investmenl loeomc and renw reven ues 14.856 22.85 1 26,654 14,551 15.173 6,190 7,0 17 6,221 4.269 5,947
Inlerg<womtrnenw revenu es 94 ,575 104,752 103.944 112,,951 151,313 128,861 145,937 120,6 70 125,820 114.511
Charges for Clm ent $efVices (3) 100 ,209 115,239 114,99 1 123,3S) 128,905 126,521 12).235 115,139 1I1,5~ 125.497
MIscell aneous r~ues IJ 023 16 271 11,579 17,852 IO,6JS 14.603 17 035 I I 215 11.241 10,350
Tota l reveeces 542 649 604 .67 5 625123 63 3 710 132 904 689329 716,550 672 998 633456 695 329

E. p....d iluns

Gmeral go'<m1menl and Jlld'~al fl) 179,375 194.847 22 1,496 234 .758 238 .079 232.214 2H ,904 223.855 242.369 249,064
Pubhc ..fet)' (I ) 169 .8l1 192,7 10 211.970 23 1.062 228 .083 225.898 222, 489 213.71 1 225,4)6 233,675
lI ighWll)'s IIId sireeu (a) 20,059 22,040 22,72 8 26 .107 23,116 22,122 20,152 26,790 23,244 24.646
Hea lth (I ) 4 3.895 45 .484 41.020 46,584 48,711 51.094 52,967 50,829 48,154 49,058
Public we lfare (I) 60,.225 70.261 65,364 10.484 79.8 15 83,671 96,448 75,603 70,475 61.898
Libraoes (I ) "EduCluon (a) 8,061 9,512 10, 102 11,599 11,358 IO,9 S1 10,OM 9.224 8,888 8,021
Capll al outlay (a ) (I , 48,869 34,748 59,172 82,798 39,660 15,4 54 11,394 15,18 8 54,Ol8 64 ,188
Deb l service

PrHlcipil 34,940 32, 180 30,980 27,915 19.95 5 17,3" 18, 190 22,7 80 20,075 25,0 80
Inter nt 9.265 8,3\0 I] 170 8.902 7,583 6 625 5 284 6 70 8 5 J83 5,886

Total e><pendltureJ 514,539 61 0,092 674002 740209 696,360 665,42 0 670 893 644,748 698542 728116

E~ e e$S e f revenues
over (unclrr) expenditu res (3 1,890 ) (5,4 17) (43,874 ) (56,439 ) 36544 23,909 45657 28,2 50 (IS ,0861 02,787)

Olh er finan cing source' (usn)
Transfe rs in 60,473 59,833 71,149 67,551 63.473 41,570 49,046 47. 154 40,841 42,101
Transfers (OUl ) (60,473) (5\1,833) (71,149) ( 67.5 ~1 ) (63,473) (47,570) (49,046) (47,1 54) (40,S41) (42,1 01)
Debt iss uance · advance r.-fundlng bonds 24,096 32.400 10,515
Debt issuanc e - limited tu notes 36.5JS 63.220 41,545 35,825
Prem ium on Idvl nce refunding bonds 2,lJ::. 1,669
Premium on hm" cd U~ notes 1,933 2,196 3,749 4,423
Inlerest on advance refundIng bends "Interts l on hmitrd till notes 82
Acc rued ,nterest on reven ue bonds
Payment to advance refunded bond escrowagent (25, 985) (J 4.210 ) (12,,055)
Sale of capital auets 4,462

Insurance proc:t'eds ] ,000 4.258 "Toul other linlllCing SDurces (uses ) 36,5'79 654 16 7 46 2 4995) " 40,377

""el change In fund bal"nce 4 689 59". , 1488741 (S6.4391 s 36544 31,J71 95610 28307 25,291 132 781)

Sum of....pendllllld (a) 530,334 569 ,602 631,852 10 3.392 668.822 64 1.440 64 1,4 19 615,.260 67J,(lg4 69 7,150
Less. Expenditures cap,tallzed for
llO\'emmtnt-Wide Slllemenl of net
po$lbon (2) (43 349) (45 JS4) (66 12&1 (84,J 691 (39 508) Cl2.711l (14 007) !l 8,988) f55 .6291 162,464)

~on-capi tal apend'iurn s: 486 98 5 , 524 2~ 8 S 565:124 6 19 023 629 314 628729 633 412 , 596 272 611455 634686

Debt 5er\f1ceas a percenuge of
non-capltal Cllpendllurer. 91% 7.1% U~ , 9% 4 4" _ 78% ] 1% .." 41 % ' .9%

Source Dal las County Financ ial Recor ds

NOles'
( II Som e pureh.a5.es Ilia! have met the County' s capitalization th resho ld are class'fied as ewtem e>r;pt'M,ture:SI I the functionallevel, these purchases are e>r;eJlIlkd from capi~1 outllY expmdnures
(21 The amounl of Clpital expend, lures on pl ge 53 oflhe Notes 10 Ihe Basic FilllollClal S l.IIll:lIlents IIld referenced 10 page 61 incl udes capital e"pendltur n record ed

Within functlona l upend,lure categories and C~ltal Outlay ""pcndJlures noted in ( II which meet Ihe COlfnly's Clp'\l.lizatJon th reshold.
(3) In fY 2011, 1M' County ltodlSSlfied S8,22 1 from Char ges for curnnt se", ica 10 LiceMes and pc:nrulS.Th ,s c1assificauon~ bft,n appli ed goms rorward.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars, except for Note (1))

(unaudited)

Table 6

Year

200 5
2006
2007

2008
2009
2010
2011
20 12
1013
2014

Real Property Perscnat Prope rty Tota l

Total Pr imary
Stat utory

Assessed Ib tio of
Estimated Va lue Esti ma ted Es tima ted Governme nt

Assessed
Assessed Value T rue Va lue Noles (1) & T rue Value A ssessed Value True Value Direct Tax

Value to T ru e
Noles (I ) & (-Ij Note (2) (4) Note (2) Notes ( I) & (.a) Note (2) Ra te

Value

S 145,616.669 S 147,709,138 S 25.6 13,845 S 25,613.845 S 171,230,514 S 173,322,983 0 21390 98 .79%
158,357,737 161,3 10.649 25.992, 4 17 25,992 ,4 17 184,350.154 187.303,066 0.21390 98.42Y~

175)00.112 177,328,144 28,323,579 28,323.579 203,523,69 1 205.651.723 0.228 10 98 .97%
187,6$7,752 189,375.558 30,463,426 30,463,426 2 18,121,178 219,838,984 0.22810 99 .22%
182,573,892 183,604 ,362 30.7 12.196 30,712,196 213.286,088 214,316.558 0.228 10 99.52%
176,079,924 176,830,527 28,685,037 28,685,037 204.764 ,961 205,515,564 0.243 10 99.63%
173,840,792 174,569 ,08 1 28,953.511 28.953.5 11 202,794,303 203,522,592 0.243 10 99.64%
176,477.746 177,340,633 30.175,25 2 30.175,252 206,652,998 207.5 15,885 0.243 10 99 .58%
183,537,954 184,293,875 31 .732,599 3 1,732,599 215.270 ,553 216.026,474 0.24310 99.65%
196,639,097 197,090,173 32,644,5 15 32,644 ,515 229,283 ,6 12 229,734,688 0.24310 99.80"A.

Source : Dallas COUnTyTax Assessor-Collec tor.

Note (1) Assessed values shown in this table includes ro lling stock and amounts allowed for a ll exemptions. The Dallas County Conumssio ners Court
approved the greater of2 0% or $5,000 allowan ce for homestead exemptions for a ll taxpayers. The Dallas County Commiss ioners Court approved
an additional $69,000 allowance for homestead exemptions for taxpayers 65 years c f age or older. The approved allowance for disabled vetera ns
is $5,000 for disabilities of 10% butless than 30%, S7,5OO for disabilities of 30% but less than 50%, SI0.000 for disabilities of 50% but less than 70%,

and $12,000 for disab ilitics 70% or more. The 65 or older and disabifnyexemptions limit schoo l taxes to the amount paid in the year that the
individual qualified for the exemption

Note (2) The difference s betw een assessed value and estimated true value are lbe result of property items whose values wen: in dispute at the time of
cert ification of values by the Appra isal District .

Note (3) Etfecnv e Ja nuary I , 2008 the Dallas County Co mmissioners Coun approved a deferra l on the total taxe s imposed by the Coun ty on
property held by disab led and 65 or older homeowners . Deferred taxes accrue interes t at an 8ll. annual ra te.

Note (4) The asses sment date is January I .
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Table 7
DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Property Tax Riles andTax Levies
Las! TenTax Years

Tax Rates Per $100 of Taxable Value
[ unaudited )

Major Permanent Majo r Cap ital Debt Tota l Total
Tn Genera l Technology Improvement Development Service Primary Component Report ing
Year Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Covem ment Unit Entl ry

Rates ( l )
200' 016210 0.00500 0.00180 0.01621 0.02879 0.21390 0.25400 0.46790
2006 0.15450 0.01260 0.00180 0.02525 0.01975 0.21390 025400 0.46790
2007 0.16870 0.01260 0.00180 0.02593 0.01907 0.22810 0.25400 0.48210
200' 0.16870 0.01260 O.IXH&O 0.02996 0.01504 0.22810 0.25400 0.48210
2009 0.16&70 0.01260 0.00180 0.D3Q6.l 0.01436 0.22810 0.27400 0.50210
2010 0.18370 0.OJ26O 0.00180 0.03083 0.01417 0.24310 0.27100 0.51410
2011 0.18370 0.01260 0,00180 0.03120 0.01380 0.24310 0.27100 0.51410
2012 0.18270 0.01360 0.00180 0.02990 0.01510 0.24310 0.27100 0.51410

2013 0.17615 0.01360 0.00180 0.03J&4 0.01971 0.24310 0.27600 0.51910
2014 0.17615 0.01360 0.00180 0.03405 0,01750 0.24310 0.28600 0.52910

Tax levies Ll ]
(in thousands of dollars)

2005 219,902 6,783 2,442 21,990 39,056 290,113 (a) 34 ~,572 634,745
2006 226.423 18,466 2,638 37.004 28.944 313,475 (bJ 372.,243 685,718
2007 27V13 20,346 2,907 4 1.871 30,794 368,331 (oj 410,153 778,484
100' 281,381 21,464 3,066 51.041 25,617 388569 (d) 433,936 822,505
2009 278,064 20,768 2,967 50,500 23,673 375,912 (oj 453,929 829,901
2010 287,607 19,727 2,818 48,270 22,183 380,605 <n 429,605 810,210
2011 284,368 19,505 2,786 48,298 21,362 376,319 (,J 422,501 798,820
2012 286,951 21,361 2,827 46,% 1 23,716 381,816 (gJ 428,355 810,171
2013 288,053 22,240 2,943 52,067 32.231 397,534 (hJ 454,275 851,809
2014 306,407 23,657 3,JJI 59,229 30,441 422,865 (i) 502,058 924,923

Tax levy figures also include lax increment financing (listed
below) for collection by Dallas County with remittance
10 the City without actual revenue recognition totaling;
(a) in excess of S I million
(b) S 1.7million
(c) S 2.9 million
(d) s3,8 million
(e) S 3 2 million
(f) s2.7 million
(g) $2.9 million

(h) 53.1 million
(i) S4.6 million

r.roooo

0,80000
0 15000
0.75000

Note II I Legal Lrmneuon
On¢nal . Texes Consntunon. Amctc 8. Section 9 ~

Ad dmonal authonzed by votera - Texas Consumuon
Addruonalauthorized by Texas Constitution Anicle9, Secuon 9

Legal limitation includes pro\'islon for debt service S ""::::::::.

Note I J) Tax levy figures are shown net of exemptions Tax rates
shOI-\TI are amounts per hundred dollars ofnet assessed value.
Effective January 1,20 08 the Dallas County Commissioners Court
approved 8 tax lumtaticn "freeze" on the totaltaxes imposed by the
County on property held by disabled and over 65 homeowners

Taxesdue: October I
Taxes delinquent: February 1 year following levy
Tax lien and assessment date: January I year oflevy
Taxes added 10 delinquent roll: April 1 (personal property) or July I (real property) in the year following levy

Delinquent tax penalty and interest:
February of delinquent year - 6% penalty plus 1% interest
March of delinquent year- 7% penalty plus 1% interest
April o f dehnquent year - 8% penalty plus 3-/0interest
Ma) of dehnquent year -~Io penalty plus -I ~/_ interest
June- of delinquemyear- 10% penalty plus 5% interest
AfterJul)' I of'delmquent yeer . 12% penalty plus 1% mreresr permonth delmquent
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DALLA S COUNTY. TEXAS Tabl e 8
Property Tax Rates

Direct and Ove rlapping Governments
Last Ten Tax Ycars

(Rates are per S100 property value)
(unaudited)
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DALLAS CO UNTY, T EXAS Table 9
Principal Property Taxpay ers

September 30, 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

201 4 2005

Percent of Percen t of
Toral Dalla s Co unty Tuta l Da llas C ou nty

Au "5a1 AssC'Ss.rd Assesse d Ass essed
Nam e ofTaxpanr Nat u re of Husleess Va luat io n Rank Vtllua tion Valuation "".k Valu ati on

On cor Elcclric Delive ry Electric Utility S 1,422,920 0.72 % S %

AT&T,AmcriCW1 Telephone Tele phon e Ut ili ty 953,083 0.48

Will-Ma rt Rea l Estat e 'Sto res Retail 760,546 3 0.39 471,572 7 0.32

Crescent Te In vestors LP Real Estate 756,10 1 4 0.38 781,402 4 0.54

NorthPllrk land Partners Real Estate 62-1,382 5 0.32

Tex as In strwn enrs Electronics 601,569 , 0.31 1,164,396 3 0.80

Sout hwe st Alr hn es Airlin e 577,40 1 7 0.29 537.2 42 , 0.31

Post Propemes Inc Real Estar e 574,955 8 0.29 27 6,921 9 0.19

Veri zo n Teleph one Utilil)' 448,101 9 0.23 549,021 5 0 .38

PC Village Apts Real Estate 422,520 10 0 .2 1

Southwestern Bell/Cingular Telephone Util ity 1,590 ,414 LlO
T elepho ne Company

Texas Ulilil ies Elec tric Company Elect ric Utility 1,322 ,938 0.91

Trammel Crow Real Estate 323,381 8 0 .22

Euon l M ob11 C rude Oil & Natural Ga s 262,664 10 0.18

Tota l S 1 , 14 1,578 362 % S 7,279,95 1 5.01 %

Source : Dallas County Ta x Assessor-Colle c to r

Notes ( I) Es timated amounts based on 20 14 and 200 5 appraisa l roll excluding property under protes t.
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Table 10

DALLAS CO UNTY, TEXAS
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

Collectio ns of Percentage of Collections of Percentage of
Current Tax Collected Delinquent Tax To tal

T ax Levy Dur ing During Du ring Total Collections
Year Levies meg) Fiscal Period (a) Fiscal Period (a) Fiscal Period (b) Collect ion s (e) to T ax Levies

2005 638,335 (c) 624,91 1 97.90 7,027 63 1,938 99.00
2006 683,907 (e) 67 1,48 1 98. 18 7,95 1 679,432 99.35
2007 767,576 (e) 756 ,012 98.49 8,0 16 764,028 99.54
2008 810,865 (e) 795,692 98.13 7,49 7 803, 189 99.05
2009 822,9 15 (e) 808,714 98.27 7,5 12 8 16,226 99.19
2010 806.297 (e) 794,2 19 98.50 7,09 1 80 1,3 10 99.38
201 1 794,950 (e) 784,883 98.73 6,202 79 1,085 99.5 1
20 12 804,53 1 (e) 795,230 98.84 4,859 800,089 99.45
2013 843,739 (e) 834,645 98.92 4,677 839,322 99.48
2014 924,923 (d)

Source: Dallas County Financial Records.

Notes: (a) Current liseal per iod collections arc those collected between October I and September 30.
(b) Delinquent taxes include taxes collected in subsequent fiscal years.
(e) Total levy as ofthe last supplement processed dur ing the tiseal yea r.
(d) Collections on the 2014 tax roll are incomplete until the end of the fiscal year, September 30, 20 15.
(e) Tax co llections exclude TIF payments and are reported net of commission lor the otlice of the Tax Assessor-Collector.
(t) Original levy excl udes property under protest which is subsequently added to tax rolls as a result of arbitration.
(g) Tax levies inclu de Dallas Coun ty and its component unit. Reier to Tab le 7 lor tax levies and tax rates lor Dallas County

and its component unit.

Taxes due: October 1
Taxes delinquent : February 1 year following levy
Tax lien and assessment date: Jan uary I year of levy
Taxes added to delinquent roll: April 1 (for personal property) or July I (for real property) in the year following levy

Delinquent tax penalty and interest:
Februa ry of delinque nt year - 6% pena lty plus 1% interest
March of delinquent year - 7% penalty plus 2% interest
April ofdel inquent year - 8% pena lty plus J% interest
May of delinquent year - 9% penalty plus 4% interest
June of delinquen t year - 10% penal ty plus 5% interest
After July 1 of delin quent year - 12% pena lly plus 1% interest per month delinquent
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DALLAS CO UNTY, TEXA S
Ratios of Outstandin g Debt

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars, except per capita amount)

(unaudited)

Table 11

Bonded Debt Bonded Debt Bonded
Estim ated Assessed Bonded Percentage of Percentage of Debt

Year Population Value Debt (1) Assessed Value Pe rsonal Income (2) Per Capita (2)

2005 2,330 $ 173,322,983 $ 188,131 0.10854 % 0.1967 % 81
2006 2,383 187,303,067 221 ,723 0.11838 0.2 179 93
2007 2,4 17 205,651,722 190,499 0.09263 0.18 19 79
2008 2,452 219,838,984 162,128 0.07375 0. 1487 66
2009 2,471 214,3 16,558 141,850 0.066 19 0.1322 57
2010 2,368 205,515,564 \2 4,211 0.06044 0.\15 1 52
20 11 2,374 203,522,592 151,613 0.07449 0.1362 64
2012 2,386 207,5 15,885 127,203 0.06130 0.1120 53
2013 2,454 2 16,026,474 146,138 0.06765 0.1264 60
20 14 2,480 229,734,688 118,781 0.05170 0.10 15 48

Source: Dallas County Financial Records.

Note: Assessed Value includes rolling stock, values under protest as claimed by property ownersand adjusted market value.

{l ) Bonded debt forthe primary government includes all general obligation bonds.
(2) See schedule of Demograph ic and Economic Statistics on page 150 (Table 15) for personal income and population data.
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D A L L A S COUNTY, TEXAS Table 12
Direct and Overlapping B o nded Debt

September 30, 20 I 4

(in th ousands o f d o llars)

(un a u dited)

Percentage Dallas
or Otbt County's

Indebtedness Ap plicab le 10 Shan
Name as or Bonded Debt Dalla s Cou ntv cf Debt

Dallas County 91301201' S 118.781 100.00% S 118.781
Total direct S 118.7 81 S 118.781

OverlappingDebt:
Intermedia te educational agency:

DallasCounty Schools 9(301201' S 67,265 IOO.Ooalo S 67.265
Independent school districts:

Carrollton-Farmers Branch 9 '30·20 1' 30'.535 80.90% 2'6.369
CedarHill 9/30/201' 129,195 100.00% 129,195
Coppell 91301201' 218.772 100.00% 2 18,772
Dallas 9/3012014 2.557 ,940 100.00% 2.557.940
Desoto 913012014 124.2 19 100.00% 124,219
Duncanville 913012014 144.385 100.00% 144,385
Ferris 913012014 30,587 4.20% 1,285
Garland 9/30/2014 346,746 100.00% 346.746
Grand Prairie 9/30/2014 462,964 100.00% 462 ,964
Grapevine-Colleyville 9/30/2014 338,573 11.1 5% 37,75 1
Highland Park 9/30/20 14 94,515 100.00% 94,5 15
Irving 9/301201 ' 5 16,55 1 100.00% 516,55 1
Lancaster 9/3012014 97,500 100.00% 97,500
Mesquite 9'J O,~ 01 4 365,116 100.00% 365, 116
Richardson 91)0.12014 ' 29.805 100.00% 429,805
Sunnyvale 9'30120 " 58.45 7 100.00% 58.45 7
Total intermediate educationa l agency
& independentschool districts S 6.287.12 5 S 5.898.835

Special districts:
Dallas County FeD # I 9/3012014 28.56 5 100.00"10 28.565
Dallas CountyCommunity College 913012014 339,035 100.00% 339.035
Dallas County Hospital District 91301201' 736.23 5 100.00% 736.23 5
Dallas CountyUtility & Reclamation Dist. 9/301201' 251.608 100.00% 25 1.608
Denton County LID #1 913012014 9,'10 6.09.,.,. 573
Irving FCD, Section I 913012014 6.83 2 100.00% 6.832
Irving fCD , Section III 9130120t4 1.130 100.00% 1.130
l ancasterMUD #1 91301201 ' 2.965 IOO.O(W. 2.965
NorthwestDallas Co FCD 91301201' 8,' 2' 100.000/. 8,424
valwcod lrnprcvemem Authority 91301201 4 6.398 100.00% 6.398
water Control and Imp. District No. 6 9 '30/2014 7.8 17 100.00% 7.817
Total special districts S 1.398.'1 9 S 1.389 ,582

Source: County Auditor'sOffice and Municipal Advisory Council ofTexas$stimated Overlapping Debt Statement

Notes: • Overlapping governments arethose laxing entities thatare within the geographic boundariesof
Dallas County.

• Percentages of Debt Applicable 10 Dallas Co unty arc based on the Market Value ofp ropcrties within each entity,
• Inform ation was not provided by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas for the w ater Control

and Improvement District No, 6; entity provided Information to the Dallas County Auditor's Office.

(Continued)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

September 30, 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

Table 12

Percentage Dalla'
Gros s Debt of Debt County's

Indebtedness Less Applicab le to Share
Name as of Sinking Funds Dalla s County of Debt

Overlapping Debt (Continued):
Cities and towns:

Addison 9/30/2014 s 114,650 100.00% s 114,650
Balch Springs 9/3012 014 6,345 100.00% 6,345
Carrollton 9/30/2014 161,780 48.92% 79,i43
Cedar Hill 9/30/2014 81,4 15 97. 12% 79,070
Cockrell Hill 9130/2014 1,685 100.00% 1,685
Coppell 9/301201 4 73,245 98.06% 71,824
Dalla' 9/3012014 1,547,228 94.86% 1,467,700
Desoto 9/3012014 77,245 100.00% 77,245
Duncanville 9/30/20 14 11,014 100.00% 11,0 14
Fanners Branch 9/30120 14 42,720 100.00% 42,720
Ferris 9/30/2014 3,105 8.61% 267
Garland 9/30/2014 458,026 99.80% 457,110
Glenn Heights 9/30/2014 4,515 66.39% 2,998
Grand Prairie 9/30/2014 2 14,055 48.76% 104,373
Grapevine 9/30/2014 151,067 2.28% 3,444
Hutchins 9/30/20 14 7,42 1 100.00% 7,42 1
Irving 9/30/2014 377,340 100.00% 377,340
Lancaster 9/30/2014 81,000 100.00% 8 1,000
Lewisville 9/3012014 95,605 0.97% 927
Mesquite 9/30/2014 121,960 99.60% 121,472
Ovilla 9/3012014 6,175 8.82% 545
Richardson 9/3012014 260,840 61.54% 160,52 1
Rowlett 9/3012014 74,500 85.01% 63,332
Sachse 9130120 14 37,980 63.62% 24,163
Seagoville 9/30/2014 4,813 97.98% 4,716
Sunnyvale 9/3012 014 9,375 100.00% 9,375
Wilmer 9/30/2014 110 100.00% 110
Wylie 9/30/2014 103,015 0.36% 37 1

Total cities and towns $ 4,128,229 $ 3,370,881
Total Overlapping $ 11,813,773 $ 10,659,298

Total Direct and Overlapping $ 11,932,554 $ 10,778,079

Source: County Auditor's Office and Municipal Advi sory Counc il of Texas. Estimated Overlapping Debt Statement

Notes: • Overlapping governments are those taxing entities that arc within the geographic boundaries of
Dallas County.

• Percentages of Debt Applicable to Dallas Countyarebased on the Market Value of properties within
each entity.

(Concluded)
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Pledged Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

(unaudited)

Table 14

Tax and Parking Garage Revenue Bonds
Debt Service

Less: Net
Fiscal Total Operating Available

Year (l ) Resources Expenses ( I) Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage (2)
2005 S 1,046 S S 1,046 S 305 S 74 1 S 1,046 1.00
2006 1,084 1,084 350 734 1,084 1.00
2007 1,201 48 1,153 380 724 1,104 1.04
2008 1,194 150 1,044 4 10 712 1,122 0.93
2009 1,155 136 1,0 19 445 700 1,145 0.89
20 10 1,092 173 9 19 480 686 1,166 0.79
2011 1,309 204 1,105 520 669 1,189 0.93
2012 1,340 176 1,164 560 649 1,209 0.96

2013 (3) 1,448 176 1,272 605 569 1,174 1.08
2014 (3) 864 (4) 133 73 1 650 26 676 1.08

Note: This schedule WJ.S prepared starting in 2005; prior fiscal yearsare not applicable. The George Allen
parking garagewas opened March 19, 2007. and the parking garage system revenues are available to service
the Debt Service fund requirements.

( I) Operating expenses from fiscal year2008 forward include expenses for Founders Plaza and George Allen
park ing garagesystems.

(2) Funds on deposit in sinking fund in addition to net available revenue provide adequatecoverage in
compliance with bond covenants.

(3) Debt service is net of amo unts attributable to advance refunded debt.
(4) Total resources decreased due to parking garagedebt was paid in full in FY 20 14.
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DALLAS COUNTY , TEXAS
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Years
(unaudited)

Table 15

Person al In come
Pop ula tlu n (in milli on s of Wa ge Mean Medi an Sc hoo l Unemployment

Year ( I ) do lla rs ) (2) (3) Ag e (4) Enrollment (5) Rate (6) (b)

2005 2,330.050 $ 95,652 s 40,959 32.6 146,2 16 5.2
2006 2.383,300 101.747 4 1,32 1 32.4 158,700 4 .6
2007 2,4 17,650 104,705 42,17 4 32 .8 158,126 4.3
2008 2,45 1,800 109,053 44,060 33.1 157,631 5.3
2009 2,47 1,000 107,337 45,422 33 .2 157,524 8.7
2010 2,368,\39 107,915 47,351 3 1.7 157,158 8.4
20 11 2,373 ,870 111,292 48,07 8 32.3 157,575 8.9
2012 2,385,990 1\3 ,536 48,808 32 .4 158,932 6.7
20\3 2,453,843 115,607 48,596 32 .6 159,7 13 6.6
20 14 2,480,33 1 116,994 49,682 33 .1 159,7\3 (a) 5.3

Source:
J) North Texas Commission population estimate for all years except 2010 and 2014 (ntc-dfw.crg/ntpoppopest.html).

For 20 10 and 20 14. the US Census Bureau population figure was used (http.r/quickfacrs.census.gov) .
2) Bureau of Economic Ana lysis - U.S. Department of Commerce (www.bea.gov) for amoun ts through

Fiscal Year 2006. For 2007 and 2008, personal income was estimated using CP I figures based on the
South-Urban region, and for years after 2008, personal income is estimated using CPl South Urban ­
Dallas-Fort Worth, TX figures available from the U.S. Department of Labor. (httpJ/www .hls.gov/cpi/#data)

3) Texas Workforce Commiss ion LMI Tracer (www.texasindusrryprofiles.com/apps/win/eds.php) for amounts
through Fisca l Year 20 12. For 2013 LWDA Wages by SOC (www.texaswages.com).

4 ) U.S. Census Bureau - ACS Survey (factfi nder.census.gov ) for Dallas County, TX.
5) Dallas Independent School Distri ct Financ ial Report
6) U.S. Department of Labor (Bureau of Labor Sta tistics) for Dallas metropo litan area through 2008, and

after 2008 , for Counties and equivalents; Dallas County, Texas . (httpJ/www.bls.govflau/data.htm)

Note:
(a) The 2014 figure is not available; 2013 figure used.
(b) For years 2005 through 2007 , unemployment figures were reported as an annual average. For years

subsequent to 2007. the unemployment rate is reported using the September rate.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS Table 16
Principal Employers
September 30, 2014

(unaudited)

2014 2005

Per cen'age of Percentage of
TOIII Coun ty Total Co unty

Compan)" Prod uct Emp lovns Rank El1lplo\'mCof Company ProduCl [mplo}'ces Emp loymen t
AMR Corporatio n Airline, Technology and

Texas Hcahh Resource Non-profit Health Care 21,100 O.8~ % (American Airlines) Managemenl Sen- ices 22,000 0.94 %

Bank of America FinancialServices 20,000 2 0.81 WaJ-Man Sto res. Inc. Retail 2 1,300 0.9 1

Pubhc Independent School Public Indepen dent School

Dallas Public Schools Dlstrict 19,800 3 0.80 Dallas Publi c Schools Distri ct 19,244 0 83

A!\.1R Corporation Airl ine. Technolog y and lockheed Martin Mililafy Aircraft Design and

(Amen can Airlines) Management Services 19,2 19 0.71 Aeronautics Company Production 16,700 0.72

8 3)'101Hcalll~ Care System Iieallh Care Provider 16.850 0,68 Baylor Health Care System Health Care Pro\'ider 15,000 0 .64

JP Morga n Chase Finanti al Services 14.500 • 0.58 Southwestern Bell Telepho ne Telecommunications 14,000 0.60

Texas Instruments, Electronics and Sem i-
Incorporated conduc tors 14,000 7 0.58 v enzon Tetecommuniceuces 12,500 0.54

City o fOallas Municipal ity 13,000 8 0,56 T exas Health Resource No n-pro fit Health Care 12,304 0.53

UT - Southwestern Medical

Cen ter Health Care Prov ider 12,100 , 0,52 U.S. Postal Service Mail Delivery 13,225 0.5 7

The Visiting Nurse Non-pro fit Heahh Rela ted
Parkland Health & Hospital Health Care Pro vider 9,44 2 10 0 ,49 Association of Texas Services 12,897 0,55

Energy Future Holdings [ nerg; ' 9,400 II 0 .38 City of Dallas Municipal ity 10,800 0.46

United Pared Service Inc Padage Distribution Co mpany 9,209 t2 0.38 Brinker Intern ation al Restau rants 10,400 0.45

Target Retail 8,67 1 13 0.37 Albertso n's Retail Grocery 10,400 0.45

Texas jnsmanents, Electronics and Semi-
lI CA North Texas Division Health Con: Provi de r 8.500 14 0.3.5 Incorporated cc nductcrs 10.300 0.44

Raytheo n Com pany Defen se Sys tem s & Electro nics 8.500 is 0.34 Electronic Data Systems Computer and Data Serv ices 8,160 0.35

Southwest Airlines Commercial Airlin e 7,708 I. 0-34 r.c. Penney Retail 7,906 0.34

Public lndepen dem School

Garlan d ISD District 7.3 00 17 0.3 1 Bank of America fin ancial Serv ices 7.800 0.]3

ven zcn Te teccmmunica nons 7.28 1 IS 0 ,29 Target Retail 7,466 0.32

Kreger L.P. I ~ Dal las

Citi financial Services 7.2 00 " 0.29 Marketing Area Relail Grocery 7,290 0.3 1

Dallas Co unty LocalGovernment 6,537 20 0 .26 TXU Corporation Energy 6.686 0.29

Source : Dallas Business Journal Book of Lists 20 14

Note: A so urce from the Dallas Business Journal indicate d for 20 14: AT& T Inc" Walman , Arlington ISO, Lewisville lSD, Tom Thumb Food and Pharma cy,
Walgreens lind Alcon Laboratories are believed to be am ong the largest North Texas Employ ers bUI declin ed to release current employ ment figures.
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DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaud ited)

Table 17

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20 11 2012 20 13 2014
Function

General Government 4,821 5,080 4,260 4,164 4,5 17 736 648 660 671 681
Judicial

Truancy 22 18 28 27 22 34 32 35 37 36
Courts - 1,382 1,337 1,375 1,404 1,4 19

Public Safety
Constable 257 256 270 293 270 181 136 114 115 I II
Sheriff 1,693 1,828 2,280 2,392 2,203 2,242 2,23 1 2,20 1 2,200 2,2 10
Juvenile- 817 775 73 1 678 673 666 669 661
Other- 22 1 2 13 206 212 261

Highways and streets
Roadand Bridge 117 103 86 87 88 78 71 7 1 62 63
Public Works" 62 62 56 57 53

Health" 284 284 270 278 273
Education" 158 136 129 116 107
Public Welfare" 228 220 22 1 2 16 215
Total 6,9 10 7,285 7,74 1 7,738 7.831 6,284 6,043 6.004 6.037 6,090

• Reported in General Government category priorto 2010
Source: Dallas County Financial Records

Note:
Full-time equivalent employee information:

• Full-time equivalent countyemployee totals arefilled positions.
• Startingin 20IO. the total full-time equivalent Countyemployee totalsdonot include temporary

employees. Temporaryemployees are considered to be those who areworking bUI
arenot employed directly through the County.

• Truancyclassification includes full-timeequivalent Countyemployees inaddition to 12 Truancy Judges.

Significant budget changes:
• In 2010. 71 positions were rifled from the Constable Traffic Section.
• In 20 II. 25) positions weredeleted dueto budgetary cuts.
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DALL AS COUNTY, TEXAS Table 18
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudi ted)

20m 2006 2007 20lill 2009 2010 2011 2012 20 13 2014

Asscveor-Ccllecror of Taxes:
Budgeted employees 229 229 227 227 229 222 223 223 222 222
Ad valoremassessment notices issued 771.740 780.046 790.~5 2 795,l 64 797.621 797.652 797.821 799.639 802,161 804,627
Motor ,...chicle rcgistreticns 1 ,&~6,25 6 1.981,824 1.9&7.802 2.036.945 2.076.77l 2.060,.)85 2.029,~3 1 2,094.546 2, J10,732 2.155.088
NumberoCcntil) cc llccnou contracts 48 51 51 53 55 59 69 74 74 78

COIISHlblcs'
Budgeted cmplc' ecs 257 256 288 l l2 l0 9 277 182 m 124 120
Ci" il process papersserved 128,722 122,517 123,926 126,021 115,865 111,996 108.507 76.636 72.107 70.771

County Clerk (4)
Budgeted employees 198 201 205 207 210 191 207 207 201 199
Mern agc licenses 17.277 16.5l 5 16.6l 0 17.000 15,9l7 15,4.ll 16.531 16.0l & 16.l5 9 16.024
Ci\11sulls 16.882 17.629 18.3l7 Il .462 11.456 11.574 11.489 10.149 9.785 8.482
Probate cases 9,% 6 10.2l 0 10,89 1 10,965 II .l 96 12,128 12.l 7l 12.268 12,582 12.741
Crnmnalcases 66MI 67.50 5 64.852 6l .000 C .l0 5 70.5-10 59.l 90 57.296 58.240 43.85l

Distract Clerk.
Budgeted clUp lo~ c~ 262 266 267 266 264 264 254 249 257 260
Ci\ il process cases 45,706 ~ 2,1 52 " ~.OO6 47,67 1 49.629 47,849 47.508 47,007 48.002 <7,502
Criminal cases 29 ,907 28,879 27.379 26,319 26.280 24,560 2l, 556 23. ll O 23,13 1 23,214
Jurors 96,219 102.165 100.00l 105,672 99.459 90,894 102, 176 108.911 116,967 106,714

Justice of the Peace Courts:
Budgetedemployees 149 147 170 167 166 166 149 144 128 110
Cases l 66.492 412.11& 411.l11 466.453 423,508 340.175 222,409 196,264 166.13& 165.626

Sheriff:
Budgeted employees (6) 1,693 1,828 2,068 2,195 2,420 2.392 2,202 2,169 2,157 2,134
O<li ly a..c-age ill COWlf)-' jail 7,l30 8.037 6,568 6,060 5,983 6.550 6.494 6,018 6.028 6,127
Persons booked 101,080 107,571 96,751 99,078 98,821 96.533 91,696 85,001 82,537 74.337
Civil proce-ss papers served (S) &41 589 492 795 485 749 705 N " , N N\

Truancy Courts ( I)
Budgeted empl oyees 22 18 29 29 29 32 32 32 l 7 41
Cases f lied u.sou 20.933 16.21f) 32.619 40.439 47.012 48.871 36,673 l l .127 30.60ol

C OIlll!:,> Treasurer
Budgeted creptovccs 1& 18 1& I' 17 16 14 14 14 14
TOlal Receipts (2) (3) 3olJ133Jl76 l 7.m .114 ·0.216.196 "'~ .1 1 2 .7 .\~ 1 1,9RS.l ~ 7 14.0l 6.014 34 .9~2.~ R9 ~ I.O~5 ,2 2~ 24,793,695 23.512,483
Toiol Duburscmcnts (2) (3) 34)111(,.088 l7 .044.03l 4l .2l6.585 ~ 1, 130,l4 0 12.004.698 14.013.885 34.910,215 ·11 .059,939 24,856.829 2l. 550.432
Investment Earnings (2) II..1lJG 2115 2:' 26,l23 17,716 9.234 4.746 5.224 5,166 2,805 2,603

Sources: Dallas CcumyFineocral Records

Note ( I) TruancycourtsestablishedApril 2004 DAllas County currently operates fourTruancy courts.

(2) In thousands of dollars.

(3) Dallas Count)· SWitchedmost shortterm Investments to TexPool in FY 2009. Themethodresulted11I3 dramatic decrease in ovcratlt rensacuons as investments arcnOImatured andreinvested daily.

(4) In2012. includes 3& positions funded b; the Rocords Management Fund. The positions were paid1».general fundin FY 2013.

(5) Cl\ il Procc-a servedb) Sheriffcermet be determined et this lime

153



DALLAS COUNTY, TE XAS Table 19
Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)

2005 2006 2007 ~ 2009 2010 201 1 2012 ~ ~
Function

General Government
Number of buildings 22 22 22 la) 21 21 21 22 (b) 22 23 [c } 23

Public Safety
Numberof buildings 10 10 10 10 9 (d) 9 9 9 9 9
NumberofJails 4 4 5 5 4 (0) 4 4 4 4 4
Number of vehicles 479 593 584 640 713 816 756 718 709 691

Highways and streets
Numberof buildings 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Streets (lanemiles) 137 137 137 137 135 133 133 124 122 120 (Q
Numberof bridges 51 41 38 37 36 36 32 28 26 26 (Q

Health
Numberof buildings

Public Welfare
Number of buildings 3 3 3 3 3 2 (g) 2 2 2 2

Judicial
Number of buildings 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Number of Juvenile beds 706 750 750 762 710 (h) 787 618 618 618 618
Number of courts 69 70 71 71 71 71 71 71 71 71

Source: Operating Indicatorswere providedby the variousoperatingdepartments.

NOles:
(a) Includes a demolished (FY07) building. The land was used to construct a new County

building (Forensic Science).
(b) Forensic building completed in 2008 but no! put into use uotil2 011 due to constructionissues
(c) Buildmg purchasedforrecord storage in January2013.
(d) Building reduction due to the swap of AutoService Center Building for future location.
(e) GeorgeAllenJail is depopulated.
( I) See infrastructure assets for more information: pages 96·97.
(g) Butldmg reduction due to the sale of the Juvenile Administration!Detent ionBuilding
(h) Budget ramifications andre-structuring of intemal programs reduced number ofjuven ile beds
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